
Qui est ex Deo verba Dei audit

ANNUAL
REPORT 
2011

 
   

Established by the Melbourne College of Divinity Act (Victoria) 1910. 

21 Highbury Grove, Kew, Victoria 3101 Australia
Tel +61 (03) 9853 3177  Fax +61 (03) 9853 6695
admin@mcd.edu.au

 www.mcd.edu.au
CRICOS Provider 01037A  ABN 95 290 912 141



ANNUAL
REPORT 
2011

1

 

prepared in accordance with Melbourne College of Divinity Act 1910,  

The Financial Management Act 1994 (the Act), Standing Directions of the Minister  

for Finance under the Act, and the Financial Reporting Directions of the Act.

for and on behalf of the Council:

Paul Beirne, Dean & CEO 
14 March 2012

 

Report of the Council of the Melbourne College of Divinity, for the period  

1 January to 31 December 2011, approved by the Council 14 March 2012 

 
Melbourne College of Divinity, 
21 Highbury Grove, Kew, VIC 3101 Australia

Telephone: +61 3 9853 3177  Facsimile: +61 3 9853 6695 

email: admin@mcd.edu.au  www.mcd.edu.au 

Established by the Melbourne College of Divinity Act 1910

$I´OLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�0HOERXUQH����� 
Qui est ex Deo verba Dei audit



2 

Melbourne College of Divinity Annual Report 2011

AHEGS Australian Higher Education Graduation Statement

ALC Australian Lutheran College

ALTC Australian Learning and Teaching Council

APA Australian Postgraduate Award

AUQA Australian Universities Quality Agency

ASCED $XVWUDOLDQ�6WDQGDUG�&ODVVL´FDWLRQ�RI�(GXFDWLRQ

ASHER $XVWUDOLDQ�6FKHPH�IRU�+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�5HSRVLWRULHV

BD %DFKHORU�RI�'LYLQLW\

BTheol        %DFKHORU�RI�7KHRORJ\

BURF %HWWHU�8QLYHUVLWLHV�5HQHZDO�)XQGLQJ

CDTC &RPPLWWHH�RI�'HDQV�RI�7KHRORJLFDO�&RQVRUWLD

CTC Catholic Theological College

CTS Commercialisation Training Scheme

CWS Coursework Studies

DDoGS &RXQFLO�RI�'HDQV�DQG�'LUHFWRUV�RI�*UDGXDWH�6WXGLHV

DEEWR 'HSDUWPHQW�RI�(GXFDWLRQ��(PSOR\PHQW�DQG�:RUNSODFH�5HODWLRQV

DF&A (Reg) 'LUHFWRU��)LQDQFH�DQG�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ��5HJLVWUDU�

DIAC  'HSDUWPHQW�RI�,PPLJUDWLRQ�DQG�&LWL]HQVKLS

DIISR 'HSDUWPHQW�RI�,QQRYDWLRQ��,QGXVWU\��6FLHQFH�DQG�5HVHDUFK

DMinStuds 'RFWRU�RI�0LQLVWU\�6WXGLHV

DTheol 'RFWRU�RI�7KHRORJ\

DEST 'HSDUWPHQW�RI�(GXFDWLRQ��6FLHQFH�DQG�7UDLQLQJ

EFTSL (IIHFWLYH�)XOO�7LPH�6WXGHQW�/RDG

EIF (GXFDWLRQ�,QYHVWPHQW�)XQG

FEE-HELP )HGHUDO�(GXFDWLRQ�(QWLWOHPHQW���+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�/RDQ�3URJUDP

GCTRE *UDGXDWH�&HUWL´FDWH�RI�7HDFKLQJ�5HOLJLRXV�(GXFDWLRQ

GDS Graduate Destination Survey

Grad Dip Theol *UDGXDWH�'LSORPD�LQ�7KHRORJ\

HDR +LJKHU�'HJUHH�E\�5HVHDUFK

HEP Higher Education Provider

HESA +LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�6XSSRUW�$FW�������

HEW +LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�:RUNHU

HOC +HDGV�RI�&ROOHJHV

HREC +XPDQ�5HVHDUFK�(WKLFV�&RPPLWWHH

IAF ,QVWLWXWLRQDO�$VVHVVPHQW�)UDPHZRUN

IAP ,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ�$VVLVWDQFH�3URJUDP

ICSPF ,QVWLWXWH�IRU�&KULVWLDQ�6SLULWXDOLW\�DQG�3DVWRUDO�)RUPDWLRQ

IGS ,QVWLWXWLRQDO�*UDQW�6FKHPH

IPRS ,QWHUQDWLRQDO�3RVWJUDGXDWH�5HVHDUFK�6FKRODUVKLS

JRE -RLQW�5HVHDUFK�(QJDJHPHQW

JTC Jesuit Theological College

LIAM /LEUDULHV�RI�,QVWLWXWLRQV�$VVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�0&'

MCD 0HOERXUQH�&ROOHJH�RI�'LYLQLW\

MDiv 0DVWHU�RI�'LYLQLW\

MIF 0LQLPXP�,QGLFDWLYH�)HHV

MMin 0DVWHU�RI�0LQLVWU\

MoU 0HPRUDQGXP�RI�8QGHUVWDQGLQJ

MTheol 0DVWHU�RI�7KHRORJ\

MTS 0DVWHU�RI�7KHRORJLFDO�6WXGLHV

NHMRC 1DWLRQDO�+HDOWK�DQG�0HGLFDO�5HVHDUFK�&RXQFLO

PG Postgraduate

PSMEA 3XEOLF�6HFWRU�0DQDJHPHQW�DQG�(PSOR\PHQW�$FW�������

RQF 5HVHDUFK�4XDOLW\�)UDPHZRUN

RM&AC 5LVN�0DQDJHPHQW�DQG�$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH

RTI 5HFRJQLVHG�7HDFKLQJ�,QVWLWXWLRQ

RTS 5HVHDUFK�7UDLQLQJ�6FKHPH

SABC 7KH�6DOYDWLRQ�$UP\��$XVWUDOLD�6RXWKHUQ��%RRWK�&ROOHJH

SRE 6XVWDLQDEOH�5HVHDUFK�([FHOOHQFH

SRP 6XSHUYLVHG�5HVHDUFK�3URMHFW

TAMS 7KHRORJLFDO�$FDGHPLF�0DQDJHPHQW�6\VWHP

TLC 7HDFKLQJ�DQG�/HDUQLQJ�&DSLWDO�)XQG

TCTS Trinity College Theological School

UG Undergraduate

UCTC Uniting Church Theological College

UFT 8QLWHG�)DFXOW\�RI�7KHRORJ\

VTAC Victorian Tertiary Admissions Centre

YTU Yarra Theological Union

LIST OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS



Compliance Index

3

Melbourne College of Divinity Annual Report 2011

FMA  Financial Management Act 1994

FRD $�,)56�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�'LUHFWLRQV

SD 6WDQGLQJ�'LUHFWLRQV�RI�WKH�0LQLVWHU�IRU�)LQDQFH�LVVXHG�XQGHU�WKH� 
Financial Management Act 1994

AAS Australian Accounting Standards

AASB Australian Accounting Standards Board 

ETRA 2006  Education and Training Reform Act 2006

PAEC 'HFLVLRQ�RI�3XEOLF�$FFRXQWV�DQG�(VWLPDWHV�&RPPLWWHH�RI�3DUOLDPHQW

RUG 9LFWRULDQ�*RYHUQPHQW�UHVSRQVH�WR�WKH�5HYLHZ�RI�8QLYHUVLW\�*RYHUQDQFH

ESOS Education Services for Overseas Students Act 2000

DEST &RPPRQZHDOWK�*RYHUQPHQW�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�(GXFDWLRQ��6FLHQFH� 
and Training

DEEWR &RPPRQZHDOWK�*RYHUQPHQW�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�(GXFDWLRQ��(PSOR\PHQW� 
DQG�:RUNSODFH�5HODWLRQV

The annual report of Melbourne College of Divinity is prepared in 

accordance with:

No. Clause Disclosure Page(s)

STANDING DIRECTIONS FOR THE MINISTER FOR FINANCE (SD)

� 6'�����J� 5HSRUW�RI�2SHUDWLRQV�FRQWDLQV�JHQHUDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�WKH�HQWLW\�DQG�
LWV�DFWLYLWLHV��KLJKOLJKWV�IRU�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�DQG�IXWXUH�LQLWLDWLYHV�DQG�
LV�SUHSDUHG�RQ�D�EDVLV�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�´QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�SXUVXDQW�WR�
the Financial Management Act, 1994.

����

�� 6'�����K�� 5HSRUW�RI�2SHUDWLRQV�LV�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�)LQDQFLDO�
5HSRUWLQJ�'LUHFWLRQV�

��

�� 6'�����M� 5HSRUW�RI�2SHUDWLRQV�LV�VLJQHG�DQG�GDWHG�E\�&KDQFHOORU�RU�HTXLYDOHQW�
DQG�LQFOXGHV�GDWH�RI�&RXQFLO�0HHWLQJ�DW�ZKLFK�$QQXDO�5HSRUW�ZDV�
DSSURYHG�

�

4 6'�����D� )LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�

������$XVWUDOLDQ�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��$$6�DQG�$$6%�VWDQGDUGV��DQG�
RWKHU�PDQGDWRU\�SURIHVVLRQDO�UHSRUWLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV

������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�'LUHFWLRQV

������%XVLQHVV�5XOHV�

�����

5 6'�����E� )LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�DYDLODEOH��LQFOXGLQJ�

������%DODQFH�6KHHW

������6WDWHPHQW�RI�5HFRJQLVHG�,QFRPH�DQG�([SHQVH

������&DVK�)ORZV�6WDWHPHQW

������1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�

�����

6 6'�����F� 6LJQHG�DQG�GDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�E\�$FFRXQWDEOH�2I´FHU�VWDWLQJ�WKDW�
)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�

������3UHVHQW�IDLUO\�WKH�´QDQFLDO�WUDQVDFWLRQV�GXULQJ�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG� 
DQG�WKH�´QDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DW�HQG�RI�WKH�SHULRG

������:HUH�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�6WDQGLQJ�'LUHFWLRQ������F�� 
DQG�DSSOLFDEOH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�'LUHFWLRQV

������&RPSO\�ZLWK�DSSOLFDEOH�$XVWUDOLDQ�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��$$6�
DQG�$$6%�VWDQGDUGV��DQG�RWKHU�PDQGDWRU\�SURIHVVLRQDO�UHSRUWLQJ�
UHTXLUHPHQWV�

��

� 6'�����G� )LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�DUH�H[SUHVVHG�LQ�WKH�QHDUHVW�GROODU�H[FHSW�ZKHUH�WKH�
WRWDO�DVVHWV��RU�UHYHQXH��RU�H[SHQVHV�RI�WKH�LQVWLWXWLRQ�DUH�JUHDWHU�WKDQ�

�������������������WKH�DPRXQWV�VKRZQ�LQ�WKH�´QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�PD\�
EH�H[SUHVVHG�E\�UHIHUHQFH�WR�WKH�QHDUHVW�������

����������������������WKH�DPRXQWV�VKRZQ�LQ�WKH�´QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
PD\�EH�H[SUHVVHG�E\�UHIHUHQFH�WR�WKH�QHDUHVW����������

�����

� 6'�����H� 7KH�´QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�ZHUH�UHYLHZHG�DQG�UHFRPPHQGHG�E\�WKH�$XGLW�
&RPPLWWHH�RU�5HVSRQVLEOH�%RG\�SULRU�WR�´QDOLVDWLRQ�DQG�VXEPLVVLRQ�

�����

� SD4.5.5 $WWHVWDWLRQ�RQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�$XVWUDOLDQ���1HZ�=HDODQG�5LVN�
0DQDJHPHQW�6WDQGDUG�

��
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No. Clause Disclosure Page(s)

A-IFRS FINANCIAL REPORTING DIRECTIONS (FRD) 

�� �� 'LVFORVXUH�,QGH[ ���

�� �� 'LVFORVXUH�RI�([�JUDWLD�3D\PHQWV Q�D

�� ��$ (DUO\�$GRSWLRQ�RI�$XWKRULWDWLYH�$FFRXQWLQJ�3URQRXQFHPHQWV Q�D

�� ��$ /RQJ�6HUYLFH�/HDYH�:DJH�,QµDWLRQ�DQG�'LVFRXQW�5DWHV Q�D

�� �� 3ULYDWH�3URYLVLRQ�RI�3XEOLF�,QIUDVWUXFWXUH Q�D

�� ��$ 5HVSRQVLEOH�3HUVRQ�DQG�([HFXWLYH�2I´FHU�'LVFORVXUH�LQ�WKH� 
)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

66

�� ��% 6WDQGDUG�'LVFORVXUHV�LQ�WKH�5HSRUW�RI�2SHUDWLRQV ��

�� �� 9LFWRULDQ�,QGXVWU\�3DUWLFLSDWLRQ�3ROLF\�LQ�WKH�5HSRUW�RI�2SHUDWLRQV Q�D

�� ��$ $FFRXQWLQJ�IRU�9LF)OHHW�0RWRU�9HKLFOH�/HDVH�$UUDQJHPHQWV�RQ�RU�DIWHU� 
��)HEUXDU\�����

Q�D

�� ��� ,QYHQWRULHV Q�D

�� ��� )RUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\ Q�D

�� ��� ,PSDLUPHQW�RI�DVVHWV Q�D

�� ��� ,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUWLHV Q�D

�� ���� ,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV Q�D

�� ��� &DVK�)ORZ�6WDWHPHQWV ��

�� ���$ 'H´QHG�EHQH´W�VXSHUDQQXDWLRQ�REOLJDWLRQV Q�D

�� ��� ,QYHVWPHQWV�LQ�6XEVLGLDULHV��-RLQWO\�&RQWUROOHG�$VVRFLDWHV�DQG�(QWLWLHV Q�D

�� ��� )LQDQFLDO�,QYHVWPHQWV �������� 
�����

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, EMPLOYMENT AND WORKPLACE RELATIONS (DEEWR)

�� )5'���%

'((:5

$QDO\VLV�RI�WKH�DFKLHYHPHQW�RI�WKH�HQWLW\­V�RSHUDWLRQDO�DQG�EXGJHW�REMHFWLYHV�
IRU�WKH�´QDQFLDO�\HDU�VKRXOG�LQFOXGH�FRPSDUDWLYH�DQDO\VLV�RI�LQGLFDWRUV�VXFK�
DV�HQUROPHQWV��JUDGXDWLRQV��VWXGHQW�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�VDWLVIDFWLRQ��VWDII�
SUR´OH��UHVHDUFK�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�SRVLWLRQ���� 

 

 

�������� 

�������
�����

�� '((:5 ,QIRUPDWLRQ�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�WKH�JRYHUQDQFH�DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�VWUXFWXUH�
RI�WKH�XQLYHUVLW\��VSHFL´FDOO\�FRXQFLO�PHPEHUV�DQG�RFFXSDQWV�RI�VHQLRU�
RI´FHUV���

�����

�� '((:5 2XWOLQH�RI�VWXGHQW�DQG�VWDII�JULHYDQFH�SURFHGXUHV�DQG�QXPEHU�RI�
FRPSODLQWV�PDGH�WR�DQG�LQYHVWLJDWHG�E\�WKH�2PEXGVPDQ�

��

�� '((:5 'HWDLOV�RI�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DYDLODEOH�RQ�LQVWLWXWLRQ­V�ZHEVLWH��LQFOXGLQJ�ORFDWLRQV�
RI�FXUUHQW�DQG�SUHYLRXV�$QQXDO�5HSRUWV�

��

�� '((:5 &RPSOLDQFH�RI�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�ZLWK�WKH�Financial Statement Guidelines 
for Australian Higher Education Providers for 2007�5HSRUWLQJ�3HULRG�LVVXHG�
E\�'((:5� 

�����
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No. Clause Disclosure Page(s)

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT ACT 1994 (FMA)

��

��

��

��

��

)0$�����

���D�

����E�

����F�

����G�

����H�

)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�

������&RQWDLQ�VXFK�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DV�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�0LQLVWHU

������$UH�SUHSDUHG�LQ�D�PDQQHU�DQG�IRUP�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�0LQLVWHU

������3UHVHQW�IDLUO\�WKH�´QDQFLDO�WUDQVDFWLRQV�RI�WKH�GHSDUWPHQW�RU�SXEOLF�
ERG\�GXULQJ�WKH�UHOHYDQW�´QDQFLDO�\HDU�WR�ZKLFK�WKH\�UHODWH

������3UHVHQW�IDLUO\�WKH�´QDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�RI�WKH�GHSDUWPHQW�RU�SXEOLF�
ERG\�DV�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKDW�\HDU

�� $UH�FHUWL´HG�E\�WKH�DFFRXQWDEOH�RI´FHU�LQ�WKH�PDQQHU�DSSURYHG� 
E\�WKH�0LQLVWHU�

�����

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE TO THE REVIEW OF UNIVERSITY GOVERNANCE (RUG)

�� 58* 6WDWHPHQW�RXWOLQLQJ�WKDW�SXEOLF�IXQGV�DOORFDWHG�WR�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�KDYH�
EHHQ�DOORFDWHG�WR�WKH�SXUSRVHV�VSHFL´HG�E\�WKH�*RYHUQPHQW�RU�RWKHU�
SXEOLF�IXQGLQJ�ERG\��6WDWHPHQW�LV�DXGLWHG�E\�WKH�$XGLWRU�*HQHUDO�

����� 
����� 

�����

�� 58* 8QLYHUVLW\�&RXQFLO­V�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�VWUDWHJ\ ������
�����

�� 58* 6XPPDU\�RI�´QDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�$VVRFLDWHV�DQG�&RPPHUFLDO�9HQWXUHV �����

EDUCATIONAL SERVICES FOR OVERSEAS STUDENTS ACT (2000) (ESOS)

�� ESOS 

�1DWLRQDO�

&RGH������¨�

6HFWLRQV�&�	�'�

6WDWHPHQW�LQGLFDWLQJ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�(626�$FW������DQG�WKH�
1DWLRQDO�&RGH�RI�3UDFWLFH�IRU�5HJLVWUDWLRQ�$XWKRULWLHV�DQG�3URYLGHUV�RI�
(GXFDWLRQ�DQG�7UDLQLQJ�WR�2YHUVHDV�6WXGHQWV��1DWLRQDO�&RGH�������

��

EDUCATION AND TRAINING REFORM ACT 2006 (ETR)

�� (75$�
�����V�� 
�����

6WDWHPHQW�RQ�FRPSXOVRU\�QRQ�DFDGHPLF�IHHV��VXEVFULSWLRQV�DQG�
FKDUJHV�SD\DEOH�LQ�WKH�SUHFHGLQJ�´QDQFLDO�\HDU�

�����

DECISION OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS AND ESTIMATES COMMITTEE OF PARLIAMENT

�� PAEC  

�'HFHPEHU�

�����

)LQDQFLDO�DQG�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHODWLQJ�WR�LQVWLWXWLRQ­V�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�
RSHUDWLRQV�

������
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2����KDV�EHHQ�DQRWKHU�KLJKO\�VLJQL´FDQW�\HDU�LQ�WKH�OLIH� 

and work of the Melbourne College of Divinity, its 

teaching, scholarship and research. 

Following the celebration of its centenary in 2010 and the 

submission of its application to the Victorian Registration 

DQG�4XDOL´FDWLRQV�$XWKRULW\�IRU�6SHFLDOLVHG�8QLYHUVLW\�

status, MCD prepared for the accreditation panel’s visit to the College 

and its constituent Recognised Teaching Institutions at the end of May. 

In its meetings with staff, students and stakeholders the panel addressed 

matters such as the federated structure of MCD, risk management, 

VXFFHVVLRQ�SODQQLQJ�IRU�DFDGHPLF�VWDII��EHQFKPDUNLQJ��FKXUFK�´QDQFLDO�

support, and the promotion and rewarding of research. On 25 August 

the VRQA Board approved the application from the Melbourne College 

of Divinity to operate as a specialised university with the title “MCD 

8QLYHUVLW\�RI�'LYLQLW\«��7KLV�ZRXOG�FRPH�LQWR�HIIHFW�RQ�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�

GXH�SDUOLDPHQWDU\�SURFHVV�LQ�'HFHPEHU������WR�PDNH�0&'�WKH�´UVW�VXFK�

institution in Australia.  

In the course of the year a number of events have further enhanced 

and encouraged the Melbourne College of Divinity in its commitment to 

theological research and education.

In January the Australian Research Council published the results of the 

´UVW�([FHOOHQFH�LQ�5HVHDUFK�IRU�$XVWUDOLD��(5$��HYDOXDWLRQ�RI�UHVHDUFK�

undertaken between 2003 and 2008 and found the Melbourne College of 

Divinity’s performance to be at world standard with a rating of 3 in  

WKH�´HOGV�RI�ª3KLORVRSK\�DQG�5HOLJLRXV�6WXGLHV«�DQG�ª5HOLJLRQ�DQG�

5HOLJLRXV�6WXGLHV«�

,Q�$SULO�WKH�0HPRUDQGXP�RI�8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�EHWZHHQ�0HOERXUQH�&ROOHJH�

RI�'LYLQLW\�DQG�%RRWK�&ROOHJH��IRUPHUO\�WKH�6DOYDWLRQ�$UP\�7UDLQLQJ�

College, was revised to include teaching of the Bachelor of Theology. 

In May the Melbourne College of Divinity signed a Mission-Based 

Compact with the Federal Government. 

,Q�-XQH�WKH�0&'�&RXQFLO�ZHOFRPHG�WKH�´UVW�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�RI�WKH�

Lutheran Church of Australia to membership of the Council. 

,Q�1RYHPEHU�WKH�0&'�6WDII�&RQVXOWDWLRQ�'D\�DGGUHVVHG�WKH�LPSOLFDWLRQV�

for MCD of its admission to specialised university status and the 

challenges and opportunities this presents.

,Q������WKH�PRVW�VLJQL´FDQW�HYHQW�IRU�WKH�0HOERXUQH�&ROOHJH�RI�'LYLQLW\�

has been its application for specialised university status and the positive 

outcome of this application. It marks a major step in the history of the 

President’s statement

7
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College, building as it does upon one hundred years of teaching and 

research in divinity and its associated disciplines. Melbourne College of 

Divinity now looks forward with renewed energy and commitment to its 

GHYHORSPHQW�DV�0&'�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�'LYLQLW\��$W�LWV�'HFHPEHU������PHHWLQJ��

the MCD Council changed the nomenclature of the College’s two most 

VHQLRU�SRVLWLRQV��3UHVLGHQW�DQG�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW��WR�&KDQFHOORU�DQG�'HSXW\�

&KDQFHOORU�UHVSHFWLYHO\��WR�UHµHFW�WKH�&ROOHJH­V�FKDQJH�RI�VWDWXV��'U�

*UDHPH�%ODFNPDQ�DQG�'U�$QGUHZ�0HQ]LHV�ZLOO�´OO�WKHVH�FRUUHVSRQGLQJ�

UROHV�LQ�������)ROORZLQJ�DQ�H[KDXVWLYH�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV�WR�DSSRLQW�DQ�

LQDXJXUDO�9LFH�&KDQFHOORU�IRU�0&'�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�'LYLQLW\��&RXQFLO�KHOG�

DQ�H[WUDRUGLQDU\�PHHWLQJ�LQ�ODWH�'HFHPEHU������DQG�DW�WKDW�PHHWLQJ��

DSSRLQWHG�'U�3HWHU�6KHUORFN�WR�WKH�SRVLWLRQ��3URIHVVRU�6KHUORFN�ZLOO�

DVVXPH�WKH�UROH�LQ�PLG�$SULO�������8QLYHUVLW\�VWDWXV�ZLOO�HQDEOH�0&'�ZLWK�LWV�

unique ecumenical history and constitution to further advance theological 

education and to engage as a respected partner with other universities in 

the promotion of higher education and its contribution to the wellbeing of 

church and society. 

 
Terry Curtin,�3UHVLGHQW
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Dean’s statement

The year 2011 will be recorded in the annals of the 

Melbourne College of Divinity as one of the most 

important and formative years in the College’s history, for it 

was in the 101st year of the MCD’s history that this venerable 

institution changed its identity from a College to Australia’s 

´UVW�6SHFLDOLVHG�8QLYHUVLW\��7KLV�FKDQJH�IROORZHG�´YH�\HDUV�RI�

discussion, preparation and concerted effort at all levels of the College and 

its constituent colleges. A brief description of this process is as follows:

On November 18, 2006, the governing Council of the MCD convened a 

6XPPLW�WR�FRQVLGHU�WKH�SRVVLELOLW\�RI�DSSO\LQJ�IRU�6SHFLDOLVHG�8QLYHUVLW\�

VWDWXV��7KH�6XPPLW�GUHZ�WRJHWKHU����0&'�SHUVRQQHO�DV�ZHOO�DV�H[SHUWV�

LQ�WKH�´HOG�RI�+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�DQG�D�EURDG�UDQJH�RI�UHSUHVHQWDWLYHV�

IURP�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�VHFWRU��7KH�6XPPLW�VHW�JXLGHOLQHV�WR�FRQWLQXH�WKH�

6SHFLDOLVHG�8QLYHUVLW\�GLVFXVVLRQ�IRU�WKH�LPPHGLDWH�DQG�ORQJ�WHUP�

IXWXUH��$�VHFRQG�6XPPLW�ZDV�FRQYHQHG�LQ�'HFHPEHU������WR�RXWOLQH�

a program of development for the College up to 2015, which included 

SURJUHVVLRQ�WR�6SHFLDOLVHG�8QLYHUVLW\�VWDWXV��,Q�$XJXVW�������WKH�0&'�

Council unanimously agreed to make an application to the Victorian 

5HJXODWLRQ�DQG�4XDOL´FDWLRQV�$XWKRULW\��954$��WR�EHFRPH�D�¬XQLYHUVLW\�

of specialisation’, contingent on the Heads of the Constituent Churches 

and Religious Orders of MCD Colleges supporting the Application. They 

were consulted, and all unreservedly supported the Application. The 

decision to make an Application was also supported by the Heads of 

MCD Colleges, and an initial assessment process went through rigorous 

DFDGHPLF��TXDOLW\�DVVXUDQFH��´QDQFLDO�DQG�ULVN�DQDO\VLV�DQG�DVVHVVPHQW�E\�

the MCD Council, Academic Board, Academic Audit Committee, Finance 

and Investment Committee and Risk Management and Audit Committee, 

ZKLFK�&RPPLWWHHV�DUH�FRPSRVHG�SULPDULO\�RI�H[WHUQDO�PHPEHUV�ZKR�

DUH�H[SHUWV�LQ�WKHLU�SDUWLFXODU�´HOGV��,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKH�0&'�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�

HPSOR\HG�DQ�H[WHUQDO�5LVN�&RQVXOWDQW�WR�XQGHUWDNH�D�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�

2UJDQL]DWLRQDO�5LVN�3UR´OH�RI�WKH�&ROOHJH�ZKLFK�ZDV�SUHVHQWHG�WR�&RXQFLO�

in June 2009. 

In relation to preparing the Application, the MCD hired for three months 

DQ�H[SHUW�LQ�WKH�´HOG�RI�DVVHPEOLQJ�+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�UHJXODWRU\�

documents and engaged the services of two Higher Education advisors 

IURP�3KLOLSV�.3$��D�FRPSDQ\�ZKLFK�VSHFLDOLVHV�LQ�WKH�SURYLVLRQ�RI�

consultancy services to the education industry, to ensure that all aspects 

RI�WKH�$SSOLFDWLRQ�ZHUH�VXI´FLHQWO\�GHWDLOHG�DQG�DSSURSULDWH��)LQDOO\��

seven copies of the Application, which comprised 1000 pages and 110 

appendices in CD Rom and hard copy formats, were submitted to VRQA 

on August 30, 2010. An additional 500 pages were submitted in January 
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2011 in response to VRQA’s request for additional information.

7KH�SURFHVV�RI�$VVHVVPHQW�WKDW�IROORZHG�ZDV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�6HFWLRQV�

D, D7 and D8.8 of the National Protocols for Higher Education Approval 

Processes�DQG�6HFWLRQV������WR�������DQG����RI�WKH�National Guidelines for 

Higher Education Approval Processes: Guidelines for establishing Australian 

8QLYHUVLWLHV��7KHVH�3URWRFROV�DQG�*XLGHOLQHV�ZHUH�DSSURYHG�LQ�2FWREHU�

2007 by the Ministerial Council on Education, Employment, Training and 

<RXWK�$IIDLUV��0&((7<$���$V�WKHLU�WLWOHV�LQGLFDWH��WKH�1DWLRQDO�3URWRFROV�

and National Guidelines were drawn up for the purpose of setting 

standards for, and regulating, Higher Education institutions throughout 

$XVWUDOLD��6HFWLRQ����RI�WKH�*XLGHOLQHV�UHTXLUHV�HYLGHQFH�WKDW�WKH�LQVWLWXWLRQ�

¬GHOLYHUV�KLJKHU�HGXFDWLRQ�TXDOL´FDWLRQV��LQFOXGLQJ�5HVHDUFK�0DVWHUV�DQG�

3K'V�RU�HTXLYDOHQW�5HVHDUFK�'RFWRUDWHV��LQ�RQH�RU�WZR�EURDG�´HOGV�RI�

VWXG\�RQO\�DQG�VHWV�VWDQGDUGV�IRU�WKRVH�TXDOL´FDWLRQV�ZKLFK�DUH�HTXLYDOHQW�

to Australian and international standards.

VRQA undertook a preliminary review of the documentation submitted 

by the MCD, and judging that the application should proceed, appointed 

DQ�H[SHUW�$VVHVVPHQW�3DQHO�WR�DVVHVV�WKH�0&'�$SSOLFDWLRQ��7KH�3DQHO�

FRQVLVWHG�RI�D�IRUPHU�9LFH�&KDQFHOORU�RI�$XVWUDOLDQ�&DWKROLF�8QLYHUVLW\�DV�

Chair, a Vice Chancellor of a Victorian university, a former Deputy Vice 

&KDQFHOORU�RI�D�9LFWRULDQ�8QLYHUVLW\�DQG�WZR�VHQLRU�DFDGHPLFV�LQ�WKH�´HOG�

RI�VSHFLDOLVDWLRQ�IURP�D�16:�8QLYHUVLW\�DQG�D�9LFWRULDQ�8QLYHUVLW\��

7KH�3DQHO�FRQGXFWHG�D�WKUHH�GD\�VLWH�YLVLW�RI�WKH�0&'�RQ�0D\��������������

This involved conducting 11 group sessions over two of these days, and 

on another day, a site visit to each of the eight Melbourne-based Colleges 

DQG�RQH�6SHFLDOLVHG�,QVWLWXWLRQ�RI�WKH�0&'��WKH�3DQHO�GLYLGHG�LQWR�WZR�

JURXSV�WR�FRQGXFW�WKHVH�VLWH�YLVLWV���7KH�&KDLU�RI�WKH�3DQHO�DQG�DQRWKHU�

3DQHO�PHPEHU�FRQGXFWHG�D�VLWH�YLVLW�RI�$XVWUDOLDQ�/XWKHUDQ�&ROOHJH�RQ�

-XQH������,Q�DOO������0&'�RI´FH�KROGHUV��LQWHUQDO�DQG�H[WHUQDO�&RXQFLO��

Board and Committee members, faculty and students were interviewed. 

7KH�3DQHO�DOVR�FRQGXFWHG�JURXS�VHVVLRQV�ZLWK�WKH�&KDLUV�RI�&ROOHJH�

%RDUGV��DQG�3ULQFLSDOV�RI�0&'�&ROOHJHV�

7KH�3DQHO�GUHZ�XS�D�'UDIW�5HSRUW��ZKLFK�LW�VXEPLWWHG�WR�WKH�0&'�WR�

check for accuracy. Following the MCD Response to the Draft Report, 

WKH�$VVHVVPHQW�3DQHO�VXEPLWWHG�WKH�5HSRUW�WR�954$��7KH�954$�%RDUG�

PHW�RQ�$XJXVW���������WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�DOO�DVSHFWV�RI�WKH�1DWLRQDO�3URWRFROV�

and National Guidelines had been adhered to, and that all sections of 

WKH�$SSURYDO�3URFHVV�RXWOLQHG�RQ�3��RI�WKH�1DWLRQDO�*XLGHOLQHV�KDG�

been followed. On August 9, the VRQA Higher Education Assessment 

Committee (HEAC) met to consider the Draft Report, the MCD Response 

DQG�VXEPLVVLRQV�PDGH�LQ�WKH�3XEOLF�&RQVXOWDWLRQ�SURFHVV��+($&�

submitted its Report to the VRQA Board, and on Thursday August 25, the 

Chair of the VRQA Board contacted the Dean of the MCD to inform him 

WKDW�954$�KDG�DSSURYHG�WKH�0&'�WR�EHFRPH�D�6SHFLDOLVHG�8QLYHUVLW\��

with no conditions attached. 

On August 29, 2011 VRQA published a Notice of Approval in the 

*RYHUQPHQW�*D]HWWH�IRU�WKH�0&'�WR�RSHUDWH�DV�D�6SHFLDOLVHG�8QLYHUVLW\�

XQGHU�WKH�WLWOH��¬0&'�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�'LYLQLW\­��2Q�$XJXVW�����WKH�1RWLFH�RI�

$SSURYDO�ZDV�SUHVHQWHG�WR�ERWK�+RXVHV�RI�3DUOLDPHQW�E\�WKH�0LQLVWHU�IRU�

+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�DQG�6NLOOV��7KH�+RQ��3HWHU�+DOO��0/&��ZKHUH�LW�UHPDLQHG�

IRU����VLWWLQJ�GD\V�RI�3DUOLDPHQW�EHIRUH�EHFRPLQJ�ODZ�
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7KH�WLPH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�0&'�VXEPLWWLQJ�DQ�$SSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�6SHFLDOLVHG�

8QLYHUVLW\�VWDWXV�DQG�WKH�SUHVHQWLQJ�RI�WKH�1RWLFH�RI�$SSURYDO�LQ�6WDWH�

3DUOLDPHQW�ZDV�H[DFWO\�RQH�\HDU��$�VHQLRU�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�RI�954$�VWDWHG�

WKDW�WKH�0&'�¬KDG�SDVVHG�ZLWK�µ\LQJ�FRORXUV�DQ�LQFUHGLEO\�ULJRURXV�DQG�

UREXVW�WHVW�XQGHU�WKH�1DWLRQDO�3URWRFROV�DQG�1DWLRQDO�*XLGHOLQHV��ZKLFK�

LQFOXGHG�D�3HHU�5HYLHZ�H[HUFLVH�FRQGXFWHG�E\�DQ�$VVHVVPHQW�3DQHO�RI�

9LFH�&KDQFHOORU�OHYHO�XQLYHUVLW\�DGPLQLVWUDWRUV�DQG�VFKRODUV�LQ�WKH�´HOG�RI�

specialisation’.

0&'�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�'LYLQLW\�EHJDQ�RSHUDWLRQV�RQ�-DQXDU\���������

Other notable events in 2011

�� $�0LVVLRQ�EDVHG�&RPSDFW���������ZDV�VLJQHG�ZLWK�WKH�&RPPRQZHDOWK�

Government, setting mutually agreed goals for the MCD for a three 

year period.

�� 2Q�0D\���������������VWXGHQWV�JUDGXDWHG�DW�WKH�$QQXDO�&RQIHUUDO�

&HUHPRQ\��KHOG�DW�:LOVRQ�+DOO��WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�0HOERXUQH��

3URIHVVRU�5LFKDUG�-DPHV�%6F�0(G�'(G�)$&($��3UR�9LFH�&KDQFHOORU�

�3DUWLFLSDWLRQ�DQG�(QJDJHPHQW���'LUHFWRU��&HQWUH�IRU�WKH�6WXG\�RI�

+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�DW�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�0HOERXUQH�JDYH�WKH�*UDGXDWLRQ�

$GGUHVV��7KH�5HYG�0HUULOO�.LWFKHQ�2$0�%$SS6F�%7KHRO�7KHRO0�ZDV�

made a Fellow of the Melbourne College of Divinity.

�� 2Q��-DQXDU\����������WKH�$XVWUDOLDQ�5HVHDUFK�&RXQFLO�SXEOLVKHG�WKH�

UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�´UVW�([FHOOHQFH�LQ�5HVHDUFK�IRU�$XVWUDOLD��(5$���H[HUFLVH�

in which the Melbourne College of Divinity’s research performance was 

UDWHG�DV�EHLQJ�¬DW�ZRUOG�VWDQGDUG­�LQ�WKH�´HOG�RI�5HVHDUFK��Religion and 

Religious Studies.

�� 7KH�6WUDWHJLF�3ODQQLQJ��)LQDQFH�DQG�,QYHVWPHQW��$FDGHPLF�$XGLW��5LVN�

0DQDJHPHQW�DQG�$XGLW��DQG�5HJXODWLRQV�DQG�3URFHGXUHV�&RPPLWWHHV�

RI�&RXQFLO�PHW�RQ�UHJXODU�RFFDVLRQV��LQ�PRVW�FDVHV�H[FHHGLQJ�WKH�

required number of meetings in the Committees’ Terms of Reference. 

This was due mainly to the changes that the College is currently 

undergoing, as noted above. 

�� 7KH�0&'�6WUDWHJLF�3ODQ�DQG�2SHUDWLRQDO�3ODQ�ZHUH�UHYLVHG�E\�WKH�

6WUDWHJLF�3ODQQLQJ�&RPPLWWHH�WR�DFFRUG�ZLWK�WKH�QHZ�6SHFLDOLVHG�

8QLYHUVLW\�VWDWXV��DQG�WR�WDNH�DGYDQWDJH�RI�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�PDGH�E\�

WKH�954$�$VVHVVPHQW�3DQHO�WR�´QH�WXQH�WKH�&ROOHJH­V�RSHUDWLRQV�

�� ,Q�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�*RDO���XQGHU�6HFWLRQ����'HYHORSPHQW�RI�WKH�

6WUDWHJLF�3ODQ��VSHFL´FDOO\��

 To undertake the expansion of the MCD through increasing the number 

RI�5HFRJQLVHG�7HDFKLQJ�,QVWLWXWLRQV�ZKLFK�DFFRUG�ZLWK�WKH�0&'­V�

philosophy, ecumenicity and academic standards.

The MCD is about to incorporate two new RTIs into its federated 

structure in the immediate future. One of these institutions is located in 

1HZ�6RXWK�:DOHV��ZKLFK�PHDQV�D�IXUWKHU�H[SDQGLQJ�RI�WKH�JHRJUDSKLFDO�

boundaries of the MCD.

        

Paul Beirne,  Dean and CEO
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The Melbourne College of Divinity (MCD) was constituted by an Act 

SDVVHG�E\�WKH�3DUOLDPHQW�RI�WKH�6WDWH�RI�9LFWRULD�LQ�'HFHPEHU�������

ZKHQ�WKH�´UVW�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�&ROOHJH�ZHUH�DSSRLQWHG��7KH�&ROOHJH�WKHQ�

represented the Church of England, Baptist, Congregational, Methodist 

DQG�3UHVE\WHULDQ�FKXUFKHV��DQG�E\�FR�RSWDWLRQ�WKH�&KXUFKHV�RI�&KULVW��

The Act was amended in 1956, 1972, 1979 and 1990 to enable the MCD 

to become a more comprehensive body and was thoroughly revised in 

������$V�D�+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�3URYLGHU��+(3��HVWDEOLVKHG�E\�DQ�$FW�RI�WKH�

3DUOLDPHQW�RI�9LFWRULD��WKH�0&'�LV�DFFRXQWDEOH�WR�WKH�0LQLVWHU�IRU�+LJKHU�

(GXFDWLRQ�DQG�6NLOOV�

,Q������WKH�0&'�ZDV�DI´OLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�0HOERXUQH��ZKLOH�

retaining autonomy and degree conferring status. The Bachelor of Arts/

Bachelor of Theology double degree is available in association with Monash 

8QLYHUVLW\��

,Q�������WKH�WKHQ�&RPPRQZHDOWK�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�(GXFDWLRQ��6FLHQFH�

and Training included the MCD in the list of Table B Higher Education 

Institutions with two private Australian universities. This listing enabled the 

College to receive Federal funding for research, and access to the FEE-

+(/3�VFKHPH�IRU�DOO�HOLJLEOH�0&'�VWXGHQWV��

In August 2010, the MCD submitted an application to be recognised as 

D�6SHFLDOLVHG�8QLYHUVLW\�WR�WKH�9LFWRULDQ�5HJLVWUDWLRQ�DQG�4XDOL´FDWLRQV�

$XWKRULW\��954$���$IWHU�DQ�H[KDXVWLYH�SURFHVV��954$�DSSURYHG�WKH�

DSSOLFDWLRQ�DQG�LQ�'HFHPEHU�������WKH�6WDWH�3DUOLDPHQW�RI�9LFWRULD�SDVVHG�

LQWR�ODZ�WKDW�WKH�0&'�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�'LYLQLW\�ZRXOG�EHJLQ�RSHUDWLRQV�IURP�

January 1, 2012.

7KH�0&'�LV�D�FRPSOH[�RUJDQLVDWLRQ��/LNH�RWKHU�$XVWUDOLDQ�XQLYHUVLWLHV��WKHUH�

is a central administration, together with academic committees responsible 

for the maintenance of educational standards across the institution. The 

member colleges and other teaching bodies, like the faculties of a university, 

engage in teaching and learning activities with students. However, the 

MCD is unlike most universities in that although the teaching colleges are 

independent, they do not grant degrees. The MCD model parallels that of 

2[IRUG�RU�&DPEULGJH�FROOHJHV�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKHLU�SDUWLFXODU�XQLYHUVLW\�

Today the MCD Council includes representatives of the Anglican, Baptist, 

&KXUFKHV�RI�&KULVW��/XWKHUDQ��5RPDQ�&DWKROLF�DQG�8QLWLQJ�FKXUFKHV��ZLWK�

7KH�6DOYDWLRQ�$UP\�LQYROYHG�LQ�0&'�WHDFKLQJ�SURJUDPV��DQG�PHPEHUVKLS�

of several MCD committees. A theologically diverse institution, the MCD is 

committed to ecumenical co-operation in theological education to enable 

each member institution to be true to its heritage and commitments, yet 

open to the enrichment of engagement with others. The opportunities 

created by such co-operation are available in few other places in the world. 

12 
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6WXGHQWV��IDFXOW\��DOXPQL�DQG�IULHQGV�RI�WKH�0&'�DUH�SURXG�SDUWLFLSDQWV�LQ�

a collaborative effort that has helped to achieve collectively what member 

colleges could not have accomplished individually.

Objectives, functions, powers and duties

The powers of the MCD derive from the MCD Act which established 

the College as a degree-granting educational body. The Council of the 

Melbourne College of Divinity authorises the granting of degrees, approves 

the introduction of, and changes to MCD regulations, and monitors 

WKH�JRYHUQDQFH�RI�WKH�&ROOHJH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�6WDWH�DQG�)HGHUDO�

regulations and compliance structures.

The functions and duties of the MCD are best summarised in terms of the 

Vision, Mission and Values statements:  

Vision of the MCD

Recognised nationally and internationally, the Melbourne College 

of Divinity commits to pursuing the highest standards in teaching 

and research in Christian theology and ministry. The College offers 

scholars and students alike the opportunity to anchor their faith 

in understanding and in a spirit of dialogue to engage with other 

UHOLJLRXV�WUDGLWLRQV�DQG�ZLGHU�VRFLDO�FRQWH[WV��

The MCD Mission Statement reads,

The Melbourne College of Divinity is an ecumenical provider of quality 

WHUWLDU\�HGXFDWLRQ�LQ�WKH�´HOG�RI�'LYLQLW\�DQG�DVVRFLDWHG�GLVFLSOLQHV��ZLWK�

commitment to

�� TXDOLW\�LQ�WHDFKLQJ�DQG�UHVHDUFK�

�� WKH�XQGHUVWDQGLQJ�RI�IDLWK�LQ�VHFXODU�FRQWH[WV��DQG�

�� WKH�LQWHJULW\�RI�WKH�&KULVWLDQ�FKXUFKHV

6WXGLHV�LQ�7KHRORJ\�DQG�'LYLQLW\�LQYROYH�UHµHFWLRQ�DQG�NQRZOHGJH�

(logos) about God (theos) or the divine. Key disciplines include 

3KLORVRSK\��%LEOLFDO�6WXGLHV��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�+HEUHZ�DQG�*UHHN�

ODQJXDJHV���6\VWHPDWLF�7KHRORJ\��&KXUFK�+LVWRU\��(WKLFV��/LWXUJ\��

3DVWRUDO�6WXGLHV��5HOLJLRXV�(GXFDWLRQ�DQG�RWKHU�DUHDV�RI�$SSOLHG�

7KHRORJ\�VXFK�DV�6SLULWXDOLW\�DQG�&RXQVHOOLQJ��7KHVH�VWXGLHV�HQGHDYRXU�

WR�DVVLVW�VWXGHQWV�WR�H[DPLQH�WKHLU�RZQ�FRQYLFWLRQV�DQG�WR�LQWHJUDWH�

them with a rational view and lifestyle. This blend of objective and 

subjective learning has characterised the MCD since its inception.

The following values�H[SUHVV�WKLV�YLVLRQ�DQG�PLVVLRQ���

�� &ULWLFDO�HQTXLU\�DQG�RSHQ�GLDORJXH�LQ�WKH�H[SORUDWLRQ�RI�WUXWK�

�� $FWLYH�HQJDJHPHQW�ZLWK�ORFDO��QDWLRQDO�DQG�JOREDO�VRFLDO�FRQWH[WV

�� 5HFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�UHVSHFW�IRU�WKH�WUDGLWLRQV�RI�WKH�PHPEHU�FKXUFKHV�LQ�

an atmosphere of  mutuality and ecumenical cooperation 

�� ,QWHUGHSHQGHQFH�LQ�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�DOO�OHDUQLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�

�� +RQHVW�SURIHVVLRQDO�UHODWLRQVKLSV�EHWZHHQ�VWXGHQWV�DQG�VWDII�

�� )UHHGRP�IURP�DOO�IRUPV�RI�GLVFULPLQDWLRQ

�� $�FOLPDWH�RI�UHVSHFW�DQG�RSHQQHVV

�� (QWKXVLDVP��µH[LELOLW\�DQG�LQQRYDWLRQ�

13
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The objectives of the College are described in the MCD Act as:

a)  the pursuit of the highest standards in teaching and research in 

Divinity and associated disciplines 1 

b) the offering to scholars and students of Divinity the opportunity to 

anchor faith in understanding, and in a spirit of dialogue to engage 

with society 

c) to respect, encourage, challenge and inform students who come to the 

College to learn

d) to respond to the academic needs of the churches, and to promote 

their integrity 

e) to address issues from a sound and reasoned theological viewpoint, 

and to offer society  opportunities for dialogue with traditions and 

YDOXHV�WKDW�KDYH�EHHQ�UH´QHG�RYHU�WKH�FHQWXULHV

f) to aid, by research and other appropriate means, the advancement 

and development of knowledge and its practical application to the 

churches, to wider academic and community life, and public policy 

J��WR�FRQIHU�GHJUHHV��GLSORPDV�DQG�FHUWL´FDWHV�DQG�RWKHU�DZDUGV�LQ�

Divinity and associated disciplines.

Services 

MCD offers academic services to the Christian churches, to the academic 

VWDII�DQG�VWXGHQWV��DQG�WR�WKH�ZLGHU�FRPPXQLW\��:KHWKHU�PLQLVWHULDO�

candidates or not, MCD students generally pursue learning for its own 

sake, and the learning mode of approach which characterises studies in 

Divinity is that of the humanities. The MCD thus serves its people, and the 

wider community, primarily through “dialogue with traditions and values 

WKDW�KDYH�EHHQ�UH´QHG�RYHU�WKH�FHQWXULHV«�>0&'�2EMHFWLYH��H�@�

,Q�VHHNLQJ�WR�PHHW�&ROOHJH�REMHFWLYHV��DQG�IXO´O�WKH�PLVVLRQ�RI�WKH�&ROOHJH�

in accordance with the established values, the MCD functions in closely 

interwoven ways: 

�� WKURXJK�WKH�WHDFKLQJ�RIIHUHG�DW�WKH�0&'­V�5HFRJQLVHG�7HDFKLQJ�

Institutions (RTIs), authorised by the Council

�� ZLWK�LQWHUQDWLRQDOO\�UHFRJQLVHG�UHVHDUFK�E\�WKH�DFDGHPLF�VWDII�ORFDWHG�

throughout the MCD at RTIs and Colleges, supported by the MCD 

5HVHDUFK�2I´FH

�� WKURXJK�WKH�&HQWUDO�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ��SURYLGLQJ�WKH�VXSSRUW��

coordination, and facilitation of the administration of the College.  

As the governing body of the MCD, the Council, in consultation with 

staff throughout the College, establishes the strategic direction of the 

institution. The RTIs are closely involved with the implementation, and 

their own operational management relevant to their individual goals. 

However, each objective represents a responsibility shared.

�� ¬$VVRFLDWHG�GLVFLSOLQHV­�DUH�GH´QHG�LQ�WKH�0&'�$FW�DV�ªVWXGLHV�LQ�UHOLJLRQ�DQG�PLQLVWU\�SUDFWLFH�

GLUHFWO\�UHODWHG�WR�'LYLQLW\�LQ�LWV�FRQWHPSRUDU\��KLVWRULFDO��VRFLDO�DQG�FXOWXUDO�FRQWH[WV«�
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Australian Lutheran College (ALC) 

����-HIIFRWW�6WUHHW�� 

1RUWK�$GHODLGH�6$����� 

(08) 8267 7400 

email: alc@alc.edu.au 

website: www.alc.edu.au 

As the post-secondary education 
provider of the Lutheran Church of 
$XVWUDOLD��$/&�LV�VKDSLQJ�WRPRUURZ­V�
SDVWRUV��WHDFKHUV�DQG�FKXUFK�ZRUNHUV�
ZKR�ZLOO�WKLQN�LPDJLQDWLYHO\�DERXW�
issues that affect all of life in the church 
DQG�WKH�ZRUOG��7KH\�DUH�OHDUQLQJ�WR�
think faithfully and vitally about life and 
faith in the light of biblical and church 
teaching, and be effective spiritual 
OHDGHUV��HGXFDWRUV��DQG�ZRUNHUV�ZKR�
EULQJ�OLIH�DQG�UHQHZDO�LQ�WKH�FKXUFK�DQG�
communities they serve.

ALC became a Recognised Teaching 
Institution of MCD on December 1, 2010. 

Catholic Theological College (CTC) 

����9LFWRULD�3DUDGH��32�%R[������� 

East Melbourne 8002 

(03) 9412 3333 

email: ctc@ctc.edu.au 

website: www.ctc.edu.au 

&7&�ZDV�HVWDEOLVKHG�LQ������E\�D�
group of dioceses and religious 
RUGHUV�ZKLFK�DJUHHG�WR�DFW�WRJHWKHU�
as a confederated body in academic 
matters. This federation currently 
comprises the archdioceses of 
Melbourne and Hobart, the dioceses 
of Ballarat, Sandhurst and Sale, 
the Oblates of Mary Immaculate, 
the Salesians of Don Bosco, the 
Conventual Franciscan Friars, and the 
Dominican Friars. CTC is committed to 
the highest standards of teaching and 
research in philosophy and theology, 
ZLWKLQ�WKH�&DWKROLF�WUDGLWLRQ��,W�VKDUHV�
LQ�WKH�&KXUFK­V�PLVVLRQ�WR�VSUHDG�
the Gospel, and provides academic 
formation for people committed to the 
pastoral service of the Church. 

7KH�,QVWLWXWH�IRU�&KULVWLDQ�6SLULWXDOLW\� 

DQG�3DVWRUDO�)RUPDWLRQ��,&63)�  

���6WXGOH\�3DUN�5RDG��.HZ����� 

(03) 9854 8110 

email: smithm@mira.net   

website www.icspf.edu.au 

ICSPF coordinates MCD courses in 
Spirituality and Spiritual Direction, 
DQG�FROODERUDWHV�ZLWK�RWKHU�FHQWUHV�
of spiritual formation, particularly the 
WellSpring Centre, Ashburton, and the 
Campion Ignatian Spirituality Centre, 
.HZ��LQ�RIIHULQJ�VSHFLDOLVW�*UDGXDWH�
&HUWL´FDWH�DQG�'LSORPD�FRXUVHV�

in addition to the Master of Arts in 
Spirituality and Spiritual Direction. 

The priorities of ICSPF include the study 
of the Christian tradition of spirituality, 
and providing opportunities for ongoing 
UHVHDUFK�DQG�SUD[LV�LQ�VSHFL´F�VSLULWXDO�
traditions. The Institute is supported by 
the Carmelite Library. 

6WLUOLQJ�7KHRORJLFDO�&ROOHJH��67&� 

44-60 Jacksons Road, Mulgrave 3170  

(03) 9790 1000 

email: admin@stirling.edu.au 

website: www.stirling.edu.au 

Stirling, the College of the National 
Conference of Churches of Christ in 
$XVWUDOLD��ZDV�HVWDEOLVKHG�LQ�������
The College is both evangelical and 
ecumenical in approach to theology 
and faith, and has a passion to receive 
DQG�VKDUH�WKH�JRRG�QHZV�RI�*RG�
in Christ. Stirling delights in having 
Christians from different backgrounds 
to enrich the life of the community. 

7KH�6DOYDWLRQ�$UP\��$XVWUDOLD�

6RXWKHUQ��%RRWK�&ROOHJH��6$%&� 

����5R\DO�3DUDGH��3DUNYLOOH������  

(03) 9347 0299  

email: sabc@aus.salvationarmy.org  

website: www.sabc.edu.au

Although the SABC ministry focuses 
on the training of Salvation Army 
RI´FHUV��WKH�0&'�XQLWV�DUH�RSHQ�IRU�
enrolment to anyone. The College 
VHHNV�WR�SUHSDUH�SHRSOH�ZKR�NQRZ�
*RG��NQRZ�WKHPVHOYHV��DQG�NQRZ�WKHLU�
mission. An integrated application of 
personal spiritual formation, structured 
educational grounding and focused 
skills development offers realistic and 
effective preparation for the lifelong 
learning process. 

8QLWHG�)DFXOW\�RI�7KHRORJ\��8)7� 

���&ROOHJH�&UHVFHQW��3DUNYLOOH����� 

(03) 9340 8890  

email: admin@uft.edu.au  

website: www.uft.edu.au

8)7�LV�D�FR�RSHUDWLYH�YHQWXUH�LQ�
theological education involving three 
independent theological institutions 
XVLQJ�D�FRPPRQ�WLPHWDEOH�ZKR�VKDUH�
staff and teaching facilities: the Jesuit 
Theological College (Roman Catholic), 
Trinity College Theological School 
�$QJOLFDQ��DQG�WKH�8QLWLQJ�&KXUFK�
of Australia (Synod of Victoria and 
Tasmania) Theological College.

8)7�KDV�SURYLGHG�HFXPHQLFDOO\�EDVHG�
education and research since 1969. 

Some students are preparing for 
RUGLQDWLRQ�RU�OD\�PLQLVWU\��+RZHYHU��
8)7�DOVR�ZHOFRPHV�WKRVH�ZLVKLQJ�WR�
SXUVXH�WKH�VWXG\�RI�WKHRORJ\�ZLWKRXW�
any necessary commitment to the 
Church or to its ministry. 

:KLWOH\�&ROOHJH��:+7� 

����5R\DO�3DUDGH��3DUNYLOOH������ 

(03) 9348 8023  

email: whitley@whitley.unimelb.edu.au     

website: www.whitley.unimelb.edu.au

Whitley College is the Baptist College 
of Victoria and a residential college 
RI�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�0HOERXUQH��$�
ZLGH�UDQJH�RI�WKHRORJLFDO�VWXGLHV�DUH�
SRVVLEOH�DW�:KLWOH\��ZKRVH�PLVVLRQ�
LV�WR�HTXLS�ZRPHQ�DQG�PHQ�IRU�
leadership in church and society. 

Since 1891 Whitley has been a college 
marked by academic excellence, a 
strong sense of Christian purpose and 
a lively community. 

<DUUD�7KHRORJLFDO�8QLRQ��<78� 

���$OELRQ�5RDG��32�%R[����� 

%R[�+LOO����� 

(03) 9890 3771   

email: admin@ytu.edu.au   

website: www.ytu.edu.au 

<78�LV�DQ�LQVWLWXWLRQ�DULVLQJ�IURP�
the cooperation of a number of 
provinces of religious institutes: 
Blessed Sacrament Congregation, 
Divine Word Missionaries, Discalced 
Carmelites, Franciscans (OFM), 
and Missionaries of the Sacred 
Heart, Pallottines, Passionists, and 
5HGHPSWRULVWV��$XVWUDOLD�DQG�1HZ�
Zealand). As a centre of theological 
DQG�PLQLVWHULDO�HGXFDWLRQ��<78�LV�
initially concerned for students from 
the member institutes, and also 
accepts responsibility to provide such 
education for others. The ministerial 
DVSHFW�RI�WKH�<78�SURJUDP�LV�QRW�
restricted to formation for priestly 
ministry. 

In 2011 the following were member institutions of the MCD:
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Administrative 
structure
The MCD Act established the Council as the MCD governing body, 

advised by an Academic Board. Governing body: the Council  

(1 January – 31 December 2011):
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Indemnity

$OO�0&'�RI´FH�KROGHUV�DQG�FRPPLWWHH�PHPEHUV�DUH�LQGHPQL´HG�E\�WKH�

0&'�$FW�6HFWLRQ���%�ªDJDLQVW�DOO�DFWLRQV�RU�FODLPV��ZKHWKHU�VXFK�DFWLRQ�RU�

FODLP�DULVHV�GXULQJ�RU�DIWHU�WKH�WHUP�RI�RI´FH�RI�WKDW�PHPEHU��LQ�UHVSHFW�

of any act or thing done or omitted to be done in good faith in the 

H[HUFLVH�RU�SXUSRUWHG�H[HUFLVH�RI�DQ\�RI�WKH�SRZHUV�RU�GXW\�FRQIHUUHG�RU�

imposed upon the Council, committee or board or upon any member or 

PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�&RXQFLO�E\�RU�XQGHU�WKLV�$FW�«�

This requirement is covered by the MCD insurance policy held with AON 

5LVN�6HUYLFHV�$XVWUDOLD�/WG��ZKLFK�VSHFL´HV�XS�WR����0��H[FHVV���������

FRYHU�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�3URIHVVLRQDO�,QGHPQLW\��WKH�VDPH�FRYHU�IRU�'LUHFWRUV­�

DQG�2I´FHUV­�,QGHPQLW\����0��H[FHVV���������FRYHU�IRU�(PSOR\PHQW�

3UDFWLFHV�/LDELOLW\������0��H[FHVV��������H[FHSW�0ROHVWDWLRQ����������

IRU�3XEOLF�3URGXFWV�/LDELOLW\�DQG�����������H[FHVV���������IRU�)LGXFLDU\�

Liability. These policies are renewed annually for the period 1 December 

to 30 November in the following year.

0&'�VHQLRU�RI´FHUV

All MCD Central Administration staff are employed with a letter of 

appointment signed by the Dean, as well as an individual contract signed 

by both the Dean and the staff member. Individual contracts outline the 

remuneration and conditions of employment, which are in accordance 

ZLWK�WKH�+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�,QGXVWU\�*HQHUDO�6WDII�$ZDUG������DQG�WKH�

+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�,QGXVWU\�$FDGHPLF�6WDII�$ZDUG������IRU�SURIHVVLRQDO�

DQG�DFDGHPLF�VWDII�UHVSHFWLYHO\��DQG�DOLJQ�JHQHUDOO\�ZLWK�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�

Melbourne Collective Agreement 2010 and which include an additional 5% 

employer contribution to superannuation.  

Dean  

3URIHVVRU�3DXO�%HLUQH�0$�0'LY�'0LQ�3K'��&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2I´FHU��

H[HUFLVHV�JHQHUDO�RYHUVLJKW�RI�WKH�HGXFDWLRQDO�DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�DIIDLUV�

of the College (MCD Regulation 1.1A).

'LUHFWRU��)LQDQFH�DQG�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ��5HJLVWUDU��  

'U�0DUN�/LQGVD\�%$�+RQV��3K'�*UDG'LS7KHRO�)5+LVW6�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�

for the research portfolio, including HDR students’ matters, supervisor 

training, research seminars, grants and scholarships, and reporting to 

'((:5�RQ�UHVHDUFK�PDWWHUV��

'LUHFWRU�RI�5HVHDUFK  

'U�0DUN�/LQGVD\�%$�+RQV��3K'�)5+LVW6�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�UHVHDUFK�

portfolio, including HDR students matters, supervisor training, research 

VHPLQDUV��JUDQWV�DQG�VFKRODUVKLSV��DQG�UHSRUWLQJ�WR�'((:5�RQ� 

research matters.

'LUHFWRU�RI�&RXUVHZRUN   

Mr John Bartholomeusz BA DipEd GradDipComp DipBus, is responsible 

for all coursework studies, including records, policy implementation, and 

general administration. 
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)LQDQFH�0DQDJHU  

Ms Tricia Lewis BComm(Hons) is responsible for the administration of the 

´QDQFHV�RI�WKH�&HQWUDO�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�&ROOHJH��WKH�0&'�UHVHDUFK�

funding and the implementation of funding policies established by the 

MCD Finance and Investment Committee. 

4XDOLW\�DQG�&RPSOLDQFH�0DQDJHU

0V�-LW�/L�$X�%6F�3'0��PDQDJHV�WKH�V\VWHPV�QHFHVVDU\�WR�HQVXUH�0&'�

meets the compliance requirements of state and federal government 

agencies and maintains the MCD website.

MCD Council Committees

The Human Research Ethics Committee, the Academic Audit Committee, 

the Finance and Investment Committee, the Risk Management and Audit 

&RPPLWWHH��DQG�WKH�6WUDWHJLF�3ODQQLQJ�&RPPLWWHH�FRQWLQXHG�UHSRUWLQJ�

to the Council. The H.F. Leatherland Committee, a joint body of the MCD 

and the Australian Academy of Liturgy, continues to meet annually to 

manage the Leatherland Trust funds. 

,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKH�'HDQ­V�$SSRLQWPHQW��5HJXODWLRQV�DQG�3URFHGXUHV��

Capital Reserve Fund, Fellows, Honorary Doctorates, Employment 

Conditions, and Nominations and Governance Committees meet when 

necessary, and then report to Council. The following diagram illustrates 

this structure:

Reports 
to Vic 

Parliament

 
The Council (15 members)

Ten church representatives (50% external) 
Three Council-appointed members
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with Univ of 
Melbourne

Joint MCD 
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RTIs
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Appointed 
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of Victorian 
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& Audit 
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Strategic 
Planning 
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Dean’s Appointment
Fellows
Honorary Doctorates
Nominations and Governance
5HJXODWLRQV�DQG�3URFHGXUHV

Academic Board

DeanAcad Bd 
Chair

DF&A 
(Registrar) 
(Secretary)

Colleges
Human 

Research 
Ethics C’tee

MCD office 
Kew
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Meetings of Members

The number of meetings of the members of Council and of the Academic 

Board and Committees held during the year ended 31 December 2011, and 

the number of meetings attended by each member were: 

Attendance Lists 2011

Council

Members Meetings 
Attended

Meetings 
Held

5HY�'U�7HUU\�&XUWLQ� 
�&KDLU�	�3UHVLGHQW�

6 6

3URI�3DXO�%HLUQH� 5 5

3URI�6KHLOD�%HOODP\� 5 5

Dr Graeme Blackman 6 6

(PHULWXV�3URI�3HWHU�
&DUSHQWHU

� 6

5HY�-RKQ�+HQGHUVRQ� � 4

5HY�'U�0LFKDHO�.HOO\� � �

5HY�'U�$QGUHDV�/RHZH� 4 5

5HY�'U�$QGUHZ�0HQ]LHV 6 6

0U�5REHUW�0RUVLOOR 5 6

5HY�3URI�&KULVWLDDQ�
0RVWHUW�

4 5

0V�6XH�1RUPDQ� 5 5

0U�-RHO�3ORWQHN� � �

5HY�'U�)UDQN�5HHV� 4 5

5HY�:LOOLDP�8UHQ 5 6

Academic Board

Members Meetings 
Attended

Meetings 
Held

5HY�'U�0LFKDHO�.HOO\� 
�&KDLU�

� �

3URI�3DXO�%HLUQH 5 6

'U�)UDQFHV�%DNHU 5 6

'U�0DUN�%UHWW 5 6

0V�(YD�'DEDV\ 4 6

Dr Janette Gray � 4

Dr Peter Howard� � �

3URI�$QQH�+XQW � 6

'U�&DWKHULQH�0F&DKLOO 6 6

3URI�1LOVV�2OHNDOQV � 6

0U�-HIIUH\�5HDQH\ 5 6

Dr Peter Sherlock 6 6

'U�6HDQ�:LQWHU4 � 6

,Q�$WWHQGDQFH

'U�0DUN�/LQGVD\��0&'�
'LUHFWRU�RI�5HVHDUFK

4 6

0U�-RKQ�%DUWKRORPHXV]��
0&'�'LUHFWRU�RI�
Coursework

5 6

Academic Audit Committee

Members Meetings 
Attended

Meetings 
Held

3URI�-DPHV�0F/DUHQ�
�&KDLU�

5 5

3URI�3DXO�%HLUQH 5 5

5HY�'U�0LFKDHO�.HOO\� � 5

3URI�&RQVWDQW�0HZV � 5

Dr Anne Gardner � 5

0U�-HIIUH\�5HDQH\ 4 5

Strategic Planning Committee

Members Meetings 
Attended

Meetings 
Held

5HY�'U�7HUU\�&XUWLQ�
�&KDLU�

5 �

3URI�3DXO�%HLUQH � �

Dr Graeme Blackman � �

(PHULWXV�3URI�3HWHU�
&DUSHQWHU

6 �

5HY�'U�)UDQN�5HHV 5 �

0U�-HIIUH\�5HDQH\ � �

Risk Management  

and Audit Committee

Members Meetings 
Attended

Meetings 
Held

0U�-RHO�3ORWQHN��&KDLU� � 4

3URI�3DXO�%HLUQH � 4

5HY�&DQRQ�'U�5D\�&OHDU\ � 4

0U�6WXDUW�*RROH\ � 4

0U�.HQ�0DUVKPDQ � 4

0U�-HIIUH\�5HDQH\ 4 4

Finance and Investment  

Committee

Members Meetings 
Attended

Meetings 
Held

3URI�6KHLOD�%HOODP\��&KDLU� � �

3URI�3DXO�%HLUQH � �

0UV�7ULFLD�/HZLV � �

0U�)UDQFLV�0RRUH � �

0V�6XH�1RUPDQ � �

0U�-HIIUH\�5HDQH\ � �
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1 Leave of Absence granted. 

Rev Dr Michael Kelly, member of the Council and Chair of the Academic Board, was on sabbatical for 

the second half of 2011).

2 Rev John Henderson began attendance of the Council on 29 June 2011, representing the Lutheran 

Church of Australia.

�� 'U�3HWHU�+RZDUG�UHVLJQHG�EHIRUH�WKH�ODVW�$FDGHPLF�%RDUG�PHHWLQJ�RI�WKH�\HDU��DQG�WKHUHIRUH�ZDV�

eligible only to attend 3 of the 6 meetings which were held.

�� 'U�6HDQ�:LQWHU�ZDV�RYHUVHDV�IRU�VHYHUDO�PRQWKV�LQ������

�� 0DUJDUHW�6FDUOHWW�UHVLJQHG�EHIRUH�WKH�ODVW�+XPDQ�5HVHDUFK�(WKLFV�&RPPLWWHH�PHHWLQJ�RI�WKH�\HDU��

and therefore was eligible only to attend 3 of the 4 meetings which were held.

6 Dr Mark Brett, as Deputy Chair of the Academic Board, was invited to participate in two Regulations 

DQG�3URFHGXUHV�&RPPLWWHH�PHHWLQJV�LQ������

Human Research Ethics  

Committee

Members Meetings 
Attended

Meetings 
Held

$VVRF�3URI�5RVDOLH�
+XGVRQ��&KDLU�

4 4

'U�0DUN�/LQGVD\ 4 4

0U�*HRUJH�/RSH] 4 4

0V�7XQGH�0HLNOH � 4

'U�3ULVFLOOD�5RELQVRQ 4 4

0UV�0DUJDUHW�6FDUOHWW6 � �

3URI�)UDQ�0F,QHUQH\ � 4

Regulations & Procedures 

Committee

Members Meetings 
Attended

Meetings 
Held

0U�-HIIUH\�5HDQH\��&KDLU� 4 4

0U�-RKQ�%DUWKRORPHXV] 4 4

3URI�3DXO�%HLUQH � 4

'U�0DUN�%UHWW6 � �

5HY�'U�0LFKDHO�.HOO\� � �

0V�-LW�/L�$X 4 4

'U�0DUN�/LQGVD\ 4 4

Dr James Potter 4 4

Employment Conditions Committee

Members Meetings 
Attended

Meetings 
Held

5HYG�'U�7HUU\�&XUWLQ�
�&KDLU�

� �

'U�0DUN�/LQGVD\ �� �

3URI�3DXO�%HLUQH � �

0U�-HIIUH\�5HDQH\ �� �

Capital Reserve Fund Committee

Members Meetings 
Attended

Meetings 
Held

5HYG�'U�7HUU\�&XUWLQ�
�&KDLU�

� �

3URI�3DXO�%HLUQH� � �

Dr Graeme Blackman � �

3URI�6KHLOD�%HOODP\ � �

5HY�:LOOLDP�8UHQ �� �

0U�-HIIUH\�5HDQH\ � �

Governance and Nominations 

Committee

Members Meetings 
Attended

Meetings 
Held

5HYG�'U�7HUU\�&XUWLQ�
�&KDLU�

�� �

3URI�3DXO�%HLUQH � �

Dr Graeme Blackman � �

5HY�'U�$QGUHZ�0HQ]LHV� � �

H.F Leatherland  

Committee

Members Meetings 
Attended

Meetings 
Held

5HY�3URI�5REHUW�*ULEEHQ�
�&KDLU�

��� �

5HY�7RP�.QRZOHV � �

'U�0DUN�/LQGVD\ �� �
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The Academic Audit Committee reports to the MCD Council. It provides 

D�¬TXDOLW\�FRQVFLHQFH­�IRU�WKH�0&'��HQVXULQJ�FRQVLVWHQF\�RI�DWWHQWLRQ�

to academic integrity and quality assurance across the College, including 

DFDGHPLF�DXGLWV��7KH�&RPPLWWHH�FRQVLVWV�RI�IRXU�SHUVRQV�H[WHUQDO�WR�

the College, appointed by the Council, and one member appointed by 

the Academic Board, in addition to the Dean, the Director Finance and 

Administration (Registrar), and the Quality and Compliance Manager. All 

H[WHUQDO�PHPEHUV�DUH�SHUVRQV�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�KDYLQJ�H[SHUWLVH�LQ�PDWWHUV�RI�

academic quality assurance.

The Human Research Ethics Committee oversees the ethical conduct of 

research involving MCD researchers whose research includes research with 

human subjects. It reviews the ethics of research projects submitted by 

candidates for higher degrees by research and other awards of the College, 

or by other researchers the Council or Committee deems appropriate, and 

approves and monitors those projects. The Committee advises the Council 

and Academic Board regarding categories of research that merit ethical 

review and provides annual reports to the Council and to the National 

Health and Medical Research Council, through the Australian Health Ethics 

Committee. 

&KDLUV�RI�([DPLQHUV�DUH�DSSRLQWHG�DQQXDOO\�E\�WKH�0&'�$FDGHPLF�%RDUG�

IRU�HDFK�´HOG�RI�VWXG\��+XPDQLWLHV��%LEOLFDO�6WXGLHV��&KULVWLDQ�7KRXJKW�

DQG�+LVWRU\��7KHRORJ\��0LVVLRQ�DQG�0LQLVWU\��DQG�0LQLVWU\�6WXGLHV��7KH�

&KDLUV�RI�([DPLQHUV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�DVVHVVPHQW�RI�WKHVHV��DQG�WKH�

moderation of coursework results, which are administered by the MCD 

Director, Finance and Administration (Registrar).

The Academic Board

The MCD Act established the Academic Board, which has two sub 

FRPPLWWHHV��&RXUVHZRUN�6WXGLHV�DQG�5HVHDUFK���7KH�$FDGHPLF�%RDUG�

H[HUFLVHV�RYHUVLJKW�RI�DFDGHPLF�SURJUDPV�DQG�RWKHU�DFDGHPLF�DIIDLUV�

of the College and provides advice to the MCD Council on all such 

matters.  It makes recommendations to the Council regarding instruction, 

VWXGLHV��GLVFLSOLQH��H[DPLQDWLRQV��DVVHVVPHQWV��UHVHDUFK��GHJUHHV��

GLSORPDV��FHUWL´FDWHV�DQG�RWKHU�DZDUGV��DQG�UHSRUWV�WR�WKH�&RXQFLO�RQ�DOO�

matters the Council submits to it. It prepares reports for the Council on 

proposals for regulations concerning courses of study before a regulation 

FRQFHUQLQJ�D�GHJUHH��GLSORPD��FHUWL´FDWH�RU�RWKHU�DZDUG�LV�PDGH��

amended or revoked by the Council.

In accordance with the Act and the Regulations of the College, the 

Academic Board: 

Academic  
governance
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�� GHWHUPLQHV�WKH�RYHUDOO�SULRULWLHV�DQG�GLUHFWLRQ�RI�WHDFKLQJ�DQG�

research, as informed by the MCD Vision, Mission and Guiding Values 

6WDWHPHQW

�� IRVWHUV�DQG�RYHUVHHV�DFDGHPLF�UHODWLRQV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�0&'�DQG�RWKHU�

academic bodies

�� HVWDEOLVKHV��RYHUVHHV�DQG�UHYLHZV�SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHGXUHV�WKDW�

SURPRWH�DFDGHPLF�H[FHOOHQFH�DFURVV�WKH�&ROOHJH

�� HQVXUHV�TXDOLW\�DVVXUDQFH�LQ�DFDGHPLF�PDWWHUV�DFURVV�WKH�&ROOHJH��

including compliance with statutory and legislative requirements

�� DGYLVHV�WKH�&RXQFLO�RQ�WKH�DSSURYDO�DQG�UHYLHZ�RI�5HFRJQLVHG�

Teaching Institutions

�� FRQGXFWV�UHJXODU�UHYLHZV�RI�WKH�DZDUGV�RI�WKH�&ROOHJH

�� RYHUVHHV�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ�RI�WKH�0&'�/HDUQLQJ�

DQG�7HDFKLQJ�0DQDJHPHQW�3ODQ��DQG�RI�WKH�0&'�5HVHDUFK�DQG�

5HVHDUFK�7UDLQLQJ�0DQDJHPHQW�3ODQ

�� HVWDEOLVKHV��RYHUVHHV�DQG�UHYLHZV�DFDGHPLF�SROLF\�DQG�SURFHGXUHV��

including admission to candidature, approval of credits and transfers, 

academic records, and academic grievances

�� RYHUVHHV�WKH�DSSURYDO�RI�WHDFKLQJ�IDFXOW\�DQG�UHVHDUFK�VXSHUYLVRUV

�� RYHUVHHV�WKH�DSSURYDO�RI�FRXUVHZRUN�XQLWV�DQG�UHVHDUFK�SURSRVDOV

�� RYHUVHHV�WKH�DSSRLQWPHQW�RI�H[DPLQHUV�DQG�WKH�FRQGXFW�RI�

H[DPLQDWLRQV

�� FHUWL´HV�WR�WKH�&RXQFLO�WKDW�WKH�FRQGLWLRQV�SUHVFULEHG�IRU�DGPLVVLRQ�

WR�GHJUHHV�DQG�DZDUGLQJ�RI�GLSORPDV�DQG�FHUWL´FDWHV�RI�WKH�&ROOHJH�

KDYH�EHHQ�IXO´OOHG��DQG�RQ�WKDW�EDVLV�UHFRPPHQGV�WR�WKH�&RXQFLO�

admission to those degrees and awarding of those diplomas and 

FHUWL´FDWHV

�� WKURXJK�WKH�&KDLU�RI�WKH�$FDGHPLF�%RDUG��DGYLVHV�WKH�)LQDQFH�

Committee on fees and payments associated with tuition, and on the 

dispersal of research funding

�� RYHUVHHV�WKH�DZDUG�RI�DFDGHPLF�VFKRODUVKLSV�DQG�JUDQWV��
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Membership of the Academic Board comprises:

The Chairperson, and the Deputy Chairperson, appointed by the 

Council on the recommendation of the Academic Board 

The MCD Dean and the MCD Director, Finance & Administration 

(Registrar) (H[�RI´FLR)

7KH�&KDLUV�RI�WKH�&RXUVHZRUN�6WXGLHV�&RPPLWWHH�DQG�WKH�5HVHDUFK�

Committee

7KUHH�H[WHUQDO�PHPEHUV��FR�RSWHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG

Three internal members, co-opted by the Board 

One student member, co-opted by the Board  

In attendance: MCD Director of Research and MCD Director of 

Coursework.

The following diagram illustrates the MCD academic governance.

Academic Board

 
College Council

MCD Dean AB Chair

DF&A (Registrar) 
(Secretary) (ex officio)

Coursework 
Studies 

Committee

RTIs

RTI Research Coordinators RTI Coursework Coordinators

Human 
Research 

Ethics C’tee

Director of 
Research

([WHUQDO�
Academics

/,$0

MCD academic governance

 Academic
Audit 

Committee

Research 
Committee

Director of 
Coursework
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Core business

Theology Ministry ,QWHUGLVFLSOLQDU\

Diploma 'LSORPD�LQ�7KHRORJ\�

$GYDQFHG�'LSORPD�LQ�
Theology�

$VVRFLDWH�'LSORPD�LQ�
0LQLVWU\

'LSORPD�LQ�0LQLVWU\

'LSORPD�LQ�0LQLVWU\�
�6SHFLDO��

$GYDQFHG�'LSORPD�LQ�
0LQLVWU\

$GYDQFHG�'LSORPD�LQ�
0LQLVWU\��6SHFLDO��

Undergraduate %DFKHORU�RI�7KHRORJ\�

%DFKHORU�RI�7KHRORJ\� 
%DFKHORU�RI�$UWV��0RQDVK�

%DFKHORU�RI�7KHRORJ\�
�+RQV�

%DFKHORU�RI�0LQLVWU\

Graduate *UDGXDWH�&HUWL´FDWH�LQ�
7KHRORJ\��6SHFLDO��

*UDGXDWH�'LSORPD�LQ� 
7KHRORJ\��6SHFLDO�4

*UDGXDWH�'LSORPD�LQ� 
Counselling

*UDGXDWH�'LSORPD�LQ�
0LQLVWU\

*UDGXDWH�&HUWL´FDWH�LQ�
Theology

*UDGXDWH�'LSORPD�LQ�
Theology

0DVWHU�RI�'LYLQLW\

0DVWHU�RI�'LYLQLW\��+RQV�

0DVWHU�RI�7KHRORJLFDO�
Studies

Postgraduate 0DVWHU�RI�$UWV��6SHFLDO�4 0DVWHU�RI�$UWV� 
�7KHRORJ\�

Research 0DVWHU�RI�7KHRORJ\

'RFWRU�RI�7KHRORJ\

0DVWHU�RI�0LQLVWU\

'RFWRU�RI�0LQLVWU\�6WXGLHV

0DVWHU�RI�$UWV

'RFWRU�RI�3KLORVRSK\

Senior 'RFWRU�RI�'LYLQLW\

'RFWRU�RI�6DFUHG�7KHRORJ\��honoris causa�

1 Disciplines currently available as specialisations for the Diploma in Ministry and the Advanced Diploma in Ministry are: 

3DVWRUDO�0LQLVWU\��3KLORVRSK\�DQG�6RFLDO�-XVWLFH�

2  Disciplines currently available as specialisations for the Diploma in Theology and the Advanced Diploma in Theology are: 

&RXQVHOOLQJ��&KDSODLQF\��(GXFDWLRQ��3DVWRUDO�0LQLVWU\��3KLORVRSK\��6RFLDO�-XVWLFH�DQG�<RXWK�0LQLVWU\�

����'LVFLSOLQHV�FXUUHQWO\�DYDLODEOH�DV�VSHFLDOLVDWLRQV�IRU�WKH�*UDGXDWH�&HUWL´FDWH�LQ�7KHRORJ\�DUH��(GXFDWLRQDO�&KDSODLQF\��
,JQDWLDQ�6SLULWXDOLW\��/LWXUJ\��3DVWRUDO�&DUH��5HOLJLRXV�(GXFDWLRQ��6SLULWXDO�'LUHFWLRQ�6XSHUYLVLRQ� 
�6SLULWXDO�'LUHFWLRQ��DQG�7HDFKLQJ�5HOLJLRXV�(GXFDWLRQ�

�� 'LVFLSOLQHV�FXUUHQWO\�DYDLODEOH�DV�VSHFLDOLVDWLRQV�IRU�WKH�*UDGXDWH�'LSORPD�LQ�7KHRORJ\��6SHFLDO��DQG�WKH�0DVWHU�RI�
$UWV��6SHFLDO��DUH��%LEOLFDO�6WXGLHV��&KXUFK�+LVWRU\��(GXFDWLRQDO�&KDSODLQF\��)DLWK�/HDGHUVKLS��/LWXUJ\��0LQLVWU\�6WXGLHV��
0LVVLRORJ\��0RUDO�7KHRORJ\��3DVWRUDO�&DUH��3KLORVRSK\��5HOLJLRXV�(GXFDWLRQ��6RFLDO�-XVWLFH��6SLULWXDO�'LUHFWLRQ��6SLULWXDOLW\�
DQG�6\VWHPDWLF�7KHRORJ\�

The core business of the Melbourne College of Divinity is teaching, 

learning and research in Divinity and associated disciplines.

Awards

7KH�&ROOHJH�RIIHUV�WKH�IROORZLQJ�DZDUGV�XQGHU�WKH�DXWKRULW\�RI� 

the MCD Act:
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Research

5HVHDUFK��2YHUYLHZ

In 2011, the MCD continued its strong track record of producing high quality 

research, particularly through publications and conferences, and its higher 

degree by research programs. Despite strong competition from a growing 

number of public universities and private higher education providers, the 

MCD has remained one of the leading institutions for enrolments in higher 

GHJUHHV�E\�UHVHDUFK��LQ�WKH�´HOGV�RI�7KHRORJ\��'LYLQLW\�DQG�5HOLJLRXV�

6WXGLHV��DFURVV�WKH�HQWLUH�$XVWUDOLDQ�KLJKHU�HGXFDWLRQ�VHFWRU��7KH�(5$�

outcomes, noted below, illustrate the strength of the MCD’s research 

TXDOLW\�LQ�WKH�QDUURZ�´HOG�ZLWKLQ�ZKLFK�RXU�DFDGHPLF�VWDII�RSHUDWH�

A thriving research community continues to grow steadily at the MCD, 

building upon and enhancing the international reputation that has 

been established throughout the last one hundred years. That the MCD 

KDV�EHHQ�VXFFHVVIXO�LQ�JDLQLQJ�DSSURYDO�WR�RSHUDWH�DV�$XVWUDOLD­V�´UVW�

VSHFLDOLVHG�XQLYHUVLW\�LV��LQ�VLJQL´FDQW�SDUW��DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�WKH�KLVWRU\�RI�

high quality research which has been produced by academic staff and 

research students alike. 

One of the major reasons for MCD’s strong position is the Commonwealth 

funding for research it has received since 2002. In 2011, the MCD 

UHFHLYHG�IXQGV�IURP�WKH�-RLQW�5HVHDUFK�(QJDJHPHQW�6FKHPH��5HVHDUFK�

7UDLQLQJ�6FKHPH��$XVWUDOLDQ�3RVWJUDGXDWH�$ZDUGV�DQG�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�

3RVWJUDGXDWH�5HVHDUFK�$ZDUGV��6\VWHPDWLF�SROLF\�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�

planning has supported the strategic and equitable disbursement of these 

IXQGV��WKURXJK�WKH�*UDQWV�DQG�6FKRODUVKLSV�:RUNLQJ�*URXS�RI�WKH�0&'�

5HVHDUFK�&RPPLWWHH��,Q�������0&'�DZDUGHG���QHZ�$3$V�DQG���QHZ�,356��

WR�IXQG�D�WRWDO�RI����$3$�VWXGHQWV��DQG���,356�VWXGHQWV���6HH�DOVR�XQGHU�

Research Grants and Linkages.)  

Personnel and Governance

MCD’s research activity, including that undertaken by both academic staff 

and postgraduate research students, is overseen by the Director of Re-

search, who works closely with the MCD Research Committee. In addition, 

the 7 Recognised Teaching Institutions (RTIs) of the MCD which conduct 

research have their own 0.2 FTE Research Coordinators, who collaborate 

with the Director of Research to encourage faculty and postgraduate re-

search. This cooperation between the central MCD administration and the 

57,V�LV�FUXFLDO�WR�PDLQWDLQLQJ�WKH�RYHUDOO�UHVHDUFK�SUR´OH��

The MCD Director of Research is a member of the Australian Council of 

'HDQV�DQG�'LUHFWRUV�RI�*UDGXDWH�6WXGLHV��3OHDVLQJO\��DQG�E\�YLUWXH�RI�

WKH�0&'­V�DSSURYDO�WR�FRPPHQFH�RSHUDWLRQV�DV�D�6SHFLDOLVHG�8QLYHUVLW\�

IURP���-DQXDU\�������WKH�0&'�ZDV�JUDQWHG�IXOO�PHPEHUVKLS�RI�''R*6�LQ�

6HSWHPEHU������

7KH�'LUHFWRU�KDV�EHHQ�DVVLVWHG�E\�WKH�5HVHDUFK�6WXGHQWV­�6XSSRUW�2I´FHU��

DQG�WKH�5HSRVLWRU\�2I´FHU��,Q�2FWREHU�������WKH�SRVLWLRQ�RI�5HVHDUFK�

6WXGHQWV­�6XSSRUW�2I´FHU�ZDV�UHQDPHG�5HVHDUFK�6HUYLFHV�2I´FHU��WR�

better encompass the range of activities undertaken by that person. A 

new appointment was made in October, with the appointee commencing 

work in late November.
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,Q�'HFHPEHU�������WKH�0&'�DSSRLQWHG�3URIHVVRU�%HUQDUG�0XLU�)$+$�

DV�D�UHVHDUFK�JUDQW�FRQVXOWDQW��3URIHVVRU�0XLU�KDV�ZRUNHG�WKURXJKRXW�

2011 with academic staff and HDR students, particularly to advise on 

DQG�VKHSKHUG�FRPSHWLWLYH�UHVHDUFK�JUDQW�DSSOLFDWLRQV���6HH�DOVR�XQGHU�

Research Grants and Linkages.) 

&RXUVH�5HYLHZV

)ROORZLQJ�WKH�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�UHYLHZ�RI�WKH�$GYDQFHG�0LQLVWU\�6WXGLHV�

programs in 2009-2010, a review of the two research masters courses, the 

Master of Arts and the Master of Theology, was conducted in 2011.

5HFRPPHQGDWLRQV�DULVLQJ�IURP�WKDW�UHYLHZ�LQFOXGH�WKH�VLPSOL´FDWLRQ�DQG�

standardisation of entry criteria, and the replacement of the Master of 

$UWV�ZLWK�D�0DVWHU�RI�3KLORVRSK\��03KLO���DV�D�PRUH�DSSURSULDWH�SDWKZD\�

WR�WKH�3K'��7KLV�DOLJQV�ZLWK�VLPLODU�LQLWLDWLYHV�EHLQJ�XQGHUWDNHQ�DW�D�

number of other Australian universities.

,Q�������D�UHYLHZ�RI�WKH�3K'�DQG�'RFWRU�RI�7KHRORJ\��'7KHRO��ZLOO�EH�

undertaken.

1HJRWLDWLRQV�ZLWK�WKH�)HGHUDO�*RYHUQPHQW

In March, the MCD participated in roundtable discussions with 

UHSUHVHQWDWLYHV�IURP�',,65�DQG�WKH�$5&�WR�´QDOLVH�WKH�PLVVLRQ��EDVHG�

compact between the MCD and the Commonwealth Government. In these 

QHJRWLDWLRQV��WKH�UROH�RI�UHVHDUFK�ZLWKLQ�WKH�0&'­V�LQVWLWXWLRQDO�SUR´OH�ZDV�

of key importance, particularly in the setting of agreed indicative targets 

for research activity between 2011-2013. As part of the Government’s 

ZLGHU�5HVHDUFK�:RUNIRUFH�6WUDWHJ\��WKH�'LUHFWRU�RI�5HVHDUFK�KDV�DOVR�

been involved in sector-wide discussions with the Commonwealth 

*RYHUQPHQW�RQ�D�UHYLHZ�RI�WKH�5HVHDUFK�7UDLQLQJ�6FKHPH��

Report on Excellence in Research Australia (ERA)

After a successful submission for the 2010 ERA initiative, for which 

the MCD was given a rating of 3—performing at ZRUOG�VWDQGDUG—in 

LWV�DVVHVVHG�)LHOG�RI�5HVHDUFK���������5HOLJLRQ�DQG�5HOLJLRXV�6WXGLHV��

the MCD has made steady progress in its preparations for ERA 2012. 

The Director of Research attended ERA preparation conferences 

DQG�ZRUNVKRSV�ZLWK�RWKHU�'9&�5�V��UXQ�E\�'((:5�DQG�WKH�&RXQFLO�

IRU�+XPDQLWLHV��$UWV�DQG�6RFLDO�6FLHQFHV��WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�0&'�LV�

VWUDWHJLFDOO\�SRVLWLRQHG�IRU�DQ�H[FHOOHQW�VXEPLVVLRQ�LQ�������$V�SDUW�RI�

this preparation, the MCD appointed in October 2011 a new Research 

6HUYLFHV�2I´FHU��ZKR�KDV�H[FHOOHQW�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�(5$�VXEPLVVLRQV�DW�D�

large public university. 

7KH�0&'�LV�SDUWLFXODUO\�GHWHUPLQHG�WR�PD[LPLVH�LWV�SHUIRUPDQFH�LQ� 

ERA 2012, given that ERA results will begin to drive funding allocations 

from 2013.

Research Grants and Linkages

Funded research activity is central to the ability of MCD academic staff 

and HDR students to carry out their research projects. To this end, the 

*UDQWV�DQG�6FKRODUVKLSV�:RUNLQJ�*URXS�RI�WKH�5HVHDUFK�&RPPLWWHH�PHW�
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four times during 2011 to allocate competitive research grants, in three 

major categories: seed funding for small research projects; conference 

WUDYHO�JUDQWV��OLEUDU\�UHVHDUFK�DFTXLVLWLRQV��,Q�DOO�����������ZDV�DOORFDWHG�

WKURXJKRXW��������6HH�DOVR�EHORZ�XQGHU�Faculty and HDR Student 

Research.)

The MCD is also actively collaborating in research and research training 

programs with institutions throughout Australia and around the world, 

including in competitive research grant applications.

8QGHU�WKH�JXLGDQFH�RI�3URIHVVRU�0XLU��WKUHH�PHPEHUV�RI�DFDGHPLF�VWDII�

submitted ARC Discovery Grant applications in the March 2011 round, for 

funding to commence in 2012. One other researcher submitted a Discovery 

Early Career Researcher Award (DECRA) application in the May 2011 round, 

IRU�IXQGLQJ�WR�FRPPHQFH�LQ�������:KLOH�QRQH�RI�WKHVH�DSSOLFDWLRQV�ZDV�

XOWLPDWHO\�VXFFHVVIXO��WKH�0&'�LV�DZDUH�WKDW�WKH�´UVW�VWHS�LQ�LQFUHDVLQJ�

our competitiveness is to boost the number of academic staff applying 

for research grants. To that end, the MCD has been encouraged by the 

growing interest in pursuing competitive research grants. 

The MCD was named as a Collaborating Organisation in a successful ARC 

/LQNDJH�3URMHFW�JUDQW��IRU�IXQGLQJ�IRU�WKUHH�\HDUV�IURP������������IRU�D�

project entitled Imagining Poverty: conceptualising and representing 

poverty and the poor in mendicant inspired literature, preaching and 

visual art 1220-1520.  One member of academic staff is listed as a Chief 

Investigator and one MCD post-doctoral student is included as a research 

assistant for this project, in which the MCD is collaborating with Monash 

8QLYHUVLW\��WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�:$��DQG�WKH�'RPLQLFDQ�DQG�)UDQFLVFDQ�)ULDUV��

7KLV�LV�WKH�´UVW�WLPH�WKDW�WKH�0&'�KDV�EHHQ�SDUW�RI�D�VXFFHVVIXO�$5&�

project. It is hoped that this participation will not only assist in unlocking a 

modest amount of Research Infrastructure Block Grant funding, but more 

importantly will help leverage other funded research projects.

The MCD has also continued to collaborate with:

�� 8QLYHUVLW\�RI�0HOERXUQH��WKH�0&'�LV�DI´OLDWHG�E\�VWDWXWH�ZLWK�WKH�

8QLYHUVLW\�RI�0HOERXUQH��0&'�UHVHDUFK�VWXGHQWV�DQG�VXSHUYLVRUV�DUH�DEOH�

WR�DFFHVV�VHPLQDUV�DQG�ZRUNVKRSV�WKDW�DUH�UXQ�E\�WKH�0HOERXUQH�6FKRRO�

of Graduate Research; a number of MCD academic and administrative staff 

KROG�KRQRUDU\�UHVHDUFK�IHOORZVKLSV�DW�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\��DQG�VRPH�0HOERXUQH�

staff act as co-supervisors for MCD research students 

�� $XVWUDOLDQ�&DWKROLF�8QLYHUVLW\��LQ�6HSWHPEHU�������WKH�0&'�DQG�$&8�

MRLQWO\�VSRQVRUHG�D�VHFRQG�DQQXDO�3RVWJUDGXDWH�&RQIHUHQFH�LQ�7KHRORJ\�

DQG�3KLORVRSK\��WKDW�DOVR�LQFOXGHG�UHVHDUFK�VWXGHQWV�IURP�&KDUOHV�6WXUW�

8QLYHUVLW\��WKH�$XVWUDOLDQ�&ROOHJH�RI�7KHRORJ\��DQG�WKH�6\GQH\�&ROOHJH�

of Divinity

�� &KULVWLDQ�5HVHDUFK�$VVRFLDWLRQ��ZLWK�ZKLFK�WKH�0&'�KDV�EHHQ�

H[SORULQJ�WKH�SRVVLELOLW\�RI�HQWHULQJ�LQWR�D�PRUH�IRUPDOLVHG�SDUWQHUVKLS

�� ,QWHUQDWLRQDO�6\ULDF�/DQJXDJH�3URMHFW��LQFRUSRUDWLQJ��0&'��&DPEULGJH�

8QLYHUVLW\��9ULMH�8QLYHUVLWHLW��$PVWHUGDP���8QLYHUVLW\�RI�0�QVWHU��

&DWKROLF�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�$PHULFD��%DU�,ODQ�8QLYHUVLW\��,VUDHO���3HVKLWWD�

Institute Leiden

The MCD was the lead institution in a submission for Collaborative 

5HVHDUFK�1HWZRUN�IXQGLQJ�ZLWK�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�0HOERXUQH��0RQDVK�
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8QLYHUVLW\��$&8�DQG�&KDUOHV�6WXUW�8QLYHUVLW\��7KH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�ZDV�

unsuccessful. However, each of the participating institutions has agreed 

WR�FRQWLQXH�WR�H[SORUH�FROODERUDWLYH�SURMHFWV�ZLWK�HDFK�RWKHU� 

Research Performance

Table 1:  

1HZ�(QUROPHQWV�IRU�+'5V���������� 

Beginning 'RFWRUDO 0DVWHUV�5HVHDUFK Total

2009 (semester 1) � �� ��

2009 (semester 2) � 5 6

2009 (total) � �� ��

2010 (semester 1) � � 5

2010 (semester 2) 6 � ��

2010 (total) � � ��

2011 (semester 1) � � ��

2011 (semester 2) � 5 6

2011 (total) � �� ��

Upgrading masters to  
doctorate 2011

�

 

 
Table 2:  

&RPSDUDWLYH�(QUROPHQW�1XPEHUV�IRU�+'5V����������� 

  2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

MA �3�7� �� �� �� �� ��

MA �)�7� � �� 5 � 5

MA �7RWDO� �� �� �� �� ��

MMin �3�7� � 4 � n.a. n.a.

MMin �)�7� � � � n.a. n.a.

MMin �7RWDO� � 5 4 n.a. n.a.

MTheol �3�7� �� �� �� �� ��

MTheol �)�7� � � �� � 4

MTheol �7RWDO� �� �� �� �� ��

DMinStuds �3�7� �� �� �� �� �

DMinStuds �)�7� � � � � �

DMinStuds �7RWDO� �� �� �� �� �

PhD �3�7� �� �� �� �� ��

PhD �)�7� �� �� �� �� ��

PhD �7RWDO� �� �� �� �� ��

DTheol �3�7� �� � � �� ��

DTheol �)�7� �� �� � � ��

DTheol �7RWDO� �� �� �� �� ��

Students �7RWDO� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��

Table 2a:  

Comparative Enrolment by EFTSL for HDRs

Year 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

EFTSLs ������ ������ ������ ������ ������
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7DEOH��� 

Higher Degree by Research completions 2010

Degree Conferred 12 May 2011

Attending In absentia 

Master of Arts � �

Master of Theology 6 4

Master of Ministry � �

Doctor of Philosophy 6 �

Doctor of Theology � �

Doctor of Ministry Studies � �

Total  (25) �� �

 

There was a decline in the number of students enrolled in Higher 

Degrees by Research (HDRs), from 105 in 2010 to 102 in 2011. There 

ZDV�D�FRUUHVSRQGLQJ�GHFUHDVH�LQ�()76/V�LQ�+'5�SURJUDPV�IURP������

WR�������UHµHFWLQJ�WKH�LQFUHDVLQJ�SRSXODULW\�RI�SDUW�WLPH�FDQGLGDWXUH��

One reason for the decrease in enrolments in recent years has been the 

much improved completion rates of MCD research students. Between 

2009-2011, a total of 80 students have been awarded higher degrees 

by research at the MCD conferral ceremonies, 31 of whom have been 

GRFWRUDO�JUDGXDWHV��,W�KDV�DOVR�EHHQ�HQFRXUDJLQJ�WR�QRWH�WKDW�WKH�3K'�

program has continued to increase in popularity, more than doubling its 

enrolments since 2005.

Table 4: 

Research funding: Industry Funding and Government Funding

MCD commenced reporting Industry Funding, through the Higher 

Education Research Data Collection (HERDC) in 2004, and consequently 

receiving the following funding. 

Funding  

Category

2003 

$

2004 

$

2005 

$

2006 

$

2007 

$

2008 

$

2009 

$

2010 

$

2011 

$

IGS 143,387 154,082  175,875 200,499 222,474 215,578 209,100 - -

JRE - - - - - - - 284,282 312,212

RTS  92,366 99,218 253,744  371,826  508,950 574,860  584,091 582,121 636,299

CTS - - - - 20,810  21,226 21,671 22,126 -

IAPS - - - - 26,275  52,634  53,572 22,473 -

ASHER - - - -  118,217  235,863 169,141 - -

APA  87,568  153,071  184,898  174,634 173,942 151,098  142,157 172,427 257,728

IPRS  11,292  15,828  20,868  12,268 65,888  55,461 54,737 56,015 61,633

SRE - - - - - - - 200,000 -

Total 
Govt. 
Research 
Funding

334,613 422,199  635,385
 

759,227  1,136,556  1,306,720
 

1,234,469 1,339,444 1,267,872

Industry 
Funding

  1,009,907 1,518,336 2,035,968 1,867,899 1,785,404 1,711,144 1,923,315



31

Melbourne College of Divinity Annual Report 2011

Research funding: Industry Funding  
and Government Funding

The MCD has received Commonwealth Government funding for research 

since 2002, with a 393% increase in that funding for the period 2002-

2011. Industry funding has been reported through the Higher Education 

Research Data Collection (HERDC) since 2004. The MCD’s primary 

industry partners are the sponsoring churches and religious orders, and 

WKHVH�LQVWLWXWLRQV�SURYLGHG������������IRU�UHVHDUFK�LQ���������

In consultation and with the cooperation of all the MCD member 

institutions, a process has been established to ensure compliance with 

the HERDC Guidelines and similarly to ensure that all industry funding 

received by the MCD is acknowledged and recognised appropriately 

on behalf of the industry partners. This funding enables the MCD to 

continue to foster and develop the quality of the research at the College 

and to improve the services offered to both staff and students in the 

pursuit of their research.

Faculty and HDR Student Research

MCD faculty members are very active in research and are supported in this 

E\�WKH�0&'�5HVHDUFK�2I´FH��,Q�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�SURYLVLRQ�RI�VWXG\�OHDYH�E\�

the Recognised Teaching Institutions, the MCD disburses conference and 

small grants funds to faculty members for individual and team research 

projects. Conference travel grants are available also to Higher Degree by 

Research students. In total, 24 faculty and HDR students were funded to 

attend and present papers at conferences during 2011, and 8 faculty small 

grants were approved. All of the theological libraries associated with the 

0&'�UHFHLYHG�VLJQL´FDQW�IXQGLQJ�IURP�0&'�UHVHDUFK�PRQLHV�WR�VXSSRUW�

UHVHDUFK�DFTXLVLWLRQV��WR�D�WRWDO�RI����������5HVHDUFK�VXSHUYLVRUV�DUH�DOVR�

funded for supervision responsibilities. 

In 2012, the guidelines for HDR conference travel will be revised, to allow 

IXQGLQJ�IRU�UHVHDUFK�VWXGHQWV�WR�XQGHUWDNH�DUFKLYDO�ZRUN�LQ�VLJQL´FDQW�

collections which are held interstate or overseas.

Various training and support seminars were held for faculty throughout 

WKH�\HDU��LQFOXGLQJ�D�5HVHDUFK�6XSHUYLVRUV�7UDLQLQJ�6HVVLRQ��7KH�

5HVHDUFK�5HSRVLWRU\�2I´FHU�DOVR�FRQGXFWHG�RQ�VLWH�WUDLQLQJ�WR�DFDGHPLF�

VWDII�DW�WKH�57,V��3RVWJUDGXDWH�DQG�GRFWRUDO�UHVHDUFK�VHPLQDUV�ZHUH�KHOG�

throughout the year, providing a forum in which HDR students were able 

WR�SUHVHQW�WKHLU�UHVHDUFK�WR�SHHUV�DQG�IDFXOW\��,Q�6HSWHPEHU��WKH�0&'�

DQG�WKH�$XVWUDOLDQ�&DWKROLF�8QLYHUVLW\�MRLQWO\�VSRQVRUHG�D�VHFRQG�DQQXDO�

3RVWJUDGXDWH�&RQIHUHQFH�IRU�7KHRORJ\�DQG�3KLORVRSK\�������

The funding provided through Commonwealth Government research 

IXQGV�LV�RI�VLJQL´FDQW�DVVLVWDQFH�LQ�VWUHQJWKHQLQJ�WKH�0&'�UHVHDUFK�

culture. The table below demonstrates the upward trend in research 

productivity of academic staff and HDR students, as measured by 

HERDC returns. 
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Table 5: 

)DFXOW\�8QZHLJKWHG�5HVHDUFK�3XEOLFDWLRQV�����������

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

�� �� ����� ����� ���� ��

Human Research Ethics Committee

The MCD HREC met 4 times in 2011 and considered 14 new applications. 

Of those 14 applications, 3 research proposals went before the meetings 

of the full Committee for approval of ethical clearance. The remaining 

applications were for projects substantially based on the published works 

and/or other material in the public domain and thereby required ethical 

QRWL´FDWLRQ��EXW�QRW�FOHDUDQFH��7KHUH�ZDV���DSSOLFDWLRQ�LQ������WKDW�ZDV�

denied ethical approval, with a request for revision and resubmission.   

Coursework 

MCD offers a wide variety of undergraduate and postgraduate courses. 

7KH�&RXUVHZRUN�6WXGLHV�&RPPLWWHH�UHSRUWV�DQG�PDNHV�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�

to the Academic Board on the Bachelor of Theology, the Bachelor of 

Ministry, the Associate Diploma in Ministry, the Diploma in Ministry and 

the Advanced Diploma in Ministry, the Diploma in Theology and the 

$GYDQFHG�'LSORPD�LQ�7KHRORJ\��WKH�*UDGXDWH�&HUWL´FDWH�DQG�*UDGXDWH�

Diploma in Theology, the Graduate Diploma in Counselling, Master of 

'LYLQLW\��0DVWHU�RI�7KHRORJLFDO�6WXGLHV�DQG�0DVWHU�RI�$UWV��FRXUVHZRUN�

mode) degrees and the Graduate Diploma in Ministry, including the 

PRQLWRULQJ�RI�WKH�WHDFKLQJ�DQG�H[DPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKHVH�DZDUGV�

The Director, Finance and Administration (Registrar), on behalf of the 

&KDLUV�RI�([DPLQHUV��UHSRUWHG�WKDW�H[DPLQDWLRQV�IRU�WKH�\HDU������KDG�

EHHQ�FRQGXFWHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�5HJXODWLRQV�DQG�3URFHGXUHV�RI�

the College.
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Enrolment Statistics

The following table lists undergraduate enrolments for 2011

Undergraduate 

Coursework

Part-time Full-time Total students Total EFTSL Total units

Ass Dip Min �� � �� ������ ���

DipMin �� �� �� ������ ���

Dip Theol �� � �� ������ ���

Adv Dip Min �� �� 65 ������ ���

B Min 4 �� �� ������ ��

B Theol ��� ��� ��� ������� ����

B Theol (Hons) 4 � � ����� ��

Total 498 216 714 321.180 2579

The following table lists postgraduate coursework enrolments for 2011

Postgraduate 

Coursework

Part-time Full-time Total students Total EFTSL Total units

Grad Cert ��� 6 ��� ������ ���

Grad Dip Theol ��� �� ��� ������ ���

Grad Dip Couns � � � ����� �

Grad Dip Min 6 � 6 ����� �

MA (Theol) 54 � �� ������ ���

MDiv �� �� ��� ������ ���

MTS 66 �� �� ������ ���

Total 630 78 708 250.847 1552

The following table lists Higher Degree by Research enrolments for 2011

Postgraduate  

Research

Part-time Full-time Total students Total EFTSL

MA �� 5 �� �����

MTheol �� 4 �� �����

DMinStuds � � � �����

PhD �� �� �� ������

DTheol �� �� �� ������

Total 57 39 96 56.041

 
MCD Student Enrolment Summary 2011 
 

Coursework Research

Full Time ��� ��

Part Time ���� ��

Total 1422 96

 

Total number of students 1,518 



34 

Melbourne College of Divinity Annual Report 2011

Conferral Ceremony

The annual ceremony at which the College confers degrees and awards 

GLSORPDV�DQG�FHUWL´FDWHV�ZDV�KHOG�RQ�0D\����������LQ�:LOVRQ�+DOO��WKH�

8QLYHUVLW\�RI�0HOERXUQH�

7KH�JUDGXDWLRQ�DGGUHVV�ZDV�GHOLYHUHG�E\�3URIHVVRU�5LFKDUG�-DPHV��3UR�

9LFH�&KDQFHOORU��3DUWLFLSDWLRQ�DQG�(QJDJHPHQW��DQG�'LUHFWRU��&HQWUH�

IRU�WKH�6WXG\�RI�+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ��WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�0HOERXUQH�

The number of awards conferred was as follows:

Associate Diploma in Ministry ��

Diploma ��

Advanced Diploma ��

Bachelor of Theology ��

Bachelor of Theology (Hons) �

Graduate Certificate ��

Graduate Diploma ��

Master of Divinity ��

Master of Divinity (Hons) �

Master of Theological Studies ��

Master of Ministry �

Master of Arts (Theology) ��

Master of Arts 5

Master of Theology ��

Doctor of Ministry Studies �

Doctor of Philosophy 6

Doctor of Theology �

Doctor of Sacred Theology �

Total 342

 
Future initiatives

7KH�IROORZLQJ�LQLWLDWLYHV�DUH�SODQQHG�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�0&'�8QLYHUVLW\� 

of Divinity:

�� 7R�DSSRLQW�D�&KDQFHOORU��'HSXW\�&KDQFHOORU�DQG�9LFH�&KDQFHOORU�LQ�

early 2012

�� 8QGHU�WKH�GLUHFWLRQ�RI�&RXQFLO�DQG�LQ�FRRSHUDWLRQ�ZLWK�6WDWH�

Government legislators, to make appropriate changes to the MCD Act 

(1910) to incorporate the change of title to the institution and to its 

VHQLRU�RI´FHKROGHUV

�� 7R�HPEHG�0&'�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�'LYLQLW\�ZLWKLQ�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�VHFWRU

�� 7R�PD[LPLVH�IHGHUDO�IXQGLQJ�IRU�UHVHDUFK��ERWK�LQ�WHUPV�RI�5HVHDUFK�

%ORFN�*UDQWV�VXFK�DV�6XVWDLQDEOH�5HVHDUFK�([FHOOHQFH��-RLQW�

5HVHDUFK�(QJDJHPHQW��$XVWUDOLDQ�3RVWJUDGXDWH�$ZDUGV��,QWHUQDWLRQDO�

3RVWJUDGXDWH�5HVHDUFK�6FKRODUVKLSV��5HVHDUFK�7UDLQLQJ�6FKHPH��

and particularly in terms of remaining an eligible institution for 

submissions to the Australian Research Council

�� 7R�OLIW�WKH�LQVWLWXWLRQ�WR�WKH�QH[W�OHYHO�RI�H[FHOOHQFH�DFDGHPLFDOO\��

administratively, and structurally, without denigrating what we have 

done, or are doing. It is important for the Institution to keep aiming 

upwards, and being recognised as a specialised university will require 

D�OLIW�LQ�H[SHFWDWLRQV��SUHFLVHO\�EHFDXVH�LW�ZLOO�JHQHUDWH�DQ�LQFUHDVHG�

H[WHUQDO�H[SHFWDWLRQ�RI�ZKDW�ZH�GR�DQG�ZKR�ZH�DUH

�� 7R�UHFUXLW�QDWLRQDO�DQG�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�VFKRODUV�DQG�VWXGHQWV�WR�0&'�

8QLYHUVLW\�RI�'LYLQLW\��DQG�WR�HVWDEOLVK�UHODWLRQV�ZLWK�UHSXWDEOH�
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overseas universities and research institutions

+RZ�0&'�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�'LYLQLW\�SODQV�WR�VXSSRUW� 
these initiatives

�� (QVXUH�WKDW�WKH�6WUDWHJLF�3ODQQLQJ�*RDOV�DQG�$QQXDO�2SHUDWLRQDO�3ODQ�

are sustainable and achievable

�� &RQWLQXH�WR�FROODERUDWH�LQ�FRRSHUDWLYH�UHVHDUFK�SURMHFWV�ZLWK�WKH�

8QLYHUVLW\�RI�0HOERXUQH��0RQDVK�8QLYHUVLW\��$XVWUDOLDQ�&DWKROLF�

8QLYHUVLW\��DQG�RWKHU�DSSURSULDWH�XQLYHUVLWLHV�DQG�+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�

3URYLGHUV��DV�ZHOO�DV�ZLWK�WKH�&KULVWLDQ�5HVHDUFK�$VVRFLDWLRQ

�� (VWDEOLVK�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�OLQNV�DQG�H[FKDQJH�SURJUDPV�ZLWK�OHDGLQJ�

overseas universities

�� 6XFFHVVIXOO\�QRPLQDWH�OHFWXUHUV�IRU�$/7&�([FHOOHQFH�LQ�7HDFKLQJ�

Citations

�� &RQWLQXH�MXGLFLRXV�H[SDQVLRQ�RI�WKH�,QVWLWXWLRQ�WR�LQFRUSRUDWH�OLNH�

minded theological colleges

�� &RQWLQXH�WR�WUDLQ�DQG�UHFUXLW�ZRUOG�FODVV�WHDFKHUV�DQG�UHVHDUFKHUV�LQ�

Divinity and its related disciplines

�� :RUN�LQ�FORVH�FRRSHUDWLRQ�ZLWK�0&'�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�'LYLQLW\­V�¬LQGXVWU\�

SDUWQHUV­��WKH�&KULVWLDQ�FKXUFKHV��WR�HGXFDWH�DQG�WUDLQ�KLJKO\�TXDOL´HG�

ministers of religion and laity

�� &RQWLQXH�WKH�H[FHOOHQW�WUDGLWLRQ�RI�FRPPXQLW\�HQJDJHPHQW�E\�IDFXOW\�

and students in a wide variety of settings

Risk Management

The Risk Management and Audit Committee met four times in 2011. 

In addition, a combined meeting of the Risk Management and Audit 

Committee and the Finance and Investment Committee took place 

RQ�0DUFK���WR�FRQVLGHU�WKH������)LQDQFLDO�$FFRXQWV�DQG�6WDWHPHQWV�

prepared for the Auditor.

2Q�FRQVLGHULQJ�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�$FFRXQWV�DQG�6WDWHPHQWV��WKH�DXGLWRU�

VWDWHG�WKDW�QR�DGMXVWPHQWV�ZHUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�VLJQL´FDQW�´JXUHV��

In addition to considering any risks associated with the change of 

VWDWXV�WR�WKDW�RI�D�6SHFLDOLVHG�8QLYHUVLW\��WKH�&RPPLWWHH�XQGHUWRRN�WKH�

following tasks: 

�� 7KH�&RPPLWWHH�UHFHLYHG�UHSRUWV�IURP�WKH�'LUHFWRU��)LQDQFH�	�

Administration (Registrar) in relation to meetings of the MCD 

2FFXSDWLRQDO�+HDOWK�	�6DIHW\�&RPPLWWHH��ZKLFK�LQFRUSRUDWHG�UHSRUWV�

RI�2FFXSDWLRQDO�+HDOWK�	�6DIHW\�SURYLVLRQV�DW�0&'�5HFRJQLVHG�

Teaching Institutions. The Committee also reviewed the minutes 

RI�2+	6�&RPPLWWHH�PHHWLQJV�DQG�DVVHVVHG�WKH�DGHTXDF\�RI�

management’s response

�� 7KH�&RPPLWWHH�UHFHLYHG�D�UHSRUW�RQ�WKH�+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�5HVHDUFK�

'DWD�&ROOHFWLRQ��+(5'&��$XGLW��WKH�0&'�0DQDJLQJ�&KDQJH�3ROLF\��

and reviewed responses from RTIs in relation to MCD Financial Alert 

3URWRFROV

�� 7KH�'HDQ�DQG�WKH�'LUHFWRU��)LQDQFH�	�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ��5HJLVWUDU��

FRQGXFWHG�D�UHYLHZ�DQG�XSGDWLQJ�RI�WKH�0&'�5LVN�0DWUL[�ZLWK�

the assistance of a member of the Risk Management and Audit 
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&RPPLWWHH�ZLWK�H[SHULHQFH�DQG�H[SHUWLVH�LQ�WKLV�DUHD

�� 7KH�&RPPLWWHH�DOVR�UHFHLYHG�SURJUHVV�UHSRUWV�IURP�WKH�'LUHFWRU��

)LQDQFH�	�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ��5HJLVWUDU��LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKH�´QDOLVDWLRQ�

of MCD central administration staff contracts to accord with the 

SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�)DLU�:RUN�$FW

�� 7KH�&RPPLWWHH�ZRUNHG�FORVHO\�ZLWK�WKH�)LQDQFH�DQG�,QYHVWPHQW�

Committee and RTI Business Managers to ensure the immediate and 

ORQJ�WHUP�´QDQFLDO�YLDELOLW\�RI�WKH�&ROOHJH�DV�LW�SURFHHGHG�WRZDUG�

6SHFLDOLVHG�8QLYHUVLW\�6WDWXV

 

 
6XSSRUW�VHUYLFHV 
 
Occupational health and safety

Each MCD member institution is responsible for the development and 

DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�DQ�2FFXSDWLRQDO�+HDOWK�DQG�6DIHW\�3ROLF\��(DFK�57,�DXGLW�

provides the opportunity for member institutions to review the safety of 

the buildings, the provision of access for all people, and the awareness of 

staff regarding occupational health and safety issues.

All occupational health and safety issues at MCD Kew Central 

Administration, including access and potential hazards, are monitored 

UHJXODUO\�E\�WKH�0&'�2FFXSDWLRQDO�+HDOWK�DQG�6DIHW\�&RPPLWWHH���

$OO�IXUQLWXUH�DW�WKH�0&'�.HZ�2I´FH�PHHWV�2+	6�UHTXLUHPHQWV��LQFOXGLQJ�

desks, seating, heating/cooling, lighting and computers. All staff  have 

LCD monitors for their computers.  

No occupational health and safety incidents were reported in 2011 at the 

0&'�&HQWUDO�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI´FH��$Q�H[WHQVLYH�UHIXUELVKPHQW�RI�WKH�

premises and surrounds during 2011 eliminated several hazards that had 

the potential to affect staff. 

Provision for disabled students and staff

)DFLOLWLHV�DW�WKH�0&'�.HZ�2I´FH�DFFRPPRGDWH�SHRSOH�ZLWK�PRYHPHQW�

GLVDELOLWLHV��:KHUH�UHTXLUHG��VWXGHQW�EXVLQHVV�LV�FRQGXFWHG�RQ�WKH�JURXQG�

µRRU��DQG�PHHWLQJV�DUH�WUDQVIHUUHG�WR�D�PHHWLQJ�URRP�LQ�WKH�QHLJKERXULQJ�

church facility when necessary.

In the member institutions, students with special needs are asked prior 

to enrolment to consult with the Dean concerned, so that they can be 

accommodated as far as possible. 

Recordkeeping

7KH�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�VWXGHQW�UHFRUGV�GDWDEDVH�7$06��7KHRORJLFDO�

$FDGHPLF�0DQDJHPHQW�6\VWHP��LV�UHYLHZHG�UHJXODUO\��$OO�PHPEHU�

LQVWLWXWLRQV�XVH�7$06�DV�WKHLU�SULPDU\�VWXGHQW�UHFRUGV�GDWDEDVH��$�

FRQWUDFW�ZDV�VLJQHG�LQ������ZLWK�WKH�6WDWH�/LEUDU\�RI�9LFWRULD��E\�ZKLFK�

FHUWDLQ�0&'�KLVWRULFDO�UHFRUGV�ZLOO�EH�KRXVHG�DW�WKH�6WDWH�/LEUDU\��0&'�

will, however, retain ownership of the records. 
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Student support

6WXGHQW�VXSSRUW�LV�SULPDULO\�D�PDWWHU�IRU�WKH�57,V�DQG�WKHLU�FRQVWLWXHQW�

colleges, who continue to create communities of scholarship for 

students and staff. Feedback from MCD internal audits show a high 

degree of student satisfaction, facilitated not only by community 

events but class sizes usually less than 20, and academic staff who 

take considerable interest in promoting a climate of learning. Each RTI 

Handbook includes a section informing students of their rights. 

Most of the international students the MCD enrols are recommended 

and sponsored by a church or similar body in their own country, and 

the students have support from a church or similar community in 

Australia during their stay. Few MCD international students are under 

30 years of age and most are effectively postgraduates in terms of their 

WKHRORJLFDO�HGXFDWLRQ��3DVWRUDO�DQG�DFDGHPLF�VXSSRUW�LV�RIIHUHG�WR�DOO�

international students in accordance with the standards set down by 

WKH�1DWLRQDO�&RGH�RI�3UDFWLFH�IRU�5HJLVWUDWLRQ�$XWKRULWLHV�DQG�3URYLGHUV�

RI�(GXFDWLRQ�DQG�7UDLQLQJ�WR�2YHUVHDV�6WXGHQWV��1DWLRQDO�&RGH�

2007). Each RTI provides support for their coursework international 

VWXGHQWV��6XSHUYLVRUV�DQG�0&'�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�VWDII�GHOLYHU�VXSSRUW�

for international students enrolled in higher degrees by research. MCD 

5HVHDUFK�2I´FH�PDLQWDLQV�UHJXODU�FRPPXQLFDWLRQ�ZLWK�DOO�RI�LWV�+'5�

international students, inviting them to research seminars, postgraduate 

student information days and other networking opportunities. Every 

RTI has put in place arrangements for tutoring students who need to 

improve their English language skills.

MCD is compliant with the requirements of the Education for Overseas 

6WXGHQWV�$FW������DQG�WKH�1DWLRQDO�&RGH�������0&'�&HQWUDO�

Administration is responsible for processing international student 

admissions, reporting to government authorities and making timely 

(626�SD\PHQWV����������������������

:RUNSODFH�GDWD�DQG�VWDI´QJ

All MCD member institutions employ staff independently, while MCD 

&HQWUDO�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�HPSOR\V�WKH�VWDII�EDVHG�DW�WKH�RI´FH�LQ�.HZ��,Q�

2011 there was 13 staff employed at Kew, equivalent to 12.06 fulltime. 

Each staff member receives a Letter of Appointment, describing 

WKH�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�WKHLU�DSSRLQWPHQW��ZKLFK�VSHFL´HV�D�

probationary period of three calendar months. Consistent employment 

contracts were signed by all staff from 1 January 2011, in which 

FRQGLWLRQV�DQG�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�JHQHUDOO\�IROORZ�WKH�+(:�RU�DFDGHPLF�

MCD:
the people
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VWDII�OHYHOV�RI�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�RI��0HOERXUQH�&ROOHFWLYH�$JUHHPHQW�������

with an additional 5% employer contribution to superannuation. Each 

staff member at the Central Administration completes a regular annual 

review, managed by the Dean or the Director, Finance and Administration 

(Registrar).

All other MCD staff, including teaching, administrative, library and support 

VWDII��DUH�HPSOR\HG�E\�WKH�0&'�57,V��7KHUH�DUH�DOVR�H[WHUQDO�UHVHDUFK�

supervisors with no institutional relationship to the colleges. The College 

continues to address the issue of staff succession planning. 

The MCD is not an entity in the public sector; however, no situations arose 

GXULQJ������ZKLFK�ZRXOG�KDYH�EURXJKW�0&'�HPSOR\HHV�LQWR�FRQµLFW�ZLWK�

the principles of conduct for public sector employees set down in the 

360($�

Academic Staff

MCD academic staff are employed by the RTIs of the College. No person, 

LQFOXGLQJ�H[WHUQDO�+'5�VXSHUYLVRUV��ZKR�LV�QRW�HPSOR\HG�E\�D�57,�RI�WKH�

0&'��LV�SHUPLWWHG�WR�WHDFK��VXSHUYLVH��H[DPLQH�IRU�DQ\�0&'�DZDUG��RU�IRU�

any unit which contributes to an MCD award, without the approval and 

permission of the Academic Board.

Of the 113 academics who held full-time or fractional appointments within 

the RTIs in 2011, 68 held Doctorates, while 25 held Masters degrees or the 

equivalent.

There are numerous avenues by which academic staff are encouraged to 

interact with each other and with the MCD Central Administration, and to 

SURYLGH�IHHGEDFN��(DFK�1RYHPEHU��WKH�'HDQ�RI�WKH�0&'�FRQYHQHV�D�6WDII�

&RQVXOWDWLRQ�'D\��ZKLOH�&KDLUV�RI�([DPLQHUV�RUJDQLVH�)LHOG�PHHWLQJV�IRU�

academic staff in the respective discipline groups. In addition, there are 

regular departmental meetings in each RTI, and key academic staff are 

active on the MCD Academic Board, the two Committees of the Board, as 

well as various other MCD working groups.
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The recruitment, review and development of faculty are the 

responsibility of teaching colleges, each of which currently provides for 

an annual review and study leave. The MCD Central Administration does 

not advise on staff recruitment, since the Colleges seek to employ staff 

on the basis of their own needs, and those of their supporting bodies. 

As is common throughout the HIgher Education  sector, succession 

planning was discussed actively in 2011, not least as one consequence of 

0&'­V�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�6SHFLDOLVHG�8QLYHUVLW\�VWDWXV��

MCD academic staff are strongly encouraged to be research active, and 

a large number of faculty members were funded by the MCD Grants and 

6FKRODUVKLSV�:RUNLQJ�*URXS�WR�XQGHUWDNH�UHVHDUFK�SURMHFWV��RU�VSHDN�DW�

major international academic conferences. 

0&'�)DFXOW\�3UR´OH
Age 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-70 71-80  Over 80

Bachelor 3 � �

Postgraduate/ 
Graduate Diploma

1 � � 1

Master � � 6 �� �

Doctor � �� �� �� �� �

Other Degrees � �

No Information � 1

Total 7 17 31 44 13 1

 

Grievances

7KH�0&'�*ULHYDQFH�3ROLFLHV��DQG�+DUDVVPHQW�3ROLFLHV�DQG�3URFHGXUHV�DV�

DSSURYHG�E\�'((:5��DUH�OLVWHG�RQ�WKH�0&'�ZHEVLWH�DQG�DUH�DOVR�PDGH�

DYDLODEOH�DW�57,�DQG�&ROOHJH�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI´FHV�

In 2011 no staff or student grievances were referred to the Ombudsman.
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2WKHU�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�FRPSOLDQFH

Publications and promotion

During 2011 the MCD continued to be the primary sponsor of the peer 

reviewed international journal 3DFL´FD��$XVWUDODVLDQ�7KHRORJLFDO�6WXGLHV�

MCD faculty and staff prepare and publish annually a list of publications, 

ZKLFK�PHHW�WKH�'((:5�GH´QLWLRQ�RI�UHVHDUFK��

The regular process of keeping member churches and the wider public 

informed about courses, enrolments and public lectures continued, with 

publicity initiated both from the Central Administration and from each 

RTI. As the public portal, the MCD website is the foundation of all aspects 

of the promotion of the College, the academic programs, the personnel, 

regulations, procedures and special events. Four editions of the MCD 

eLetter were emailed during 2011, in addition to a Research Newsletter 

each quarter.

To support their own individual promotional activities, each MCD member 

institution produces a wide range of brochures and publications. The 

MCD website links Central Administration with all the member institutions 

and each one to the other. 

Environmental performance

The staff and member institutions of the MCD are very cognisant of 

environmental issues, and are committed to living as stewards of 

*RG­V�FUHDWLRQ��7KLV�FRPPLWPHQW�LV�UHµHFWHG�LQ�WKH�ZD\�EXLOGLQJV�DUH�

designed and used for teaching and for research. The MCD operates as 

D�QHWZRUN�RI�PHPEHU�LQVWLWXWLRQV�ZLWK�WKH�&HQWUDO�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�2I´FH�

RFFXS\LQJ�OHDVHG�SUHPLVHV��ZKLFK�ZHUH�H[WHQVLYHO\�UHIXUELVKHG�LQ��������

The MCD recognises that some buildings raise challenges for improving 

environmental performance. The Central Administration continues to 

monitor use of paper, the disposal of recyclable waste, and the process 

RI�SURYLGLQJ�DQ�RI´FH�HQYLURQPHQW�FRQGXFLYH�WR�KDUPRQLRXV�DQG�

productive results.
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Fees

1RQ�DFDGHPLF�IHHV�OHYLHG�E\�0&'�GXULQJ������ZHUH������IRU�JUDGXDQGV�

attending the Conferral ceremony, the application fee for international 

students and for those applying for the Graduate Diploma in Counselling 

DQG�WKH�*UDGXDWH�'LSORPD�LQ�6SLULWXDO�'LUHFWLRQ�ZDV�������,Q�DFFRUGDQFH�

ZLWK�WKH�UHOHYDQW�'((:5�UXOLQJ�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�ODWWHU�WKHVH�DUH�WKH�RQO\�

two approved courses for which application fees were charged.

)HHV�IRU������ZHUH�LQFUHDVHG�E\������3D\PHQWV�WR�57,V��VXSHUYLVRUV�DQG�

libraries increased in line with the fee increases.

3HUPLVVLRQ�ZDV�JUDQWHG�E\�'((:5�WR�FRQWLQXH�FKDUJLQJ�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�

VWXGHQWV�IHHV�WKDW�DUH�EHORZ�WKH�UHTXLUHG�ªPLQLPXP�LQGLFDWLYH�IHHV«��0,)���

Tuition Fees for 2011

Undergraduate awards (Associate Diploma of Ministry, Diploma of Ministry, 
Advanced Diploma of Ministry, Bachelor of Theology)

7XLWLRQ��� ����� � SHU����SRLQW�XQLW� 

� � ����� � SHU����SRLQW�XQLW 

� � ����� � SHU���SRLQW�XQLW 

Graduate awards �*UDGXDWH�&HUWL´FDWHV��*UDGXDWH�'LSORPDV��0DVWHU�RI�7KHRORJLFDO�
6WXGLHV��0DVWHU�RI�'LYLQLW\��DQG�0DVWHU�RI�$UWV�LQ�7KHRORJ\�

7XLWLRQ��� ������ � SHU����SRLQW�XQLW� 

� � ����� �� SHU����SRLQW�XQLW 

� � ����� � SHU���SRLQW�XQLW� 

Masters Degrees by Research (Master of Theology, Master of Arts,  
Master of Ministry)

)XOOWLPH� ������ � SHU�VHPHVWHU 

Doctorates �'RFWRU�RI�3KLORVRSK\��'RFWRU�RI�0LQLVWU\�6WXGLHV��'RFWRU�RI�7KHRORJ\�

)XOOWLPH� �������� SHU�VHPHVWHU� � � � � �

      

Other fees for 2011

7KH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IHH�IRU�&RQIHUUDO�ZDV������IRU�in persona.  
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Payments for 2011

7R�0&'�.HZ��8*�IHH�� ����� � SHU����SRLQW�8*�XQLW�

7R�57,V�IRU�WHDFKLQJ� � ����� � SHU����SRLQW�XQLW� 

� � � � ����� � SHU����SRLQW�XQLW 

� � � � ����� �� SHU���SRLQW�XQLW

7R�OLEUDULHV� � � �������SHU����SRLQW�JUDGXDWH�XQLW�� 

� � � � ZLWK��������PLQLPXP�SHU�JUDGXDWH�VWXGHQW�

5%     of research fees, theses less than  

    40,000 words

7.5%     of research fees, theses of 40,000 words  

    or more

7R�0DVWHUV­�VXSHUYLVRUV� ����� ������������SHU�VHPHVWHU� 

      (part-time minor thesis,  

      up to 4 sem)

>0LQRU�¨�����RI�WXLWLRQ@� ������ ������������SHU�VHPHVWHU� 

      (full-time minor thesis,  

      up to 2 sem)

>0DMRU�¨�����RI�WXLWLRQ@� ��������SHU�VHPHVWHU� 

      (part-time major thesis,  

      up to 4 sem)

� � � � ������� � SHU�VHPHVWHU� 

      (full-time major thesis,  

      up to 2 sem)

7R�GRFWRUDO�VXSHUYLVRUV� ������ �� SHU�VHPHVWHU� 

      (part-time, up to 12 semesters) 

>����RI�WXLWLRQ@� � �������� SHU�VHPHVWHU� 

      (full-time, up to 6 semesters)

Note: payment to supervisors is augmented over tuition by 50% from 

5HVHDUFK�&RPPLWWHH�IXQGLQJ��ZKLFK�LV�GHSHQGHQW�RQ�',,65�IXQGLQJ�

7R�H[DPLQHUV� � � ����� � ������3*�XQLW�IHH�������� 

      word essay)   

� � � � ����� � �����3*�XQLW�IHH��3DQHOV�� 

      10-12,000 word essays)

� � � � ����� �� �����3*�XQLW�IHH������������� �

      word theses)

� � � � ����� �� �����3*�XQLW�IHH��������������

      word theses)

� � � � ����� �� �����3*�XQLW�IHH��������������

      word theses)

� � � � ����� �� �����3*�XQLW�IHH��GRFWRUDO�� �

      Oral Defence)
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The following table indicates the fee for each award for 2011, the 

payments to RTIs, supervisors and libraries.

MCD tuition fees 2011:

TUITION FEES AND PAYMENTS 2011

MCD Award Full-time 
2011 fee

Total cost 
of the 
award

Paid to 
RTIs

Paid to 
supervisor  
(+ 50% 
supple-
ment from 
Research 
Funds)

Paid to  
Library 
(total)

Paid to  
examiners

BTheol $7,848 $23,544 $20,136

BTheol (Hons) $5,886 $29,430 $25,170

Dip Min $7,848 $15,696 $13,424

Adv Dip Min $7,848 $23,544 $20,136

BTheol/DipMin $7,848 $31,392 $26,848

BTheol/
AdvDipMin

$7,848 $35,316 $30,204

GradCert $3,924 $3,924 $2,616 $196

Grad Dip Theol $7,848 $7,848 $5,232 $392

GradDipCouns $7,848 $9,810 $5,232 $1,962 $392

GradDipMin $8,502 $8,502 $5,232 $392

MTS $6,540 $13,080 $8,720 $654

MDiv $7,848 $23,544 $15,696 $1,172

MA(Theol) $5,232 $7,848 $5,232 $392

MA: 2 units, 
minor thesis

$5,232 $7,848 $1,744 $2,344 $392 $654

MA: major thesis $5,232 $7,848 $0 $4,119 $589 $872

MMin $5,232 $7,848 $872 $2,344 $392 $654

MTheol: 2 units, 
minor thesis

$5,232 $7,848 $1,744 $2,344 $392 $654

MTheol: major 
thesis

$5,232 $7,848 $0 $4,119 $589 $872

DMinStuds $10,108 $30,353 $3,488 $10,613 $1,516 $1,744

PhD $10,108 $30,324 $0 $15,918 $2,274 $1,962

DTheol $10,108 $30,324 $0 $15,918 $2,274 $1,962

 

3URYLGLQJ�WKH�HOLJLELOLW\�FULWHULD�DUH�PHW��DOO�0&'�VWXGHQWV�DUH�HOLJLEOH�

IRU�)((�+(/3�)XQGLQJ��$XVWXG\�LV�DYDLODEOH�WR�VWXGHQWV�ZKR�PHHW�WKH�

eligibility criteria, including designated courses. Research students may 

EH�HOLJLEOH�IRU�DVVLVWDQFH�IRU�5HVHDUFK�7UDLQLQJ�6FKHPH�IXQGV��$XVWUDOLDQ�

3RVWJUDGXDWH�$ZDUGV�DQG�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�3RVWJUDGXDWH�5HVHDUFK�

6FKRODUVKLSV��VSHFL´F�FULWHULD�DSSO\�WR�HDFK�W\SH�RI�IXQGLQJ�

In 2011 the annual tuition fees paid by a full-time overseas student were 

�������IRU�XQGHUJUDGXDWH�DQG�SRVWJUDGXDWH�FRXUVHZRUN�GHJUHHV���������

IRU�PDVWHUV�UHVHDUFK�GHJUHHV�DQG���������IRU�GRFWRUDO�UHVHDUFK�GHJUHHV�

Financial 

The MCD Central Administration manages funds for the Central 

Administration only. The MCD RTIs employ their own staff and similarly 

PDQDJH�WKHLU�RZQ�´QDQFHV��7KH�PDLQ�EXGJHW�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�RI�WKH�

MCD Finance and Investment Committee relates to the budget of the 

Central Administration and does not include the budgets of the member 
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institutions. The Finance Manager, working with the Finance Department, 

is responsible for the collection of fees for postgraduate courses, 

PDQDJLQJ�)((�+(/3��DQG�DOO�SD\PHQWV�ZKLFK�VXSSRUW�WKH�DFDGHPLF�

DQG�UHVHDUFK�SURJUDPV�RI�WKH�LQVWLWXWLRQ��7KH�´QDQFLDO�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�

the MCD, including the preparation and monitoring of the budget, is the 

responsibility of the Honorary Treasurer and the Director, Finance and 

Administration (Registrar), working with the Finance and Investment 

Committee, which reports to the MCD Council. The Committee met ten 

times during 2011 including one meeting with the auditors together with 

the Risk Management and Audit Committee and two meetings with 

Business Managers of the Recognised Teaching Institutions. The Finance 

Manager prepares the budget and all papers necessary for these two 

committees to meet their obligations. 

In order to improve communication on a broad range of common issues 

the Finance and Investment Committee continued to meet twice a 

\HDU�ZLWK�WKH�57,�%XVLQHVV�0DQDJHUV��LQ�0D\�DQG�1RYHPEHU�������6WULFW�

FRPSOLDQFH�WR�',,65�DQG�'((:5�JXLGHOLQHV�DQG�SURFHGXUHV�DQG�WKH�

involvement of the RTI Business Managers in this process, has resulted 

in wider understanding of not only the operations of each of the 

PHPEHU�LQVWLWXWLRQV­�´QDQFHV��EXW�DOVR�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�PHFKDQLVPV�DQG�

obligations to the Federal Government. 

,Q������WKH�0&'�UHFHLYHG�UHVHDUFK�IXQGLQJ�IURP�',,65�DQG�IXQGLQJ�WR�

DZDUG�VL[�DGGLWLRQDO�$XVWUDOLDQ�3RVWJUDGXDWH�$ZDUGV�DQG�RQH�DGGLWLRQDO�

,QWHUQDWLRQDO�3RVWJUDGXDWH�5HVHDUFK�6FKRODUVKLS��$OO�VXFK�IXQGV�ZHUH�

DOORFDWHG�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�',,65�JXLGHOLQHV�RI�HDFK�VFKHPH��ZKLFK�ZDV�

VXEVHTXHQWO\�UHSRUWHG�WR�',,65�

0&'�UHFHLYHG����������LQ������IURP�WKH�7HDFKLQJ�DQG�/HDUQLQJ�&DSLWDO�

Fund of the Federal Government. These funds were recognised as 

LQFRPH�LQ�WKH������)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�DQG�WUDQVIHUUHG�WR�D�5HVHUYH�

IRU�H[SHQGLWXUH�LQ������DQG�������7KH�´UVW�DSSURYHG�SURMHFW�WR�EH�

undertaken in 2010 was the establishment of a wireless internet network 

throughout the MCD. The second approved project was the renovation 

and refurbishment of the building occupied by the MCD Central 

Administration; building works commenced in November 2010 and were 

completed by mid 2011. 

All public funds allocated to MCD have been applied to the purposes 

VSHFL´HG�E\�WKH�*RYHUQPHQW�RU�RWKHU�SXEOLF�IXQGLQJ�ERG\�DQG�0&'�KDV�

complied with all reporting requirements.

Assisted by comprehensive management accounting reports prepared 

monthly for the Finance and Investment Committee and the Council, 
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the Dean and the Director, Finance and Administration (Registrar) 

PRQLWRUHG�WKH�H[SHQGLWXUH�RI�WKH�0&'�&HQWUDO�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ��,Q������

RQJRLQJ�HPSOR\PHQW�H[SHQVHV�LQFUHDVHG�E\�������RWKHU�H[SHQVHV�

increased by 18.9%.  

7KH�0&'�&HQWUDO�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�KDV�IXQGV�LQYHVWHG�ZLWK�WKH�8QLWLQJ�

Church in Australia Growth Fund. The market value of these investments 

ZDV����������DW����'HFHPEHU������FRPSDUHG�WR����������DW����

December 2010.

7KH������DXGLWHG�´QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�UHFRUG�D�VXUSOXV�RI�����������

7KLV�VXUSOXV�LV�DUULYHG�DW�DIWHU�UHFRJQLVLQJ�VLJQL´FDQW�QRQ�RSHUDWLQJ�

items. These items are the decrease in the market value of investments 

�����������DQG�$XVWUDOLDQ�*RYHUQPHQW�JUDQWV�����������ZKLFK�ZHUH�

UHFHLYHG�LQ������EXW�KDYH�QRW�\HW�EHHQ�VSHQW������������ZDV�UHFRUGHG�DV�

H[SHQGLWXUH�LQ������EXW�WKH�IXQGLQJ�VRXUFHV�ZHUH�UHFHLYHG�LQ�SUHYLRXV�

\HDUV��WKLV�LQFOXGHV���������IURP�WKH�7HDFKLQJ�DQG�/HDUQLQJ�&DSLWDO�

IXQGV�IRU�FRVWV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�0&'�.HZ�UHQRYDWLRQV��H[FOXGLQJ�

FDSLWDOLVHG�H[SHQGLWXUH��DQG���������IRU�UHVHDUFK�H[SHQGLWXUH�IURP�WKH�

6XVWDLQDEOH�5HVHDUFK�([FHOOHQFH�IXQGV�UHFHLYHG�LQ�������,I�WKHVH�LWHPV�

DUH�H[FOXGHG�IURP�WKH�UHSRUWHG�VXUSOXV��WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�UHVXOW�IURP�0&'�

RSHUDWLRQV�ZRXOG�HTXDWH�WR�D�VXUSOXV�RI����������ZKLFK�UHSUHVHQWV������

of the total income from fees and Government grants.

The income retained by MCD from tuition fees increased by 22% in 2011.  

7KH�)LQDQFH�DQG�,QYHVWPHQW�&RPPLWWHH�KDV�HVWDEOLVKHG�D�:RUNLQJ�

Group to review the structure of fees and the payments to RTIs.  The 

:RUNLQJ�*URXS�LQFOXGHV�WKH�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�)LQDQFH�DQG�,QYHVWPHQW�

Committee and two RTI Business Managers and it will report to the MCD 

Council in 2012.

The Council of Deans of Theology (Australasia) received a competitive 

grant from the Australian Learning and Teaching Council for the 

8QGHUJUDGXDWH�&XUULFXOXP�'HVLJQ�3URMHFW���0&'�LV�WKH�OHDG�LQVWLWXWLRQ�

and is responsible for the administrative aspects of the funding with 

��������UHFHLYHG�LQ������DQG���������UHFHLYHG�LQ������

No events have occurred subsequent to December 31, 2011 that would 

UHTXLUH�DGMXVWPHQW�WR��RU�GLVFORVXUH�LQ��WKH�´QDQFLDO�UHSRUW�

The MCD does not conduct any consultancy services, or any other 

commercial activities.

The MCD has no commercial dealings, other than those necessary to 

conduct the regular operations of the College.

No member of the Council has a pecuniary interest in any company or 
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LQVWLWXWLRQ�ZLWK�ZKLFK�WKH�0&'�KDV�D�´QDQFLDO�RU�EXVLQHVV�UHODWLRQVKLS�

The MCD has no controlled entities, operates no commercial ventures and 

KDV�QR�DVVRFLDWH�LQVWLWXWLRQV�LQYROYLQJ�WKH�0&'�LQ�´QDQFLDO�UHODWLRQVKLSV��

As detailed elsewhere in this report, MCD participated in discussions 

ZLWK�',,65�DQG�WKH�$XVWUDOLDQ�5HVHDUFK�&RXQFLO�WR�´QDOLVH�D�0LVVLRQ�

based Compact with the Commonwealth Government for 2011- 2013; in 

2011 there was a comprehensive assessment process by VRQA of the 

DSSOLFDWLRQ�E\�0&'�WR�RSHUDWH�DV�D�6SHFLDOLVHG�8QLYHUVLW\�

7KH�IROORZLQJ�WDEOH�VXPPDULVHV�WKH�´QDQFLDO�UHVXOWV�IRU������ZLWK�

FRPSDUDWLYH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�IRU�WKH�SUHFHGLQJ�´YH�\HDUV�

REVENUE FROM CONTINUING  
OPERATIONS

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Australian Government Grants 1,267,872 1,439,444 1,234,769 1,306,720 1,136,556 835,127

Australian Government Capital 
Grants

- - 527,000 339,000 - -

FEE-HELP 2,432,759 2,166,549 1,823,203 1,420,752 1,229,934 960,724

Fees 1,574,198 1,327,048 1,115,975 920,800 976,735 916,637

Investment Income 155,788 124,236 65,821 105,712 84,970 62,087

Industry funding (in accounts 
from 2007) 

1,901,020 1,711,144 1,785,404 1,822,340 1,985,693

Other revenue*** 105,561 185,875 27,973 204,392 110,164 18,140

Victorian Government Financial  
Assistance

100,000

Total Revenue 7,437,198 7,054,296 6,580,145 6,119,716 5,524,052 2,792,715

EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING 
OPERATIONS

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Employee benefits and oncosts 1,135,998 988,751 975,534 915,275 680,186 562,197

Payroll Tax (back dated to 
October 1, 2005)

28,451 20,306 61,201 - - -

Depreciation and amortisation 36,105 15,297 17,163 16,723 14,287 16,297

Repairs and maintenance 3,247 2,177 3,441 8,198 14,453 4,820

Bad and doubtful debts 14,879 - 4,776 10,507 5,741 1,730

Industry funding (in accounts 
from 2007)

1,901,020 1,711,144 1,785,404 1,822,340 1,985,693

Special Expenditure, Government 
Grants (excluding capitalised 
items)*

64,683 99,517 118,000 221,000 - -

Other expenses 4,034,508 3,862,491 3,061,033 2,795,917 2,084,274 2,004,200

Total Expenses 7,218.891 6,699,683 6,026,552 5,789,960 4,784,634 2,589,244

Operating result before tax 218,307 354,613 553,593 329,756 739,418 203,471

Change in fair value of 
investments**

(128,098) 24,508 150,488 (321,777) (298,687) 97,414

Income tax expense - - - - - -

Total comprehensive income 
attributable to members of the 
Melbourne College of Divinity

90,209 379,121 704,081 7,979 440,731 300,885


,Q�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�WKH�FDSLWDO�JUDQWV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�$XVWUDOLDQ�*RYHUQPHQW�*UDQWV��7KH�

H[SHQGLWXUH�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�2WKHU�H[SHQVHV��2I�WKH����������UHFHLYHG�LQ����������������ZDV�VSHQW�LQ�������

OHDYLQJ����������WR�EH�VSHQW�LQ������DQG�������WKH�UHQRYDWLRQV�H[SHQGLWXUH�KDV�EHHQ�FDSLWDOLVHG��



,Q�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�WKH�&KDQJH�LQ�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�2WKHU�UHYHQXH�DQG�2WKHU�

H[SHQVHV�




2WKHU�UHYHQXH�LQ������LQFOXGHV�WKH�VHFRQG�RI�WZR�DQQXDO�SD\PHQWV�RI���������RI�D�FRPSHWLWLYH�JUDQW�IURP�

the Australian Learning and Teaching Council to the Council of Deans of Theology (Australasia) for a project 

ZKLFK�LV�EHLQJ�DGPLQLVWHUHG�E\�0&'��WKH�H[SHQGLWXUH�LV�OLVWHG�LQ�2WKHU�H[SHQVHV�DQG���������LV�UHFRUGHG�DV�

a reserve which will be spent in 2012.  



47

Melbourne College of Divinity Annual Report 2011

Superannuation liabilities

6WDII�HPSOR\HG�E\�WKH�0&'�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�DUH�FRYHUHG�E\�WKH�

superannuation scheme of their choice: in 2011 these schemes included 

/8&5)��8QLVXSHU��+(67$��0DFTXDULH�,QYHVWPHQW�0DQDJHPHQW�/WG��&$5(�

DQG�$XVWUDOLDQ�6XSHU��&RQWULEXWLRQV�DUH�PDGH�E\�WKH�0&'�DW����DERYH�WKH�

minimum required by legislation: in 2011 the MCD made contributions at 

the level of 14% of gross salary for each employee. 

The total cost to the MCD for superannuation during 2011 was $127,188.  
During 2011 no loans were made by the MCD to any superannuation scheme.

Compliance with legislation

No applications were made by, or relating to, the MCD Central 

Administration under the Freedom of Information Act 1982 during 2011.

$Q�H[WHQVLYH�UHIXUELVKPHQW�SURMHFW�EHJDQ�DW�0&'­V�.HZ�SUHPLVHV�LQ�

November 2010 and was completed in 2011. All building works have been 

undertaken in accordance with all relevant statutes, regulations, by-laws 

DQG�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�&RPPRQZHDOWK��6WDWH��DQG�ORFDO�&RXQFLO��DQG�LQ�

DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�'((:5�SROLFLHV�

1R�DFWLRQV�RU�RSHUDWLRQV�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKH�:KLVWOHEORZHUV�3URWHFWLRQ�

Act 2001 took place during 2011 in relation to the MCD, nor were any 

disclosures required by that Act made.

In 2011 there was no occasion which brought the MCD into breach 

ZLWK�HLWKHU�WKH�1DWLRQDO�&RPSHWLWLRQ�3ROLF\��RU�WKH�SROLF\�VWDWHPHQW�RQ�

competition policy issued by the Victorian Government. 

There were no Industrial Relations actions or disputes in relation to both 

WKH�6WDWH�DQG�)HGHUDO�/HJLVODWLRQ�

Consistent with the requirements of the Financial Management Act 1994, if 

applicable, the MCD has prepared material on the following items, details 

of which are available upon request:

�� VWDWHPHQW�UHJDUGLQJ�GHFODUDWLRQV�RI�SHFXQLDU\�LQWHUHVW

�� VKDUHV�KHOG�EHQH´FLDOO\�E\�VHQLRU�RI´FHUV�DV�QRPLQHHV�RI�D�VWDWXWRU\�

authority or subsidiary

�� VWDII�RYHUVHDV�YLVLWV

The College attests to compliance with the Australian/New Zealand Risk 

0DQDJHPHQW�6WDQGDUGV�

2Q�SXEOLFDWLRQ��D�3')�FRS\�RI�WKLV�DQG�DOO�SUHYLRXV�0&'�$QQXDO�5HSRUWV��

in addition to statements on all MCD Regulations and Course Guidelines 

DQG�3ROLFLHV��DUH�DYDLODEOH�RQ�WKH�0&'�ZHEVLWH�www.mcd.edu.au

Enquiries regarding details of the above should be addressed to:  

Mr Jeffrey Reaney 

Director, Finance and Administration (Registrar) 

MCD University of Divinity 
21 Highbury Grove 

.(:��9,&�������$XVWUDOLD 

GLUHFWRUDGPLQ´Q#PFG�HGX�DX 

Tel: +61 3 9853 3177



Section B:  
Financial Statements
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7KH�0&'�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�IRU�FDOHQGDU�\HDU������KDYH�EHHQ�

SUHSDUHG�XVLQJ�WKH�JXLGHOLQHV�VXSSOLHG�E\�'((:5���7KH\�KDYH�EHHQ�

scrutinised by the Finance and Investment Committee and the Risk 

Management and Audit Committee of the College, and audited in 

accordance with the MCD Act.

 

Melbourne College of Divinity

Annual Financial Report 
 
31 December 2011

Contents 3DJH

 

Financial Report

� 6WDWHPHQW�RI�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�,QFRPH� 50
� 6WDWHPHQW�RI�)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ� 51
� 6WDWHPHQW�RI�&KDQJHV�LQ�(TXLW\��� 52
� 6WDWHPHQW�RI�&DVK�)ORZV��� 52
� 1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��� 53
 

&HUWL´FDWLRQ��� 73
Auditor’s Report   74

1RWH��DOO�´JXUHV�DUH�H[SUHVVHG�LQ�WKH�QHDUHVW�GROODU�



50 

Melbourne College of Divinity Annual Report 2011

Statement of Comprehensive Income  
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

REVENUE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

$XVWUDOLDQ�*RYHUQPHQW�´QDQFLDO�DVVLVWDQFH

     Australian Government grants 4 1,267,872 1,439,444

�����)((�+(/3 4 2,432,759 2,166,549

6WDWH�DQG�/RFDO�*RYHUQPHQW�´QDQFLDO�
assistance

5 – 100,000

)HHV�DQG�FKDUJHV 6 1,574,198 1,327,048

�����,QYHVWPHQW�UHYHQXH � 155,788 124,236

�����,QGXVWU\�)XQGLQJ ��J� 1,901,020 1,711,144

     Other revenue � 105,493 103,588

7RWDO�UHYHQXH�IURP�FRQWLQXLQJ�RSHUDWLRQV 7,437,130 6,972,009

       Other investment income � (128,098) 24,508

       Other income � 68 82,287

7RWDO�UHYHQXH�DQG�LQFRPH�IURP�FRQWLQXLQJ�
RSHUDWLRQV

7,309,100 7,078,804

EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING 
OPERATIONS

 

(PSOR\HH�UHODWHG�H[SHQVHV �     1,164,449 1,009,057

'HSUHFLDWLRQ�DQG�DPRUWLVDWLRQ �� 36,105 15,297

5HSDLUV�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH �� 3,247 2,177

/RVV�RQ�GLVSRVDO�RI�DVVHWV – 429

,QGXVWU\�)XQGLQJ ��J� 1,901,020 1,711,144

2WKHU�H[SHQVHV �� 4,114,070 3,961,579

7RWDO�H[SHQVHV�IURP�FRQWLQXLQJ�RSHUDWLRQV 7,218,891 6,699,683

OPERATING RESULT BEFORE INCOME TAX 90,209 379,121

,QFRPH�WD[�H[SHQVH �� – –

2SHUDWLQJ�UHVXOW�IURP�FRQWLQXLQJ�RSHUDWLRQV 90,209 379,121

Operating result after income tax for  
the year

90,209 379,121

2SHUDWLQJ�UHVXOW�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�PLQRULW\�
interest

– -

Operating result attributable to members  
of the Melbourne College of Divinity

���E�

90,209 379,121

Total comprehensive income 90,209 379,121

7RWDO�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�
minority interest

Total comprehensive income attributable  
to members of the Melbourne College  
of Divinity

 
90,209

 
379,121

7KH�DERYH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�,QFRPH�VKRXOG�EH�UHDG�LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�
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Statement of Financial Position 
As at 31 December 2011

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

ASSETS

Current assets

��������&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV ��     2,728,692   2,238,314

��������5HFHLYDEOHV ��      80,646   680,868

��������2WKHU�´QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�� ��  593,158 707,795

��������2WKHU�QRQ�´QDQFLDO�DVVHWV ��      68,640      49,112

Total current assets 3,471,136 3,676,089

Non-current assets 

3URSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW ��      378,794      116,503

7RWDO�QRQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV      378,794      116,503

Total assets 3,849,930 3,792,592

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 

Trade and other Payables �� 769,985  888,969

Borrowings ��               –               –

Provisions ��      216,839      175,145

Other liabilities �� 45,366     1,904

Total current liabilities   1,032,190   1,066,018

Non-current liabilities 

Provisions ��     37,882     36,925

7RWDO�QRQ�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV     37,882     36,925

Total liabilities   1,070,072   1,102,943

Net assets 2,779,858 2,689,649

EQUITY

5HVHUYHV ����D� 1,039,798     1,433,387

5HWDLQHG�VXUSOXV ����E� 1,740,060 1,256,262

Total equity  2,779,858  2,689,649

7KH�DERYH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ�VKRXOG�EH�UHDG�LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�
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Statement of Changes in Equity  
For the year ended 31 December 2011 

5HVHUYHV 5HWDLQHG� 

6XUSOXV 

Total

Balance at 1 January 2010  1,316,884        993,644     2,310,528

Total comprehensive income        379,121        379,121

Transfer to reserves      116,503     (116,503)      –

Balance at 31 December 2010  1,433,387     1,256,262     2,689,649

Balance at 1 January 2011   1,433,387     1,256,262     2,689,649

Total Comprehensive income             –          90,209 90,209

Transfers to Reserves (393,589)        393,589

Balance at 31 December 2011 1,039,798     1,740,060     2,779,858

7KH�DERYH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&KDQJHV�LQ�(TXLW\�VKRXOG�EH�UHDG�LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�

Statement of Cash Flows  
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

Cash flows from operating activities

Australian Government Grants 4,250,111 3,861,022

State Government Grants – 110,000

Non Government Grants 93,113 82,469

,QGXVWU\�)XQGLQJ 2,662,235 1,866,530

5HFHLSWV�IURP�VWXGHQW�IHHV�DQG�RWKHU�
customers

 1,628,816  1,388,392

Dividends received     34,998     31,696

,QWHUHVW�UHFHLYHG 127,981 64,192

3D\PHQWV�WR�VXSSOLHUV�DQG�HPSOR\HHV�
�LQFOXVLYH�RI�JRRGV�DQG�VHUYLFHV�WD[�

(5,414,189) (5,028,880)

,QGXVWU\�)XQGLQJ (2,662,235) (1,866,530)

*67�UHFRYHUHG�SDLG 81,405 24,824

Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating 
activities

�� 802,235 533,715

Cash flows from investing activities

3URFHHGV�IURP�VDOH�RI�SURSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�
HTXLSPHQW

–         14,050

3D\PHQWV�IRU�SURSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�
HTXLSPHQW

    (298,396)     (105,245)

3D\PHQWV�IRU�LQYHVWPHQWV (13,461) (11,839)

Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing 
activities

  (311,857) (103,034)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents

490,378 430,681

&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�WKH�
EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�´QDQFLDO�\HDU

          
 2,238,314

 
1,807,633

Cash and cash equivalents at the end  
of the year

�� 2,728,692 2,238,314

7KH�DERYH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&DVK�)ORZV�VKRXOG�EH�UHDG�LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�
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Notes to the Financial Statements 31 December 2011

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies

7KH�SULQFLSDO�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�DGRSWHG�LQ�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�´QDQFLDO�UHSRUW�DUH�VHW�RXW�EHORZ��

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.  

 

a) Basis of preparation 

7KLV�´QDQFLDO�UHSRUW�LV�D�JHQHUDO�SXUSRVH�´QDQFLDO�UHSRUW�ZKLFK�KDV�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�RQ�DQ�DFFUXDO�EDVLV�

LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�$XVWUDOLDQ�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��$$6%�,QWHUSUHWDWLRQV��WKH�0HOERXUQH�&ROOHJH�

of Divinity Act 1910, the Financial Management Act 1994 and the requirements of the Department of 

(GXFDWLRQ��(PSOR\PHQW�DQG�:RUNSODFH�5HODWLRQV�

&RPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�,)56V 

7KH�´QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�QRWHV�RI�WKH�0HOERXUQH�&ROOHJH�RI�'LYLQLW\�FRPSO\�ZLWK�$XVWUDOLDQ�

$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��VRPH�RI�ZKLFK�FRQWDLQ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�VSHFL´F�WR�QRW�IRU�SUR´W�HQWLWLHV�WKDW�DUH�

LQFRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��,)56V��

Historical cost convention 

7KHVH�´QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�XQGHU�WKH�KLVWRULFDO�FRVW�FRQYHQWLRQ��DV�PRGL´HG�E\�

WKH�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH�´QDQFLDO�DVVHWV��´QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV��LQFOXGLQJ�GHULYDWLYH�

LQVWUXPHQWV��DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR´W�RU�ORVV��FHUWDLQ�FODVVHV�RI�SURSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�DQG�

investment property.    

Critical accounting estimates 

7KH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�´QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�FRQIRUPLW\�ZLWK�$,)56�UHTXLUHV�WKH�XVH�RI�FHUWDLQ�FULWLFDO�

DFFRXQWLQJ�HVWLPDWHV��,W�DOVR�UHTXLUHV�PDQDJHPHQW�WR�H[HUFLVH�LWV�MXGJHPHQW�LQ�WKH�SURFHVV�RI�

applying the Melbourne College of Divinity’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree 

RI�MXGJHPHQW�RU�FRPSOH[LW\��RU�DUHDV�ZKHUH�DVVXPSWLRQV�DQG�HVWLPDWHV�DUH�VLJQL´FDQW�WR�WKH�´QDQFLDO�

statements, are disclosed in note 3.

b) Property, plant and equipment

3URSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�LV�VWDWHG�DW�KLVWRULFDO�FRVW�OHVV�GHSUHFLDWLRQ��+LVWRULFDO�FRVW�LQFOXGHV�

H[SHQGLWXUH�WKDW�LV�GLUHFWO\�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�WKH�LWHPV�

6XEVHTXHQW�FRVWV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�DVVHW­V�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RU�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�D�VHSDUDWH�DVVHW��DV�

DSSURSULDWH��RQO\�ZKHQ�LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQH´WV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�LWHP�ZLOO�µRZ�

to the Melbourne College of Divinity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs 

DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�DUH�FKDUJHG�WR�WKH�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW�GXULQJ�WKH�´QDQFLDO�SHULRG�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH\�DUH�

incurred.

$OO�´[HG�DVVHWV�DUH�GHSUHFLDWHG�RYHU�WKHLU�XVHIXO�OLYHV�FRPPHQFLQJ�IURP�WKH�WLPH�WKH�DVVHW�LV�KHOG�UHDG\�

for use.

c) Employee benefits

(i) Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave 

/LDELOLWLHV�IRU�ZDJHV�DQG�VDODULHV��LQFOXGLQJ�QRQ�PRQHWDU\�EHQH´WV��DQQXDO�OHDYH�DQG�DFFXPXODWLQJ�

VLFN�OHDYH�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�VHWWOHG�ZLWKLQ����PRQWKV�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�

SURYLVLRQ�IRU�HPSOR\HH�EHQH´WV�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�HPSOR\HHV­�VHUYLFHV�XS�WR�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�DQG�DUH�

PHDVXUHG�DW�WKH�DPRXQWV�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�SDLG�ZKHQ�WKH�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�VHWWOHG��/LDELOLWLHV�IRU�QRQ�

accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at the rates paid or 

payable.

(ii) Long service leave 

7KH�OLDELOLW\�IRU�ORQJ�VHUYLFH�OHDYH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�HPSOR\HH�EHQH´WV�DQG�PHDVXUHG�

DV�WKH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�H[SHFWHG�IXWXUH�SD\PHQWV�WR�EH�PDGH�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG�E\�

employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to 

H[SHFWHG�IXWXUH�ZDJH�DQG�VDODU\�OHYHOV��H[SHULHQFH�RI�HPSOR\HH�GHSDUWXUHV�DQG�SHULRGV�RI�VHUYLFH��

([SHFWHG�IXWXUH�SD\PHQWV�DUH�GLVFRXQWHG�XVLQJ�PDUNHW�\LHOGV�DW�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�RQ�QDWLRQDO�

government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the 

HVWLPDWHG�IXWXUH�FDVK�RXWµRZV�

d) Revenue recognition

Fees and income are recognised as revenue on an accruals basis.

Tuition fees for all MCD postgraduate students are paid to the MCD administration, which pays the 

Recognized Teaching Institutions and HDR supervisors.

)HHV�IRU�0&'�XQGHUJUDGXDWH�VWXGHQWV�XVLQJ�WKH�)((�+(/3�ORDQ�VFKHPH�DUH�SDLG�E\�'((:5�WR�WKH�

MCD, which pays the amounts less the capitation fee to the Recognized Teaching Institutions. 

$V�D�FRQVHTXHQFH��LQ�WKH�,QFRPH�6WDWHPHQW��DQG�LQ�1RWH���� 

D��2QO\�FDSLWDWLRQ�IHHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�UHYHQXH�IRU�0&'�XQGHUJUDGXDWH�VWXGHQWV���H[FOXGLQJ�XSIURQW�

IHH�SD\LQJ�8)7�VWXGHQWV���EXW

b) Total tuition fees for upfront fee-paying domestic MCD postgraduate students and for upfront fee-

SD\LQJ�8)7�XQGHUJUDGXDWH�VWXGHQWV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�UHYHQXH��
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Note 1. Summary of Significant accounting policies (continued)

Dividend revenue is recognised when the College has established that it has a right to receive a dividend.

Interest revenue is recognised on an accruals basis. 

$OO�UHYHQXH�LV�VWDWHG�QHW�RI�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�*RRGV�DQG�6HUYLFHV�7D[��*67��

e) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

5HYHQXHV��H[SHQVHV�DQG�DVVHWV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�QHW�RI�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�*67��H[FHSW�ZKHUH�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�

*67�LQFXUUHG�LV�QRW�UHFRYHUDEOH�IURP�WKH�$XVWUDOLDQ�7D[DWLRQ�2I´FH��,Q�WKHVH�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�WKH�*67�LV�

UHFRJQLVHG�DV�SDUW�RI�WKH�FRVW�RI�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�WKH�DVVHW�RU�DV�SDUW�RI�WKH�LWHP�RI�H[SHQVH��5HFHLYDEOHV�

DQG�SD\DEOHV�LQ�WKH�%DODQFH�6KHHW�DUH�VKRZQ�LQFOXVLYH�RI�*67�

f) Bad and doubtful debts

Bad debts are written off as they arise. If a provision for bad and doubtful debts has been recognised 

in relation to a debtor, write-off for bad debts is made against the provision. If no provision for bad and 

GRXEWIXO�GHEWV�KDV�SUHYLRXVO\�EHHQ�UHFRJQLVHG��ZULWH�RIIV�IRU�EDG�GHEWV�DUH�FKDUJHG�DV�H[SHQVHV�LQ�WKH�

,QFRPH�6WDWHPHQW�����

g)  Industry funding

MCD submits annually the Higher Educational Research Data Collection.

This includes funding for research received from Colleges, Churches and religious communities for 

approved research activities at MCD.  This is reported as Industry and Other Research income.

0&'�PXVW�SURYLGH�DQ�$XGLW�&HUWL´FDWH�ZKLFK�FHUWL´HV�DV�FRUUHFW�WKH�UHVHDUFK�LQFRPH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�

Research Income Return for the category of Industry and Other Research Income.

,W�LV�D�UHTXLUHPHQW�RI�',,65�WKDW�DOO�UHVHDUFK�LQFRPH�PXVW�EH�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�

3URYLGHU­V�´QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

$OO�WKH�LQGXVWU\�IXQGLQJ�UHFHLYHG�RU�UHFHLYDEOH�E\�0&'�LV�UHFRUGHG�LQ�WKH�´QDQFLDO�DFFRXQWV�RI�0&'�DQG�

the corresponding distribution of this funding is also recorded.

,Q������WKLV�LV�DQ�DPRXQW�RI�������������������������������$PRXQWV�UHFHLYDEOH�DQG�SD\DEOH�IURP��WR�

respective colleges, churches and religious communities as at 31 December 2011 are disclosed in notes 15 

and 19 respectively.

h) Grants and Contributions

:KHUH�JUDQWV�RU�FRQWULEXWLRQV�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�UHYHQXHV�GXULQJ�WKH�´QDQFLDO�\HDU�ZHUH�REWDLQHG�RQ�

FRQGLWLRQ�WKDW�WKH\�EH�H[SHQGHG�LQ�D�SDUWLFXODU�PDQQHU�RU�XVHG�RYHU�D�SDUWLFXODU�SHULRG�DQG�WKRVH�

conditions were undischarged at balance date the unused grant or contribution is disclosed in notes 23 

and 30. The notes also disclose the amount of unused grant or contribution from prior years that was 

H[SHQGHG�GXULQJ�WKH�FXUUHQW�\HDU�� 

Note 2. Financial risk management

7KH�0HOERXUQH�&ROOHJH�RI�'LYLQLW\­V�DFWLYLWLHV�H[SRVH�LW�WR�D�YDULHW\�RI�´QDQFLDO�ULVNV��DV�IROORZV�

a) Significant accounting policies

'HWDLOV�RI�WKH�VLJQL´FDQW�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�DQG�PHWKRGV�DGRSWHG��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�FULWHULD�IRU�UHFRJQLWLRQ��

WKH�EDVLV�RI�PHDVXUHPHQW��DQG�WKH�EDVLV�RQ�ZKLFK�LQFRPH�DQG�H[SHQVHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG��ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�

HDFK�FODVV�RI�´QDQFLDO�DVVHW��´QDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�DQG�HTXLW\�LQVWUXPHQW�DUH�GLVFORVHG�LQ�1RWH���WR�WKH�´QDQFLDO�

statements.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the College’s debtors defaulting on their contractual 

REOLJDWLRQV�UHVXOWLQJ�LQ�´QDQFLDO�ORVV�WR�WKH�&ROOHJH��7KH�&ROOHJH�PHDVXUHV�FUHGLW�ULVN�RQ�D�IDLU�YDOXH�EDVLV�

and monitors risk on a regular basis.

3URYLVLRQ�RI�LPSDLUPHQW�IRU�´QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LV�FDOFXODWHG�EDVHG�RQ�SDVW�H[SHULHQFH��DQG�FXUUHQW�DQG�

H[SHFWHG�FKDQJHV�LQ�FOLHQW�FUHGLW�UDWLQJV�

7KH�&ROOHJH�GRHV�QRW�HQJDJH�LQ�KLJK�ULVN�KHGJLQJ�IRU�LWV�´QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�

Currently the College does not hold any collateral as security nor credit enhancements relating to any of 

LWV�´QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�

$V�DW�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH��WKHUH�LV�QR�HYHQW�WR�LQGLFDWH�WKDW�DQ\�RI�WKH�´QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�LPSDLUHG�

7KHUH�DUH�QR�´QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WKDW�KDYH�KDG�WKHLU�WHUPV�UHQHJRWLDWHG�VR�DV�WR�SUHYHQW�WKHP�IURP�EHLQJ�

past due or impaired, and they are stated at the carrying amounts as indicated. 

c) Liquidity risk

/LTXLGLW\�ULVN�DULVHV�ZKHQ�WKH�&ROOHJH�LV�XQDEOH�WR�PHHW�LWV�´QDQFLDO�REOLJDWLRQV�DV�WKH\�IDOO�GXH��7KH�

&ROOHJH�RSHUDWHV�XQGHU�WKH�*RYHUQPHQW�IDLU�SD\PHQWV�SROLF\�RI�VHWWOLQJ�´QDQFLDO�REOLJDWLRQV�ZLWKLQ����

days and in the event of a dispute, make payments within 30 days from the date of resolution. It also 
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Note 2. Financial risk management (continued)

FRQWLQXRXVO\�PDQDJHV�ULVN�WKURXJK�PRQLWRULQJ�IXWXUH�FDVK�µRZV�DQG��PDWXULWLHV�SODQQLQJ�WR�HQVXUH�

adequate holding of high quality liquid assets and dealing in highly liquid markets.

7KH�&ROOHJH­V�H[SRVXUH�WR�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN�LV�GHHPHG�LQVLJQL´FDQW�EDVHG�RQ�SULRU�SHULRGV­�GDWD�DQG�FXUUHQW�

DVVHVVPHQW�RI�ULVN��&DVK�IRU�XQH[SHFWHG�HYHQWV�LV�JHQHUDOO\�VRXUFHG�IURP�OLTXLGDWLRQ�RI�DYDLODEOH�IRU�

VDOH�´QDQFLDO�LQYHVWPHQWV�

d) Market risk

7KH�&ROOHJH­V�H[SRVXUHV�WR�PDUNHW�ULVN�DUH�SULPDULO\�WKURXJK�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN��IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�DQG�

RWKHU�SULFH�ULVNV�UHODWLQJ�WR�´QDQFLDO�PDUNHWV��2EMHFWLYHV��SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHVVHV�XVHG�WR�PDQDJH�HDFK�RI�

WKHVH�ULVNV�DUH�GLVFORVHG�LQ�WKH�SDUDJUDSKV�EHORZ�

Interest rate risk 

([SRVXUH�WR�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN�PLJKW�DULVH�SULPDULO\�WKURXJK�WKH�&ROOHJH­V�´QDQFLDO�DVVHWV��0LQLPLVDWLRQ�RI�

ULVN�LV�DFKLHYHG�E\�GLYHUVL´FDWLRQ�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV�LQ�FDVK�DQG�PDQDJHG�IXQG�LQYHVWPHQWV��

7KH�&ROOHJH­V�H[SRVXUH�WR�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN�LV�VHW�RXW�LQ�WKH�7DEOH�������

Other price risk 

The College is exposed to other price risk relating to its investments in managed funds as disclosed in 

Note 16. This includes price risks from market indices in Australian and International share markets. In 

RUGHU�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�&ROOHJH­V�LQYHVWPHQW�SRUWIROLR�ZRUNV�HIIHFWLYHO\�WRZDUGV�DFKLHYLQJ�LWV�´QDQFLDO�

REMHFWLYHV��WKH�)LQDQFH�DQG�,QYHVWPHQW�&RPPLWWHH�UHFHLYHV�UHJXODU�UHSRUWV�IURP�LQVWLWXWLRQV�ZLWK�ZKRP�

IXQGV�DUH�LQYHVWHG�DQG�UHYLHZV�WKH�SRVLWLRQ�WR�HQVXUH�WKH�EHVW�SRVVLEOH�LQYHVWPHQW�RSWLRQV�IRU�WKH�

College.

Sensitivity disclosure analysis 

7DNLQJ�LQWR�DFFRXQW�SDVW�SHUIRUPDQFH��IXWXUH�H[SHFWDWLRQV��HFRQRPLF�IRUHFDVWV��DQG�PDQDJHPHQW­V�

NQRZOHGJH�DQG�H[SHULHQFH�RI�WKH�´QDQFLDO�PDUNHWV��WKH�&ROOHJH�EHOLHYHV�WKH�IROORZLQJ�PRYHPHQWV�

DUH�¬UHDVRQDEO\�SRVVLEOH­�RYHU�WKH�QH[W����PRQWKV��%DVH�UDWHV�DUH�VRXUFHG�IURP�WKH�5HVHUYH�%DQN�RI�

Australia):

$�SDUDOOHO�VKLIW�RI�����DQG�����LQ�PDUNHW�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV��$8'��IURP�\HDU�HQG�UDWHV��DQG

$�SDUDOOHO�VKLIW�RI������DQG������LQ�´QDQFLDO�PDUNHW�UDWHV�IURP�\HDU�HQG�UDWHV�

e) Net Fair Values

7KH�DJJUHJDWH�QHW�IDLU�YDOXHV�RI�´QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�QRW�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�VLJQL´FDQWO\�

GLIIHUHQW�IURP�HDFK�FODVV�RI�DVVHW�DQG�OLDELOLW\�DV�GLVFORVHG�DQG�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�%DODQFH�6KHHW�DV�DW����

December 2011. 

Note 3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(VWLPDWHV�DQG�MXGJHPHQWV�DUH�FRQWLQXDOO\�HYDOXDWHG�DQG�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�KLVWRULFDO�H[SHULHQFH�DQG�

RWKHU�IDFWRUV��LQFOXGLQJ�H[SHFWDWLRQV�RI�IXWXUH�HYHQWV�WKDW�DUH�EHOLHYHG�WR�EH�UHDVRQDEOH�XQGHU�WKH�

circumstances.

The MCD Council makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 

HVWLPDWHV�ZLOO��E\�GH´QLWLRQ��VHOGRP�HTXDO�WKH�UHODWHG�DFWXDO�UHVXOWV��7KH�HVWLPDWHV�DQG�DVVXPSWLRQV�WKDW�

KDYH�D�VLJQL´FDQW�ULVN�RI�FDXVLQJ�D�PDWHULDO�DGMXVWPHQW�WR�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�RI�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�

ZLWKLQ�WKH�QH[W�´QDQFLDO�\HDU�DUH�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�HPSOR\HH�SURYLVLRQV�DQG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�RI�SURSHUW\��SODQW�

and equipment.
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Note 4. Australian Government financial assistance including  
HECS-HELP and other Australian Government loan programmes

Notes 2011 2010 
�

(a) Commonwealth Grants Scheme and Other Grants ����

Australian Higher Education Graduation Statement –     100,000

Total Commonwealth Grants Scheme and other Grants –     100,000

(b) Higher Education Loan Programs ����

)((�+(/3 2,432,759 2,166,549

Total Higher Education Loan Programs 2,432,759 2,166,549

(c) Scholarships ����

Australian Postgraduate Awards 257,728 172,427

,QWHUQDWLRQDO�3RVWJUDGXDWH�5HVHDUFK�6FKRODUVKLS   61,633   56,015

7RWDO�6FKRODUVKLSV 319,361 228,442

(d) DIISR  Research ����

-RLQW�5HVHDUFK�(QJDJHPHQW�3URJUDP      312,212      284,282

5HVHDUFK�7UDLQLQJ�6FKHPH      636,299      582,121

�,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ�$VVLVWDQFH�3URJUDPPH  –  22,473

$XVWUDOLDQ�6FKHPH�IRU�+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�5HSRVLWRULHV� – –

Commercialisation Training Scheme –  22,126 

6XVWDLQDEOH�5HVHDUFK�([FHOOHQFH�LQ�8QLYHUVLWLHV – 200,000

Other – –

7RWDO�',,65��5HVHDUFK�*UDQWV 948,511 1,111,002

(e) Voluntary Student Unionism  

      Total VSU – –

(f) Other Capital Funding ����  

%HWWHU�8QLYHUVLWLHV�5HQHZDO�)XQGLQJ – –

7HDFKLQJ�DQG�/HDUQLQJ�&DSLWDO�)XQG – –

7RWDO�2WKHU�&DSLWDO�)XQGLQJ – –

(g) Australian Research Council

�L��'LVFRYHU\

Total Discovery – –

�LL��/LQNDJHV

Total Linkages – –

�LLL��1HWZRUNV�DQG�&HQWUHV

Total Networks and Centres – –

(h) Other Australian Government financial assistance

7RWDO�RWKHU�$XVWUDOLDQ�*RYHUQPHQW�´QDQFLDO�DVVLVWDQFH  – –

Total Australian Government financial assistance  – –

Reconciliation

$XVWUDOLDQ�*RYHUQPHQW�JUDQWV�>D���F���G���H���I���J���K@� 1,267,872 1,439,444

+(&6�+(/3�¨�$XVWUDOLDQ�*RYHUQPHQW�SD\PHQWV – –

2WKHU�$XVWUDOLDQ�*RYHUQPHQW�ORDQ�SURJUDPPHV� 
>)((�+(/3@

2,432,759 2,166,549

Total Australian Government financial assistance     
3,700,631

    
3,605,993

(i) Australian Government Grants received – cash basis

CGS and Other DEEWR Grants –   100,000

Higher Education Loan Programmes   2,982,239   2,388,174

Scholarships 319,361 228,442

DIISR research 948,511 1,111,002

Other Capital Funding Funding – –

Total Australian Government Grants received – cash basis 4,250,111 3,827,618

OS-Help (Net) – –

Total Australian Government funding received – cash basis 4,250,111 3,827,618
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Note 5. State and Local Government financial assistance

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

6SHFLDOLVW�8QLYHUVLW\�$SSOLFDWLRQ – 100,000

Total State and Local Government  
financial assistance

– 100,000

Note 6. Fees and charges

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

Course fees and charges

)HH�SD\LQJ�RYHUVHDV�VWXGHQWV 274,952 227,434

)HH�SD\LQJ�GRPHVWLF�SRVWJUDGXDWH�
students

990,425 875,128

)HH�SD\LQJ�GRPHVWLF�XQGHUJUDGXDWH�
students

215,314 170,235

7RWDO�FRXUVH�IHHV�DQG�FKDUJHV 1,480,691 1,272,797

Other fees and charges

&RQIHUUDO�DQG�2WKHU�IHHV� 26,007 25,751

%XLOGLQJ�,PSURYHPHQW�&RQWULEXWLRQ 30,000 -

57,­V�$I´OLDWLRQ�DQG�$SSOLFDWLRQ�IHHV 37,500 28,500

7RWDO�RWKHU�IHHV�DQG�FKDUJHV 93,507 54,251

Total fees and charges 1,574,198 1,327,048

Note 7. Investment revenue and income

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

,QWHUHVW    120,789 92,540

Dividends 34,998 31,696

Total investment revenue 155,787 124,236

&KDQJH�LQ�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�´QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
GHVLJQDWHG�DV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR´W� 
& loss

     (128,098)      24,508

Total other investment income (128,098) 24,508

Net  investment income 27,689 148,744

Note 8. Other revenue and income

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

Other revenue

'RQDWLRQV�DQG�EHTXHVWV 19,886 28,645

1RQ�*RYHUQPHQW�*UDQWV 85,607        74,943

Total other revenue    105,493     103,588

Other income

&HQWHQDU\�&RQIHUHQFH�	�)XQFWLRQV 68 82,287

Total other income 68 82,287
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Note 9. Employee benefits and on costs

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

Non-academic

Salaries 890,262 795,160

&RQWULEXWLRQ�WR�VXSHUDQQXDWLRQ�DQG� 
SHQVLRQ�VFKHPHV�

)XQGHG 124,118 109,245

3D\UROO�WD[ 28,451 20,306

:RUNHU­V�FRPSHQVDWLRQ 12,473 9,609

/RQJ�VHUYLFH�OHDYH�H[SHQVH 28,232 32,634

$QQXDO�OHDYH��PRYHPHQW�LQ�SURYLVLRQ� 27,248 15,716

Other 53,665 26,387

7RWDO�QRQ�DFDGHPLF 1,164,449 1,009,057

Total employee related expenses 1,164,449 1,009,057

'HIHUUHG�HPSOR\HH�EHQH´WV�IRU�
VXSHUDQQXDWLRQ

– –

Total employee related expenses, 
including deferred employee benefits for 
superannuation

1,164,449 1,009,057

Note 10. Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation

Buildings – –

3ODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW 36,105 15,297

7RWDO�GHSUHFLDWLRQ 36,105 15,297

Total depreciation and amortisation 36,105 15,297

Note 11. Repairs and maintenance

Buildings – –

*HQHUDO�0DLQWHQDQFH 3,247 2,177

Total repairs and maintenance 3,247 2,177
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Note 12. Other expenses

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

6FKRODUVKLSV��JUDQWV�DQG�SUL]HV  564,254  483,247

Non-capitalised equipment 929 959

$GYHUWLVLQJ��PDUNHWLQJ�DQG�SURPRWLRQDO�H[SHQVHV        7,200        995

3URIHVVLRQDO�6HUYLFHV      71,362      31,957

Insurances 11,954 11,597

Bad & Doubtful Debts           14,879       -

3ULQWLQJ�DQG�VWDWLRQHU\      28,776      27,930

8QGHUJUDGXDWH�([SHQVHV    1,077,574 1,031,311

Rental, hire and other leasing fees      27,210      26,354

Telecommunications      9,423      11,056

Travel       7,085      6,917

6XSHUYLVLRQ�DQG�([DPLQDWLRQ    318,785    285,196

*UDGXDWH�'LSORPD�	�FHUWL´FDWHV    728,469    647,766

Masters Coursework       483,759    449,715

Masters Research    102,176    59,536

Conferences     53,560     37,900

Library Funding    221,197    205,213

&RQIHUUDO�([SHQVHV 16,485 19,247

Teaching & Learning Capital Fund 50,183 99,517

&RPPHUFLDOL]DWLRQ�7UDLQLQJ�6FKHPH – 67,533

6SHFLDOLVW�8QLYHUVLW\�$SSOLFDWLRQ� 10,684 109,349

&XUULFXOXP�'HYHORSPHQW�3URMHFW 85,756 34,855

6XVWDLQDEOH�5HVHDUFK�([FHOOHQFH�3URMHFW 63,040 29,313

Donations & Bequests 10,385 20,950

Centenary Conference & Functions – 96,390

Other    148,945    166,776

Total other expenses 4,114,070 3,961,579

Note 13. Income tax

7KH�0HOERXUQH�&ROOHJH�RI�'LYLQLW\�LV�H[HPSW�IURP�LQFRPH�WD[�XQGHU�,WHPV�����DQG�����RI�VHFWLRQ������RI�

WKH�,QFRPH�7D[�$VVHVVPHQW�$FW������

Note 14. Cash and cash equivalents

Notes 2011 
$

2010 

�

Cash at bank and on hand        680,416 557,236

'HSRVLWV�DW�FDOO    2,048,276 1,681,078

Total cash and cash equivalents     2,728,692 2,238,314

(a) Reconciliation to cash at the end of the year 
7KH�DERYH�´JXUHV�DUH�UHFRQFLOHG�WR�FDVK�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�
\HDU�DV�VKRZQ�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FDVK�µRZV�DV�IROORZV�

Balances as above 2,728,692 2,238,314

/HVV��26�+(/3�EDODQFHV – –

/HVV��%DQN�RYHUGUDIWV� – –

%DODQFH�SHU�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FDVK�µRZV 2,728,692 2,238,314

(b)  Cash at bank and on hand 
7KHVH�EDQN�DFFRXQWV�HDUQ�LQWHUHVW�DW�UDWHV�EHWZHHQ������
DQG������

 
 

680,416

 
 

557,236

(c) Deposits at call 
7KH�GHSRVLWV�DUH�EHDULQJ�µRDWLQJ�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV�RI�DSSUR[L�
PDWHO\��������������¨���������7KHVH�GHSRVLWV�DUH�DW�FDOO�

 
 

2,048,276

 
 

1,681,078

(d) OS-HELP Balance 
7KH�0HOERXUQH�&ROOHJH�RI�'LYLQLW\�UHFHLYHV�QR�26�+(/3�
monies.

 
–

 

–
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Note 15. Receivables

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

Current

6WXGHQW�IHHV 44,575 27,512

/HVV��3URYLVLRQ�IRU�LPSDLUHG�UHFHLYDEOHV   12,040   12,040

32,535 15,472

,QGXVWU\�)XQGLQJ��VHH�1RWH��J�                   – 605,352

Other Debtors 48,111 60,044

Total current receivables        80,646 680,868

Total receivables        80,646 680,868

Impaired receivables 

7KH�0HOERXUQH�&ROOHJH�RI�'LYLQLW\�KDV�UHFRJQLVHG�D�ORVV�RI����������������QLO��LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�
EDG�DQG�GRXEWIXO�WUDGH�UHFHLYDEOHV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�������7KH�ORVV�KDV�
EHHQ�LQFOXGHG�LQ�¬RWKHU�H[SHQVHV­�LQ�WKH�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW�

Note 16. Other financial assets 

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

Current

)DLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR´W�RU�ORVV 593,158 707,795

Total current other financial assets 593,158 707,795

Total other financial assets 593,158 707,795

&KDQJHV�LQ�IDLU�YDOXHV�RI�RWKHU�´QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR´W�RU�ORVV�DUH�
UHFRUGHG�LQ�RWKHU�LQFRPH�LQ�WKH�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW��QRWH���,QYHVWPHQW�,QFRPH���

Note 17. Other non-financial assets 

Notes 2011 
$

���� 

�

Current

3UHSD\PHQWV 68,640 49,112

Total current other non-financial assets 68,640 49,112

Total other non-financial assets 68,640 49,112



61

Melbourne College of Divinity Annual Report 2011

N
o

te
 1

8
. 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y,
 p

la
n

t 
a
n

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
in

 p
ro

g
re

ss
F

re
e

h
o

ld
 

la
n

d
F

re
e

h
o

ld
  

b
u

il
d

in
g

s
P

la
n

t 
a
n

d
  

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

L
e

a
se

h
o

ld
  

im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

L
e

a
se

d
 

p
la

n
t 

&
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

L
ib

ra
ry

O
th

e
r 

p
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

To
ta

l

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$

A
t 

1 
Ja

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

10

��
&
R
VW

–
–

–
23

5,
10

2
–

–
–

–
23

5,
10

2

��
9
D
OX
D
WL
R
Q

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–

$
F
F
X
P
X
OD
WH
G
�G
H
S
UH
F
LD
WL
R
Q

–
–

–
(1

94
,0

68
)

–
–

–
–

(1
94

,0
68

)

N
e
t
 b

o
o

k
 a

m
o

u
n

t
–

–
–

41
,0

34
–

–
–

–
41

,0
34

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1 
D

e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

10

2
S
H
Q
LQ
J
�Q
H
W�
E
R
R
N
�D
P
R
X
Q
W

–
–

–
41

,0
34

–
–

–
–

41
,0

34

(
[
F
K
D
Q
J
H
�G
LI
IH
UH
Q
F
H
V

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–

5
H
Y
D
OX
D
WL
R
Q
�V
X
US
OX
V

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–

A
d

d
it

io
n

s
–

–
–

41
,6

09
63

,6
36

–
–

–
10

5,
24

5

$
VV
H
WV
�L
Q
F
OX
G
H
G
�L
Q
�D
�G
LV
S
R
VD
O�
J
UR
X
S
�

F
OD
VV
L´
H
G
�D
V�
K
H
OG
�I
R
U�
VD
OH
�D
Q
G
�R
WK
H
U�

G
LV
S
R
VD
OV

–
–

–
(1

4,
47

9)
–

–
–

–
(1

4,
47

9)

'
H
S
UH
F
LD
WL
R
Q
�F
K
D
UJ
H

–
–

–
(1

5,
29

7)
–

–
–

–
(1

5,
29

7)

C
lo

s
in

g
 n

e
t
 b

o
o

k
 a

m
o

u
n

t
–

–
–

52
,8

67
63

,6
36

–
–

–
11

6,
50

3

A
t 

3
1 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
2

0
10

��
&
R
VW

–
–

–
25

1,
99

9
63

,6
36

–
–

–
31

5,
63

5

��
9
D
OX
D
WL
R
Q

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–

$
F
F
X
P
X
OD
WH
G
�G
H
S
UH
F
LD
WL
R
Q

–
–

–
(1

99
,1

32
)

–
–

–
–

(1
99

,1
32

)

N
e
t
 b

o
o

k
 a

m
o

u
n

t
–

–
–

52
,8

67
63

,6
36

–
–

–
11

6,
50

3



62 

Melbourne College of Divinity Annual Report 2011

N
o

te
 1

8
. 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y,
 p

la
n

t 
a
n

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
(c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
)

C
o

n
st

ru
c-

ti
o

n
 i

n
 

p
ro

g
re

ss

F
re

e
h

o
ld

 
la

n
d

F
re

e
h

o
ld

  
b

u
il

d
in

g
s

P
la

n
t 

a
n

d
  

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

L
e

a
se

h
o

ld
  

im
p

ro
ve

-
m

e
n

ts

L
e

a
se

d
 

p
la

n
t 

&
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

L
ib

ra
ry

O
th

e
r 

p
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

q
u

ip
-

m
e

n
t

To
ta

l

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1 
D

e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

11

2
S
H
Q
LQ
J
�Q
H
W�
E
R
R
N
�D
P
R
X
Q
W

–
–

–
52

,8
67

63
,6

36
–

–
–

11
6,

50
3

(
[
F
K
D
Q
J
H
�G
LI
IH
UH
Q
F
H
V

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–

5
H
Y
D
OX
D
WL
R
Q
�V
X
US
OX
V

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–

$
F
T
X
LV
LW
LR
Q
�R
I�
VX
E
VL
G
LD
U\

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–

A
d

d
it

io
n

s
–

–
–

11
,2

45
28

7,
15

1
–

–
–

29
8,

39
6

$
VV
H
WV
�F
OD
VV
L´
H
G
�D
V�
K
H
OG
�I
R
U�
VD
OH
�D
Q
G
�

R
WK
H
U�
G
LV
S
R
VD
OV

–
–

–
-

–
–

–
–

-

'
H
S
UH
F
LD
WL
R
Q
�F
K
D
UJ
H
�

–
–

–
(1

5,
62

8)
(2

0,
47

7)
–

–
–

(3
6,

10
5)

C
lo

s
in

g
 n

e
t
 b

o
o

k
 a

m
o

u
n
t

–
–

–
48

,4
84

33
0,

31
0

–
–

–
37

8,
79

4

A
t 

3
1 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
2

0
11

��
&
R
VW

–
–

–
26

3,
24

2
35

0,
78

8
–

–
–

61
4,

03
0

��
9
D
OX
D
WL
R
Q

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–

$
F
F
X
P
X
OD
WH
G
�G
H
S
UH
F
LD
WL
R
Q

–
–

–
(2

14
,7

58
)

(2
0,

47
8)

–
–

–
(2

35
,2

36
)

N
e
t
 b

o
o

k
 a

m
o

u
n

t
 

–
–

–
48

,4
84

33
0,

31
0

–
–

–
37

8,
79

4



63

Melbourne College of Divinity Annual Report 2011

Note 19. Trade and other Payables 

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

Current

 Creditors & Accruals    769,985 283,617

�,QGXVWU\�)XQGLQJ��VHH�QRWH��J    -    605,352

Total current payables 769,985 888,969

Non-current – –

Total non-current payables – –

Total payables 769,985 888,969

Note 20. Borrowings 

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

Financing arrangements

Unrestricted access was available at balance 

GDWH�WR�WKH�IROORZLQJ�OLQHV�RI�FUHGLW�

Credit standby arrangements

%DQN�RYHUGUDIWV    20,000    20,000

Unused at balance date

%DQN�RYHUGUDIWV    20,000    20,000
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Note 21. Provisions 
Notes 2011 

$
2010 

�

Current

(PSOR\HH�EHQH´WV

Annual leave 124,116 96,868

Long service leave 77,489 50,214

Study Leave 15,234 28,063

Total current provisions 216,839 175,145

Non-current

(PSOR\HH�EHQH´WV

Long service leave 37,882 36,925

Total non-current provisions 37,882 36,925

Total provisions 254,721 212,070

(a) Movements in provisions 
0RYHPHQWV�LQ�HDFK�FODVV�RI�SURYLVLRQ�GXULQJ�
WKH�´QDQFLDO�\HDU��RWKHU�WKDQ��FHQWHQDU\�
SURYLVLRQV�DUH�VHW�RXW�EHORZ�

2011 Annual 
Leave

Study 
Leave

Long  
Service 
Leave

Total  
$

Current

&DUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�DW�VWDUW�RI�\HDU 96,868 28,063 50,214 175,145

$GGLWLRQDO�SURYLVLRQV�UHFRJQLVHG 27,248 – 27,275 54,523

Unused amounts reversed – (12,829) – (12,829)

&DUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�DW�HQG�RI�\HDU 124,116 15,234 77,489 216,839

Long  
Service 
Leave

Total  
$

Non-current

&DUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�DW�VWDUW�RI�\HDU 36,925 36,925

$GGLWLRQDO�SURYLVLRQV�UHFRJQLVHG 957 957

7UDQVIHUUHG�WR�&XUUHQW�/LDELOLWLHV – –

&DUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�DW�HQG�RI�\HDU     37,882     37,882

Note 22. Other Liabilities  

Notes 2011 
$

���� 

�

Current

)HHV�LQ�$GYDQFH 45,366 1,904

Total current other liabilities 45,366 1,904
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Note 23. Reserves and retained surpluses

7KH�&ROOHJH�KDV�VHW�DVLGH�UHVHUYHV�IRU�IXQGLQJ�UHFHLYHG�IRU�ZKLFK�IXWXUH�H[SHQGLWXUH� 

LV�H[SHFWHG�DV�IROORZV�

Notes 2011 
$

2010 

�

(a)  Reserves

%XLOGLQJ�)XQG�5HVHUYH��WR�HQDEOH�WKH�&ROOHJH�WR� 
establish its own building.

278,762 312,617

Movements  
Building Fund Reserve

%DODQFH���-DQXDU\� 312,617 289,724

7UDQVIHU��WR��IURP�UHWDLQHG�HDUQLQJV�  (33,855)  22,893

%DODQFH����'HFHPEHU� 278,762 312,617

Reserves 
6FKRODUVKLSV�*UDQWV�5HVHUYH��IXQGLQJ�WKURXJK�$XVWUDOLDQ�
3RVWJUDGXDWH�$ZDUGV�	�(QGHDYRXU�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�
3RVWJUDGXDWH�5HVHDUFK�6FKRODUVKLSV�

204,738 179,011

Movements  
Scholarships Grants Reserve

%DODQFH���-DQXDU\� 179,011 168,438

7UDQVIHU�IURP�UHWDLQHG�HDUQLQJV� 25,727 10,573

%DODQFH����'HFHPEHU� 204,738 179,011

Reserves  
',,65�5HVHDUFK�*UDQWV�5HVHUYH��IXQGLQJ�WKURXJK�-RLQW�
5HVHDUFK�(QJDJHPHQW�3URJUDP��5HVHDUFK�7UDLQLQJ�
6FKHPH��&RPPHUFLDOLVDWLRQ�7UDLQLQJ�6FKHPH��	�
$XVWUDOLDQ�6FKHPH�IRU�+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ�5HSRVLWRULHV�
DQG�6XVWDLQDEOH�5HVHDUFK�([FHOOHQFH

 
 
 
 
 

411,619

 
 
 
 
 

437,824

Movements  
DIISR Research Grants Reserve

%DODQFH���-DQXDU\� 437,824 331,722

7UDQVIHU�IURP�UHWDLQHG�HDUQLQJV� (26,205) 106,102

%DODQFH����'HFHPEHU� 411,619 437,824

Reserves 
2WKHU�&DSLWDO�)XQGLQJ���IXQGLQJ�WKURXJK�WKH�7HDFKLQJ�
DQG�/HDUQLQJ�&DSLWDO�)XQG�

 
 

19,241

 
 

363,847

Movements 
Other Capital Funding

%DODQFH���-DQXDU\� 363,847 527,000

7UDQVIHU�IURP�UHWDLQHG�HDUQLQJV� (344,606) (163,153)

%DODQFH����'HFHPEHU� 19,241 363,847

Reserves

2WKHU�6SHFLDO�3URMHFWV��IXQGLQJ�WKURXJK�$XVWUDOLDQ�
Higher Education Graduation Statement and Australian 

Learning and Teaching Council

125,438 140,088

Movements

Other Capital Funding

%DODQFH���-DQXDU\� 140,088 -

7UDQVIHU�IURP�UHWDLQHG�HDUQLQJV� (14,650) 140,088 

%DODQFH����'HFHPEHU� 125,438 140,088

Total Reserves 1,039,798 1,433,387

(b)  Retained surplus

0RYHPHQWV�LQ�UHWDLQHG�VXUSOXV�ZHUH�DV�IROORZV�

5HWDLQHG�VXUSOXV�DW���-DQXDU\ 1,256,262 993,644

Net operating result for the year 90,209 379,121

Add/Less transfer from/to BF Reserves 33,855 (22,893)

Less transfer to Scholarships Grants Reserves (25,727) (10,573)

Add/Less transfer from/to DIISR Research Reserve 26,205 (106,102)

Add transfer from Other Capital Funding Reserve 344,606 163,153

Add/Less transfer from/to�2WKHU�6SHFLDO�3URMHFWV�5HVHUYH 14,650 (140,088)

5HWDLQHG�VXUSOXV�DW����'HFHPEHU 1,740,060 1,256,262
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Note 24. Key management personnel disclosures

(a) Names of responsible persons and executive officers

7KH�IROORZLQJ�SHUVRQV�ZHUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�SHUVRQV�DQG�H[HFXWLYH�RI´FHUV�RI�WKH�0HOERXUQH�&ROOHJH�RI�

'LYLQLW\�GXULQJ�WKH�´QDQFLDO�\HDU�

7HUHQFH�&XUWLQ��3UHVLGHQW���*UDHPH�%ODFNPDQ��6KHLOD�%HOODP\��3DXO�%HLUQH��'HDQ�DQG�&(2���3HWHU�

Carpenter, John Henderson, Michael Kelly, Andreas Loewe, Andrew Menzies, Robert John Morsillo, 

&KULVWLDDQ�0RVWHUW��6XH�1RUPDQ��)UDQN�5HHV�DQG�:LOOLDP�8UHQ�

(b) Other key management personnel 

'XULQJ�WKH�´QDQFLDO�\HDU�3DXO�%HLUQH�ZDV�WKH�NH\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQ��KROGLQJ�DXWKRULW\�DQG�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�IRU�SODQQLQJ��

GLUHFWLQJ�DQG�FRQWUROOLQJ�WKH�DFWLYLWLHV�RI�WKH�0HOERXUQH�&ROOHJH�RI�'LYLQLW\��

(C) Remuneration of Board Members

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

,QFRPH�SDLG�RU�SD\DEOH��RU�RWKHUZLVH�PDGH�
DYDLODEOH��WR�%RDUG�0HPEHUV�E\�WKH���HQWLW\�DQG�
UHODWHG�SDUWLHV�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�PDQDJHPHQW�
RI�DIIDLUV�RI�WKH�HQWLW\�

 
 
 
–

 
 
 
–

Number 

Remuneration of Board Members

1LO�WR������� 14 14

��������WR�������� – –

Remuneration of Executives

Remuneration of executive officers

���������WR��������� – 1

���������WR��������� 1 –

(d) Key management personnel compensation

6KRUW�WHUP�HPSOR\HH�EHQH´WV 141,560 132,575

3RVW�HPSOR\PHQW�EHQH´WV 21,279 20,157

162,839 152,732

Note 25. Remuneration of auditors  

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

1. Audit services

)HHV�SDLG�WR�UHY Haines Norton 

$XGLW�DQG�UHYLHZ�RI�´QDQFLDO�UHSRUWV�DQG�RWKHU� 
audit work 

14,225 10,450

)HHV�SDLG�WR�UHODWHG�SUDFWLFHV�RI�UHY Haines Norton – –

Total remuneration for audit services 14,225 10,450

Note 26. Contingencies 

At the date of this report there are no contingent liabilities. 

Note 27. Subsequent Events 

6LQFH�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�´QDQFLDO�\HDU��WKHUH�KDYH�EHHQ�QR�VLJQL´FDQW�VXEVHTXHQW�HYHQWV�WKDW�ZRXOG�

PDWHULDOO\�DIIHFW�WKH�´QDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

On 29 August, 2011, VRQA published a Notice of Approval in the Government Gazette for the MCD 

WR�RSHUDWH�DV�D�6SHFLDOLVHG�8QLYHUVLW\�XQGHU�WKH�WLWOH��¬0&'�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�'LYLQLW\­��WKLV�ZDV�IRUPDOO\�

DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�3DUOLDPHQW�RI�9LFWRULD�RQ���'HFHPEHU���������0&'�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�'LYLQLW\�EHJDQ�

operations on 1 January, 2012.
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Note 28. Commitments

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

(a) Capital commitments 

$V�DW����'HFHPEHU�������0&'�KDG�RXWVWDQGLQJ�
FDSLWDO�FRPPLWPHQWV�RI��QLO�����������������

(b) Lease commitments

Commitments in relation to leases contracted 
for at the reporting date but not recognised as 
liabilities payable:

:LWKLQ�RQH�\HDU 27,240 26,424

/DWHU�WKDQ�RQH�\HDU�EXW�QRW�ODWHU�WKDQ�´YH�\HDUV 108,960 –

/DWHU�WKDQ�´YH�\HDUV 81,720 –

217,920 26,424

7KH�DERYH�FRPPLWPHQW�UHODWHV�WR�WKH�OHDVH�RI�WKH�&ROOHJH­V�SUHPLVHV��7KH�&ROOHJH�H[HUFLVHG�LWV�VHFRQG�

option to renew the lease of its premises for a further 8 years from 1 January 2012. There is a further 

RSWLRQ�RI���\HDUV�DYDLODEOH�XQGHU�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�OHDVH��7KH�DQQXDO�OHDVH�LV�VXEMHFW�WR�DQQXDO�&3,�

increases.

Note 29. Reconciliation of operating result after income tax to net cash 
inflow from operating activities  

Notes 2011 
$

2010 
�

2SHUDWLQJ�UHVXOW�IRU�WKH�\HDU 90,209 379,121

'HSUHFLDWLRQ�DQG�DPRUWLVDWLRQ 36,105 15,297

1HW��JDLQ���ORVV�RQ�VDOH�RI�QRQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV                  – 429

)DLU�YDOXH��JDLQV��ORVV�RQ�RWKHU�´QDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�
IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SUR´W�RU�ORVV

128,098 (24,508)

3URYLVLRQ�IRU�$QQXDO�/HDYH 27,248 15,716

3URYLVLRQ�IRU�/RQJ�6HUYLFH�/HDYH 28,232       32,634

3URYLVLRQ�IRU�6WXG\�/HDYH (12,829)       12,277

3URYLVLRQ�IRU�&HQWHQDU\ –    (20,000)

'HFUHDVH��,QFUHDVH��LQ�WUDGH�GHEWRUV� 600,222 223,182

'HFUHDVH��,QFUHDVH��LQ�RWKHU�RSHUDWLQJ�DVVHWV         (19,528)         (36,303)

,QFUHDVH��GHFUHDVH��LQ�WUDGH�FUHGLWRUV (118,984) (13,869)

,QFUHDVH��GHFUHDVH��LQ�RWKHU�RSHUDWLQJ�OLDELOLWLHV 43,462 (50,261)

1HW�FDVK�LQµRZ��RXWµRZ��IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV 802,235 533,715
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Note 30. Acquittal of Australian Government financial assistance 
(continued)

30.5 Other Capital Funding

Teaching and 
Learning Capital 

Fund

Total

Notes 2011 
$

2010 

�
2011 

$
2010 

�

)LQDQFLDO�DVVLVWDQFH�UHFHLYHG�LQ�&$6+�GXULQJ�
WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG��WRWDO�FDVK�UHFHLYHG�IURP�
WKH�$XVWUDOLDQ�*RYHUQPHQW�IRU�WKH�3URJUDPPHV�

– – – –

1HW�DFFUXDO�DGMXVWPHQWV – – – –

5HYHQXH�IRU�WKH�SHULRG ��G� – – – –

6XUSOXV����GH´FLW��IURP�WKH�SUHYLRXV�\HDU 363,847 527,000 363,847 527,000

Total revenue including accrued revenue 363,847 527,000 363,847 527,000

/HVV�H[SHQVHV�LQFOXGLQJ�DFFUXHG�H[SHQVHV 344,606 163,153 344,606 163,153

6XUSOXV����GH´FLW��IRU�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG 19,241 363,847 19,241 363,847

6XUSOXV�WR�EH�FDUULHG�IRUZDUG 19,241 363,847 19,241 363,847


7HDFKLQJ�DQG�/HDUQLQJ�&DSLWDO�)XQG���������H[SHQVHG�DQG����������FDSLWDOLVHG��WRWDOOLQJ����������

Note 31. Financial instruments

Table 31.1: Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets  
 

$

Interest rate exposure Past due by

Weighted 

average 

effective 

interest 

rate

Carrying 

amount

Fixed 

interest 

rate

Variable 

interest 

rate

Non-

interest 

bearing

Less than 

1 Month

1-3 

months

3 

months 

– 1 year

1-5 

years

2011 �         

Cash and cash 

HTXLYDOHQWV�
���� 2,728,692 2,728,332           360

5HFHLYDEOHV �       80,646      80,646 80,646

Other 

´QDQFLDO�
DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�
value

� 593,158     593,158

Total 
Financial 
Assets

3,402,496 2,728,332 674,164 80,646

2010

Cash 
and cash 
equivalents 

���� 2,238,314 2,237,954 360

5HFHLYDEOHV � 680,868 680,868 680,868

Other 

´QDQFLDO�
DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�
value

� 707,795 707,795

Total 
Financial 
Assets

3,626,977 2,237,954 1,389,023 680,868
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Note 31. Financial instruments (continued)

7KH�IROORZLQJ�WDEOH�GLVFORVHV�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�PDWXULW\�DQDO\VLV�IRU�WKH�&ROOHJH­V�´QDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�

Table 31.2: Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial liabilities  

$

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

Weighted 

average 

effective 

interest 

rate%

Nominal

amount

Fixed 

interest 

rate

Variable 

interest 

rate

Non-

interest 

bearing

Less than 

1 Month

1-3 

months

3 

months 

– 1 year

1-5 

years

2011  

Payables � 769,985 769,985 769,985

Total 
Financial 
Liabilities

� 769,985 769,985 769,985

2010       

Payables �   888,969   888,969   888,969

Total 
Financial 
Liabilities

�   888,969   888,969   888,969

7DEOH������GLVFORVHV�WKH�LPSDFW�RQ�QHW�RSHUDWLQJ�UHVXOW�DQG�HTXLW\�IRU�HDFK�FDWHJRU\�RI�´QDQFLDO�

instrument held by the College at year-end as presented to key management personnel, if the above 

movements were to occur.

Table 31.3: Market risk exposure 

$

                                                     Interest rate risk Other price risk

-1% 

(100 basis points)

+1%

(100 basis points)

-10% +10%

Carrying 

amount

Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity

2011  

Financial 
assets:

Cash 

and cash 

HTXLYDOHQWV

2,728,692 (27,287) (27,287) 27,287 27,287

5HFHLYDEOHV 80,646 - - - - - - - -

Other 

´QDQFLDO�
DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�
value

       
593,158

 
(59,316)

 
(59,316)

 
59,316

 
59,316

Financial 
liabilities:

Payables 769,985 - - - - - - - -

Total 
increase/
(decrease)

 
(27,287)

 
(27,287)

 
27,287

 
27,287

 
(59,316)

 
(59,316)

 
59,316

 
59,316
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